
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

City of Dripping Springs  

Council Chambers, 511 Mercer St, Dripping Springs, TX  

Tuesday, May 25, 2021 at 6:30 PM  

VIDEOCONFERENCE MEETING 

This meeting will be held via videoconference and the public is encouraged and welcome to participate.  

Public comment may be given during the videoconference by joining the meeting using the information 

below. Public comment for this meeting may also be submitted to the City Secretary at 

acunningham@cityofdrippingsprings.com no later than 4:00 PM on the day the meeting will be held. 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission respectfully requests that all microphones and webcams be disabled 

unless you are a member of the Commission. City staff, consultants and presenters, please enable your 

microphone and webcam when presenting to the Commission. 

Agenda 

MEETING SPECIFIC VIDEOCONFERENCE INFORMATION 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88294259187?pwd=RlljZ1F0NzNzTzRjQldZYlNCL3J4Zz09 

 

Meeting ID: 882 9425 9187 

Passcode: 487699 

 

Dial Toll Free: 
888 475 4499 US Toll-free 

877 853 5257 US Toll-free 

 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kcNrfa2UX0 

 

Join by Skype for Business: https://us02web.zoom.us/skype/88294259187 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Commission Members 
Mim James, Chair 

James Martin, Vice Chair 

Christian Bourguignon 

John McIntosh 

Roger Newman 

Evelyn Strong 

Tammie Williamson 

1

mailto:acunningham@cityofdrippingsprings.com


Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials 
City Administrator Michelle Fischer 

Deputy City Administrator Ginger Faught 

City Attorney Laura Mueller 

City Secretary Andrea Cunningham 

Senior Planner Amanda Padilla 

City Planner Abraham Martinez 

City Engineer Chad Gilpin 

Public Works Coordinator Aaron Reed 

Planning Consultant Robyn Miga 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Commission regarding any item on an agenda for an 

open meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during 

the Commission’s consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the 

current agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are 

allowed two (2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers 

may not cede or pool time. Members of the public requiring the assistance of a translator will be given 

twice the amount of time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to 

address the Commission. It is the request of the Commission that members of the public wishing to speak 

on item(s) on the agenda with a noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented 

for consideration. Speakers are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City’s policy on 

presentation of citizens from the city secretary. By law no action may be taken during Presentation of 

Citizens. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items are anticipated to require little or no individualized discussion due to their nature 

being clerical, ministerial, mundane or routine. In an effort to enhance the efficiency of Planning & 

Zoning Commission meetings, it is intended that these items will be acted upon by the Planning & Zoning 

Commission with a single motion because no public hearing or determination is necessary. However, a 

Planning & Zoning Commission Member or citizen may request separate deliberation for a specific item, 

in which event those items will be removed from the consent agenda prior to the Planning & Zoning 

Commission voting on the consent agenda as a collective, singular item. Prior to voting on the consent 

agenda, the Planning & Zoning Commission may add additional items that are listed elsewhere on the 

same agenda. 

1. Approval of the April 27, 2021, Planning & Zoning Commission regular meeting 

minutes. 

2. Approval of SUB2019-0062: a Final Plat for Big Sky Ranch at Dripping Springs Phase 

II an approximately 35.92-acre tract of land located off Lone Peak Way (R18077), 

generally located northeast of the intersection of Ranch Road 12 and US Highway 290., 

Dripping Springs, Texas. Applicant: Chris Reid, P.E. Doucet & Associates, Inc.  

3. Approval of SUB2020-0022: a Preliminary Plat for Big Sky Ranch Tract II an 

approximately 12.233-acre tract of land located off Lone Peak Way (R12923, R19906, 

2



R12924, and R19907), generally located northeast of the intersection of Ranch Road 12 

and US Highway 290., Dripping Springs, Texas. Applicant: Chris Reid, P.E. Doucet & 

Associates, Inc.  

4. Disapproval of a plat for the reasons set forth in the items for a Preliminary Plat 

(SUB2020-0028) and Final Plat (SUB2020-0029), consisting of approximately 8.57 acres 

out of the P.A. Smith Survey, Abstract No. 415, generally located south of Sports 

Park Road, and east of RR 12, to be known as CRTX Addition. Applicant: Doug Cobb, 

CRTX Development, LLC 

5. Approval of a plat with conditions set forth in the item SUB2021-0019: a Final Plat and 

Plat Vacation for Bunker Ranch Phase 3 Block 3 Lots 15-19 an approximately 5.14 acre 

tract of land located off Bunker Ranch Blvd (R15053), generally located south of the 

intersection of Bunker Ranch Blvd and Stockman Dr., Dripping Springs, Hays County, 

Texas. Applicant: Brian Estes, PE 

6. Disapproval of a plat for the reasons set forth in the item SUB2021-0029: a Preliminary 

Plat for the Driftwood Creek Phase II an approximately 19.30-acre tract of land located 

off Thurman Roberts Way, generally located north of Ranch Road 1826 (R12574), 

Dripping Springs, Hays County, Texas. Applicant: Murfee Engineering Co, Inc. 

7. Disapproval of a plat for the reasons set forth in the item SUB2021-0030: a Final Plat 

for Bunker Ranch Phase 4 an approximately 38.94 acre tract out of the Benjamin F. 

Hanna Survey No. 28, Abstract No. 222, Hays County, Dripping Springs, Texas, 

generally located south of U.S. 290, east of Bunker Ranch Blvd., and west of Arrowhead 

Ranch Blvd. Applicant: Brian Estes, PE 

8. Approval of SUB2021-0031: a Final Plat for Parten Ranch Phase 5 an approximately 

46.57-acre tract of land located 1.5 miles southwest of the intersection of Nutty Brown 

Road and FM 1826 (R16615), Dripping Springs, Hays County, Texas. Applicant: Daniel 

Ryan, P.E. LJA Engineering 

9. Postponement by applicant of SUB2021-0020: a Preliminary Plat for the Overlook at 

Bunker Ranch an approximately 18.250-acre tract of land located at 2004 Creek Road, 

south of Highway 290, north of Creek Road (R143390), Dripping Springs, Hays County, 

Texas. Applicant: Brian Estes, PE 

BUSINESS 

10. Discuss and consider approval of a Resolution Of Support regarding the City Of 

Dripping Springs Application for Funding under the 2021 Texas Department of 

Transportation TASA Call for Projects Program for the construction of a pedestrian 

pathway on Mercer St. and US Highway 290 between RR-12 and Rob Shelton Blvd. 

11. Discuss and consider approval of a Resolution Of Support regarding the City Of 

Dripping Springs Application for Funding under the 2021 Texas Department of 

Transportation TASA Call for Projects Program for the construction of a pedestrian 

pathway on RR-12 and Event Center Dr. between the Founders Ridge subdivision, 

DSISD elementary school, Dripping Springs Ranch Park, and the Harrison Hills 

subdivision. 

3



12. Public hearing and consideration of possible action regarding SUB2021-0028: an 

application to consider a Replat for lots 1-A-1, Block A of Counts Tracts and Lot 3, Block 

A of Counts Estates Phase 1 for property located at 480 and 500 Butler Ranch Road, 

Dripping Springs, Texas 78620  (R128343 and R148097). The applicant is proposing to 

replat two (2) lots and request to allow an internal lot line between Lot 3, Block A Lot 1-

A-1, Block A to be adjusted. Applicant: Steven S. Crauford, P.E, Pape-Dawson Engineers, 

Inc.  

1. Presentation 

2. Staff Report 

3. Public Hearing 

4. Replat 

13. Public Hearing and consideration of a recommendation regarding CUP2021-0004: an 

application to consider a conditional use permit to allow for the use “Accessory 

Dwelling” located at 451 Oak Springs Drive, Dripping Springs, Texas. Applicant: Michael 

Cottone, Journey Remodeling.  

1. Presentation 

2. Staff Report 

3. Public Hearing 

4. Conditional Use Permit 

14. Public hearing and consideration of a recommendation regarding CUP2021-0002: an 

application for a Conditional Use Permit to consider a Conditional Use Permit to allow 

for the use “Mobile food vendor - longer than 10 days” located at 310 Old Fitzhugh Rd, 

Dripping Springs, Texas. Applicant: Dog 'n' Bone LLC 

1. Presentation 

2. Staff Report 

3. Public Hearing 

4. Conditional Use Permit 

15. Public hearing and consideration of a recommendation regarding CUP2021-0003: an 

application for a Conditional Use Permit to consider a Conditional Use Permit to allow 

the use “Bar” to be located at 310 Old Fitzhugh Rd, Dripping Springs, Texas. Applicant: 

Dog 'n' Bone LLC 

1. Presentation 

2. Staff Report 

3. Public Hearing 

4. Conditional Use Permit 

16. Public hearing and consideration of recommendation regarding VAR2021-0008: an 

application to consider a Special Exception to Parking Requirements for the property 

located at 249 Sportsplex Dr., Dripping Springs, TX 78620 (Legal Description: 1.293 

Acres in the JWLP FAMILY Survey, Lot 6, Hays County). The applicant is asking for 

a variance to Section 5.7.6 of the Zoning Ordinance which requires buildings with mixed 

uses to calculate parking requirements for the most intense use. As well as a variance to 

4



Section 5.6.2 Parking Based on use the applicant is proposing a different parking ratio 

for medical office. The last request is to utilize existing parking.  Applicant: Jon Thompson 

1. Presentation 

2. Staff Report 

3. Public Hearing 

4. Special Exception 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT REPORTS 

17. Development Agreement Working Group & Projects Report  

1. Cannon-Ashton Woods Planned Development District Draft 

2. Wild Ridge Planned Development District Draft 

3. Anarene Amended Development Agreement Draft 

18. May Planning Report 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Planning & Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to  discuss any matter as authorized by 

Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney),  551.072 (Deliberations about 

Real Property), 551.073 Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 Personnel Matters), 551.076 

(Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic Development). The Planning & Zoning 

Commission for the City of Dripping Springs may act on any item listed in Executive Session in Open 

Session or move any item from Executive Session to Open Session for action. 

19. Consultation with City Attorney regarding legal issues related to upcoming projects 

including Cannon-Ashton Woods, Cynosure/Wild Ridge, and Anarene/Double 

L.  Consultation with City Attorney, 551.071 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
June 22, 2021 at 6:0 p.m. 

July 13, 2021 at 6:0 p.m. 

July 27, 2021 at 6:0 p.m. 

City Council & Board of Adjustment Meetings 
June 8, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. (CC & BOA) 

June 15, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

July 6, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. (CC & BOA) 

July 20, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

ADJOURN 

TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT PUBLIC NOTIFICATION & POSTING OF MEETING 

All agenda items listed above are eligible for discussion and action unless otherwise specifically 

noted.  This notice of meeting is posted in accordance with Chapter 551, Government Code, Vernon's 

5



Texas Codes. Annotated.  In addition, the Commission may consider a vote to excuse the absence of any 

Commissioner for absence from this meeting. 

Due to the current Public Health Emergency and guidance from the Texas Governor including the current 

Disaster Declarations by the Governor and the City of Dripping Springs, and Center for Disease Control 

guidelines related to COVID-19, the City will continue with meetings conducted through 

videoconferencing. Texas Government Code Sections 551.045; 551.125; and 551.127. 

I certify that this notice of meeting was posted at the City of Dripping Springs City Hall and website, 

www.cityofdrippingsprings.com, on May 21, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 
City Secretary 

 

This facility is wheelchair accessible. Accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for auxiliary aids and 

services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting by calling (512) 858-4725. 

6



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  April 27, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 7 

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 

City of Dripping Springs 

Council Chambers, 511 Mercer St, Dripping Springs, TX 

Tuesday, April 27, 2021 at 6:30 PM 

MINUTES 

MEETING SPECIFIC VIDEOCONFERENCE INFORMATION 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86565563314?pwd=VEkyZ29PTnB3eW9HcDFjaDB1MnBlQT09 

 

Meeting ID: 865 6556 3314 

Passcode: 480758 

 

Dial Toll Free: 
        877 853 5257 US Toll-free 

        888 475 4499 US Toll-free 

 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdSOfD0a3i 

 

Join by Skype for Business: https://us02web.zoom.us/skype/86565563314 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Commission Members 
Mim James, Chair 

James Martin, Vice Chair 

Christian Bourguignon 

John McIntosh 

Roger Newman 

Evelyn Strong 

Tammie Williamson 

Staff, Consultants & Appointed/Elected Officials 
City Administrator Michelle Fischer 

Deputy City Administrator Ginger Faught 

City Attorney Laura Mueller 

City Secretary Andrea Cunningham 

Senior Planner Amanda Padilla 

City Engineer Chad Gilpin 

Architectural Consultant Keenan Smith 

Historic Preservation Commission Chair Bruce Lewis 

Historic Preservation Commissioner Ashely Bobel 

7

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  April 27, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 7 

With a quorum of the Commission present, Chair James called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Strong led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

PRESENTATION OF CITIZENS 

A member of the public who desires to address the Commission regarding any item on an agenda for an 

open meeting may do so at presentation of citizens before an item or at a public hearing for an item during 

the Commission’s consideration of that item. Citizens wishing to discuss matters not contained within the 

current agenda may do so, but only during the time allotted for presentation of citizens. Speakers are 

allowed two (2) minutes to speak during presentation of citizens or during each public hearing. Speakers 

may not cede or pool time. Members of the public requiring the assistance of a translator will be given 

twice the amount of time as a member of the public who does not require the assistance of a translator to 

address the Commission. It is the request of the Commission that members of the public wishing to speak 

on item(s) on the agenda with a noticed Public Hearing hold their comments until the item(s) are presented 

for consideration. Speakers are encouraged to sign in. Anyone may request a copy of the City’s policy on 

presentation of citizens from the city secretary. By law no action may be taken during Presentation of 

Citizens. 

 

No one spoke during Presentation of Citizens. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

The following items are anticipated to require little or no individualized discussion due to their nature 

being clerical, ministerial, mundane or routine. In an effort to enhance the efficiency of Planning & 

Zoning Commission meetings, it is intended that these items will be acted upon by the Planning & Zoning 

Commission with a single motion because no public hearing or determination is necessary. However, a 

Planning & Zoning Commission Member or citizen may request separate deliberation for a specific item, 

in which event those items will be removed from the consent agenda prior to the Planning & Zoning 

Commission voting on the consent agenda as a collective, singular item. Prior to voting on the consent 

agenda, the Planning & Zoning Commission may add additional items that are listed elsewhere on the 

same agenda. 

 

Via unanimous Consent, the Planning & Zoning Commission consider Consent Agenda Item 1 

individually. 

1. Approval of the March 23, 2021 Planning & Zoning Commission regular meeting 

minutes. 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to approve the March 23, 2021 Planning & Zoning 

Commission regular meeting minutes.  Commissioner McIntosh seconded the motion which 

carried 6 to 0 to 1, with Commissioner Strong abstaining. 

2. Recommendation of Approval of the Heritage TIA and required Transportation 

Improvements listed in the HDR technical memo. Applicant: Alex Granados, P.E. Kimley-

Horn & Associates 

 

 

8

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  April 27, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 7 

3. Disapproval of a plat for the reasons set forth in the item SUB2020-0040: a Final Plat 

for Esperanza Subdivision Phase 2 an approximately 52.40 acre tract of land located at 

4900 Bell Springs Road, Dripping Springs, Hays County, Texas. Applicant: Adrian Rosas, 

PE 

 

4. Approval of a plat with conditions set forth in the item SUB2021-0017: a Final Plat and 

Plat Vacation for Driftwood Subdivision Phase 1, Section 1, Lot 1, Block F an 

approximately 6.8292 acre tract of land located at 214 Thurman Roberts Way, generally 

located north of FM 1826, east of FM 150,  and south of Onion Creek, Driftwood, Hays 

County, Texas. Applicant: Stephen Delgado, Atwell, LLC.  

 

5. Disapproval of a plat for the reasons set forth in the item SUB2021-0019: a Final Plat 

and Plat Vacation for Bunker Ranch Phase 3 Block 3 Lots 15-19 an approximately 5.14 

acre tract of land located off Bunker Ranch Blvd (R15053), generally located south of 

the intersection of Bunker Ranch Blvd and Stockman Dr., Dripping Springs, Hays 

County, Texas. Applicant: Brian Estes, PE 

 

6. Disapproval of a plat for the reasons set forth in the item SUB2021-0020: a Preliminary 

Plat for the Overlook at Bunker Ranch an approximately 18.250-acre tract of land 

located at 2004 Creek Road, south of Highway 290, north of Creek Road (R143390), 

Dripping Springs, Hays County, Texas. Applicant: Brian Estes, PE 

 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to approve Consent Agenda Items 2 – 6.  Commissioner 

Bourguignon seconded the motion which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

Chair James noted that approval of the Consent Agenda includes the denial of Consent Agenda 

Items 3, 5 and 6. 

BUSINESS 

7. Public hearing and consideration of possible action regarding VAR2021-0005: an 

application for a variance to Chapter 28, Exhibit A, Section 14.2 Frontage and Section 

14.7 Minimum Lot Sizes. The property is located at 102 Rose Drive, Dripping Springs, 

TX (R15132). The applicant is requesting a variance to provide lot frontage on an access 

easement and to have a lot size of 0.748 acres. Applicant: Jon Thompson 

 

1. Presentation 

 

Jon Thompson presented the item and was available for questions from the Commission. 

 

2. Staff Report 

 

Amanda Padilla presented the staff report which is on file.  Staff recommends approval 

of the variance. 

  

3. Public Hearing – No one spoke during the Public Hearing. 

 

9

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  April 27, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 7 

4. Variance  

 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to approve VAR2021-0005: an application for 

a variance to Chapter 28, Exhibit A, Section 14.2 Frontage and Section 14.7 Minimum 

Lot Sizes. The property is located at 102 Rose Drive, Dripping Springs, TX (R15132).  

Commissioner McIntosh seconded the motion which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

8. Public hearing and consideration of possible action regarding VAR2021-0008: an 

application for a variance to Ordinance 30, Section 14 Standards and Specification 

Section J (5) Lot Frontage. The property is located at 823 Post Oak Drive, Dripping 

Springs, TX (R97685). The applicant is requesting a variance to provide lot frontage on 

an access easement. Applicant: Jon Thompson 

 

1. Presentation 

 

Jon Thompson presented the item and was available for questions from the Commission. 

 

2. Staff Report 

 

Amanda Padilla presented the staff report which is on file.  Staff recommends approval 

of the variance. 

 

3. Public Hearing – No one spoke during the Public Hearing. 

 

4. Variance  

 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to approve VAR2021-0008: an application for 

a variance to Ordinance 30, Section 14 Standards and Specification Section J (5) Lot 

Frontage, located at 823 Post Oak Drive, Dripping Springs, TX (R97685).  Commissioner 

Bourguignon seconded the motion which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

9. Public hearing and consideration of possible action regarding SUB2021-0021: an 

application to consider a Replat for lots 1B, 1C, and 1 D of the Caliche Hill Section 1 

Subdivision for property located at 245 and 264 American Way, Dripping Springs, 

Texas 78620 (R103064 and R103066) and 200 S Canyonwood Drive, Dripping Springs 

Texas 78620 (R103065). The applicant is proposing to replat three (3) lots into two (2) 

lots. Applicant: Joel Bock, Sunland Group 

 

1. Presentation 

 

Joel Bock presented the item. 

 

2. Staff Report 

 

Amanda Padilla presented the staff report which is on file.  Staff recommends approval 

of the replat, with the condition that the applicant agree to comply with the City Lighting 

Ordinance. 

 

10

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  April 27, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 7 

3. Public Hearing – No one spoke during the Public Hearing. 

 

4. Replat 

 

A motion was made by Vice Chair McIntosh to approve SUB2021-0021: an application 

to consider a Replat for lots 1B, 1C, and 1 D of the Caliche Hill Section 1 Subdivision 

for property located at 245 and 264 American Way, Dripping Springs, Texas 78620 

(R103064 and R103066) and 200 S Canyonwood Drive, Dripping Springs Texas 78620 

(R103065).  Commissioner Williamson seconded the motion which carried 6 to 0 to 1, 

with Commissioner Strong abstaining. 

10. Public hearing and consideration of a recommendation regarding ZA2021-0002: an 

application for a Zoning Amendment to consider a proposed zoning map amendment 

from Agriculture (AG) to Single-Family Residential District - Moderate Density (SF-2) 

for an approximately 52.88-acre tract of land and Multiple-Family Residential District 

(MF) for an approximately 27.269-acre tract of land situated in Benjamin F. Hanna 

Survey, No. 28, Abstract No. 222. This property is located at 2901 W US Highway 290, 

Dripping Springs, TX (R15103). Applicant: Brian Estes, Civil and Environmental 

Consultants Inc. 

 

1. Presentation 

 

Philip Southwick, Brian Estes, and Mac Holder gave a presentation which is on file. 

 

2. Staff Report 

 

Amanda Padilla presented the staff report which is on file.  Staff recommends the 

approval of the zoning amendment as originally submitted by the applicant.  However, 

the applicant is now proposing a new overlay which staff has not had the opportunity to 

review, and thus cannot provide a recommendation at this time. 

 

3. Public Hearing 

 

Patricia Van Buskirk spoke during the Public Hearing and addressed concerns related to 

traffic, property devaluation, and potential drainage issues.  She is not opposed to the 

zoning of SF-2, but has concerns related to MF. 

 

4. Zoning Amendment 

 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to postpone City Council recommendation of 

ZA2021-0002: an application for a Zoning Amendment to consider a proposed zoning 

map amendment from Agriculture (AG) to Single-Family Residential District - Moderate 

Density (SF-2) for an approximately 52.88-acre tract of land and Multiple-Family 

Residential District (MF) for an approximately 27.269-acre tract of land situated in 

Benjamin F. Hanna Survey, No. 28, Abstract No. 222 to the May 25, 2021, Planning & 

Zoning Commission regular meeting with direction to staff to re-notice for the proposed 

amendment.  Commissioner Strong seconded the motion which carried unanimously 7 to 

0. 

11

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  April 27, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 7 

 

11. Discuss and consider recommendation regarding amendments for the Certificate of 

Appropriateness Process and Mobile Food Vendors in the Mercer Street Historic 

District.  

Laura Mueller presented the staff report which is on file. 

Bruce Lewis presented the Historic Preservation Commission Report.   

Chair James opened a Public Hearing on this item. 

Pam Owens, President/CEO of the Dripping Springs Visitors Bureau, spoke in favor of having 

mobile food vendors on Mercer Street. 

 A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to recommend City Council approve an Ordinance 

related to the Certificate of Appropriateness procedures regarding the appeals process.  

Commissioner Newman seconded the motion which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

 A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to recommend City Council make no changes to 

Mobile Food Vendor ordinances in the Mercer Street Historic District while the code rewrite 

is underway.  Commissioner Williamson seconded the motion which carried 6 to 0 to 1, with 

Commissioner McIntosh abstaining.  

12. Discuss and consider recommendation related to adding an additional monthly meeting 

for the consideration of plats for a total of two meetings a month. 

Laura Mueller presented the staff report which is on file.   

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to recommend approval of the additional monthly 

Planning & Zoning Commission meeting, with the first meeting of the month for plats only 

and the second of the month for other business.  Commissioner Bourguignon seconded the 

motion which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT REPORTS 

 Reports are on file and available for review upon request. 

13. April 2021 Planning Report 

14. Unified Development Code Update Monthly Report 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Planning & Zoning Commission for the City of Dripping Springs has the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any matter as authorized by 

Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about 

Real Property), 551.073 Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 Personnel Matters), 551.076 

(Deliberations about Security Devices), and 551.086 (Economic Development). The Planning & Zoning 

Commission for the City of Dripping Springs may act on any item listed in Executive Session in Open 

Session or move any item from Executive Session to Open Session for action. 

12

Item 1.



 

Planning & Zoning Commission  April 27, 2021 

Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 7 

 The Commission did not meet in Executive Session. 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
May 25, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 

June 22, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 

July 27, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council Meetings 
May 11, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

May 18, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

June 8, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

June 15, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

ADJOURN 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Martin to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Strong 

seconded the motion which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

 This regular meeting adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

13

Item 1.



Planning and Zoning Commission  

Planning Department Staff Report 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
May 25, 2021 

Project No:  SUB2019-0062 

Project Planner:  Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Big Sky Ranch at Dripping Springs Phase 2 

Property Location: Off Lone Peak Way 

Legal Description: ABS 415 Philip A Smith Survey 

Applicant:  Chris Reid, P.E., Doucet and Associates, Inc. 

Property Owner: Meritage Homes of Texas, LLC 

Request: Final Plat Big Sky Ranch Phase 2 

Staff recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat  

14

Item 2.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview  

The applicant is requesting to Final Plat Big Sky Ranch at Dripping Springs Phase two. The Big Sky Ranch development 

is planned as a single-family residential development located northeast of the intersection of Ranch road 12 and US highway 

290, within the City of Dripping Springs City Limits. Big Sky Ranch Phase two is a portion of the Big Sky Ranch Concept 

Plan approved with the Big Sky Ranch Development Agreement and Planned Development District.  The 36-acre Final Plat 

consists of 188 residential lots out of the approved 780 residential lots.  

ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION 

Access to this project shall be from phase one of the Big sky Ranch development off Lone Peak Way. Access to Lone Peak 

Way will be through Founders Park Road. The approved Preliminary Plat shows additional future connections to the Cannon 

tract in the south, Carter tract to the west, Gary Morris tract to the east, and the ultimate extension of Lone Peak Way (the 

spine road) to the northeast as shown on the proposed amendment to the NE quadrant of the City of Dripping Springs Master 

Transportation Plan. 

SITE DRAINAGE AND WATER QUALITY 

The proposed drainage plan will capture and convey the developed condition runoff within underground storm sewers. The 

storm sewer system will discharge to one of five water quality ponds, four of which are also detention ponds. Runoff 

generated from Phase Two directly to the east of Phase One will flow into two batch detention water quality ponds that 

were constructed as part of Phase One. Additional runoff generated from Phase Two will flow to a proposed batch detention 

pond and a proposed extended detention pond. Runoff from the southwest portion of the Phase Two development will 

ultimately drain to Onion Creek and the rest of the site will drain to Barton Creek. The water quality and detention ponds 

are designed and sized for the proposed improvements to this site. 

 

Big Sky Ranch at Dripping Springs Phase 2 Final Plat utility providers are listed below: 

 

Water: Dripping Springs Water Supply Corporation   

Wastewater: City of Dripping Springs 

Electric: PEC 

 

Recommendation: 

The property is within a Development Agreement, all comments have been met and the proposed plat is consistent and 

complies with the development standards set forth in the Development Agreement and City Ordinances.  

Staff is recommending approval of the plat. 

 

Outstanding Comments: 

None  

Public Notification 

Signs were posted on the site; notice was placed on the City Website. 

Attachments 

Attachment 1 – Subdivision Application 

Attachment 2 – Big Sky Ranch Phase 2 Final Plat  
15

Item 2.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
 

Recommended Action Approve the Plat  

Alternatives/Options N/A 

Budget/Financial impact N/A 

Public comments None received at this time 

Enforcement Issues  N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Element N/A 

 

16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 
512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 2 of 7 

PROPERTY INFORMATION
PROPERTY OWNER NAME 

PROPERTY ADDRESS 

CURRENT LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

TAX ID# 

LOCATED IN 
☐ CITY LIMITS

☐ EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION

CURRENT LAND ACREAGE 

SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ESD DISTRICT(S) 

ZONING/PDD/OVERLAY 

EXISTING ROAD FRONTAGE 
☐ PRIVATE

☐ STATE

☐ CITY/COUNTY (PUBLIC)

NAME:  _______________________________    

NAME:  _______________________________      

NAME:  _______________________________      

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT? 
(If so please attach agreement) 

☐ YES (SEE ATTACHED) ☐ NOT APPLICABLE

NAME: _______________________________       

ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION

IS PROPERTY OVER THE EDWARDS AQUIFER RECHARGE ZONE? ☐ YES          ☐ NO

IS PROPERTY OVER THE BARTON SPRINGS CONTRIBUTING ZONE TO THE EDWARDS AQUIFER? ☐ YES          ☐ NO

IS PROPERTY WITHIN A FEMA FLOODPLAIN AS DEFINED BY THE MOST CURRENT FIRM? ☐ YES          ☐ NO

Meritage Homes of Texas, LLC
Lone Peak Way
ABS 415 Philip A Smith Survey
R18077

35.92
Hays ISD

#6

PDD #10

Lone Peak Way

18

Item 2.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 
512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 3 of 7 

PROJECT INFORMATION
PROPOSED SUBDIVISION NAME 

TOTAL ACREAGE OF DEVELOPMENT 

TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTS 

AVERAGE SIZE OF LOTS 

INTENDED USE OF LOTS ☐ RESIDENTIAL ☐ COMMERCIAL ☐ INDUSTRIAL/OTHER

# OF LOTS PER USE 

RESIDENTIAL: _________________ 

COMMERCIAL: _________________ 

INDUSTRIAL/OTHER: _________________ 

# OF ACREAGE PER USE 

RESIDENTIAL: _________________ 

COMMERCIAL: _________________ 

INDUSTRIAL/OTHER: _________________ 

LINEAR FEET (ADDED) OF PROPOSED 
ROADS 

PUBLIC: _________________ 

PRIVATE: _________________ 

ANTICIPATED WASTEWATER SYSTEM 

☐ CONVENTIONAL SEPTIC SYSTEM

☐ CLASS I (AEROBIC) PERMITTED SYSTEM

☐ PUBLIC SEWER

WATER SOURCES 

SURFACE WATER GROUND WATER*

☐ PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY

☐ RAINWATER

☐ PUBLIC WELL

☐ SHARED WELL

☐ PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY

*IF DOING WATER PROVISION FOR THE DEVELOPMENT USING GROUNDWATER RESOURCES, THE HAYS-TRINITY
GROUNDWATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT MUST BE NOTIFIED:

☐ YES ☐ NO ☐ NOT APPLICABLEHAYS-TRINITY GCD NOTIFIED?  

COMMENTS:  

TITLE: _______________________________________ SIGNATURE:  ________________________________________ 

Big Sky Ranch, Phase Two
35.92
188
34x115, 45x120

188
0

0

35.92
0

0

6720

19

Item 2.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 
512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 4 of 7 

COMPLIANCE WITH OUTDOOR LIGHTING ORDINANCE? * 
(See attached agreement). 

* If proposed subdivision is in the City Limits, compliance with Lighting Ordinance is mandatory. If proposed subdivision is in
the ETJ, compliance is mandatory when required by a Development Agreement or as a condition of an Alternative
Standard/Special Exception/Variance/Waiver.

Voluntary compliance is strongly encouraged by those not required by above criteria (see Outdoor Lighting tab on the CODS 
webpage and online Lighting Ordinance under Code of Ordinances tab for more information). 

PUBLIC UTILITY CHECKLIST 

ELECTRIC PROVIDER NAME ____________________________________________________________________ 

☐ VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED ☐ NOT APPLICABLE

COMMUNICATIONS PROVIDER NAME ______________________________________________________________ 

☐ VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED ☐ NOT APPLICABLE

WATER PROVIDER NAME (IF APPLICABLE) ____________________________________________________ 

☐ VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED ☐ NOT APPLICABLE

SEWER PROVIDER NAME (IF APPLICABLE) _________________________________________________________ 

☐ VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED ☐ NOT APPLICABLE

GAS PROVIDER NAME (IF APPLICABLE) ______________________________________________________________  

☐ VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED ☐ NOT APPLICABLE

PARKLAND DEDICATION? AGRICULTURE FACILITIES (Final Plat)? 

☐ YES          ☐ NOT APPLICABLE ☐ YES          ☐ NOT APPLICABLE

☐ YES (REQUIRED)* ☐ YES (VOLUNTARY* ☐ NO

20

Item 2.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


21

Item 2.



PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 
512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 6 of 7 

SUBDIVISION APPLICATION SUBMITTAL 

For Projects within the ETJ, per the City of Dripping Springs Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with Hays 
County, a county subdivision application must also be submitted for review. 

PLEASE SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE COUNTY (at www.mygovernmentonline.org): 

☐ SCREENSHOT/PROOF OF SUBMITTAL– INCLUDED IN DIGITAL SUBMISSION TO CITY

☐ NOT APPLICABLE

PRELIMINARY PLAT CHECKLIST 
Section 3.7, Subdivision Ordinance 

STAFF APPLICANT 
Completed Application Form - including all required notarized signatures 
Application Fee (refer to Fee Schedule) $ 
Digital Copies/PDF of all submitted items - please provide a coversheet outlining what digital 
contents are included on the CD/USB drive. 

County Application Submittal - proof of online submission (if applicable) 
ESD #6 Application (if applicable) 
$240 Fee for ESD #6 Application (if applicable) 
Billing Contact Form 
Engineer’s Summary Report 
Preliminary Drainage Study 
Preliminary Plats (3 copies required -11 x17) 
Tax Certificates- verifying that property taxes are current 
Copy of Notice Letter to the School District - notifying of preliminary submittal 

Outdoor Lighting Ordinance Compliance Agreement 
Development Agreement/PDD (if applicable) 
Utility Service Provider Letters 

Driveway Permit Application (TxDOT, County, City) - showing either approval, or as 
submitted 
Parkland Dedication Submittal (narrative, fees,) 

$25 Public Notice Sign Fee 

All required items and information (including all applicable below listed exhibits and fees) must be received by the 
City for an application and request to be considered complete. Incomplete submissions will not be accepted. By 
signing below, I acknowledge that I have read through and met all requirements for a complete submittal: 

Applicant Signature Date 

22

Item 2.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/
http://www.mygovernmentonline.org/
dnewell
Line

dnewell
Line



PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 
512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 7 of 7 

FINAL, REPLAT, & AMENDED PLAT CHECKLIST 
Section 3.7, Subdivision Ordinance 

STAFF APPLICANT 
Completed Application Form - including all required notarized signatures 
Application Fee (refer to Fee Schedule) $ 
Digital Copies/PDF of all submitted items – please provide a coversheet outlining what digital 
contents are included on the CD/USB drive. 
County Application Submittal - proof of online submission (if applicable) 
ESD #6 Application (if applicable) 
$240 Fee for ESD #6 Application (if applicable) 
Billing Contact Form 
Engineer’s Summary 
Drainage Report – if not included in Engineer’s Summary Report 
Geotech Report (if applicable) 
Water Quality Maintenance Plan 
Pesticide & Fertilizer Management Plan 
Integrated Pest Management Plan 
Final Plats (1 copy of half sized plans to scale)
Copy of Current configuration of plat (if applicable) 
Copy of Preliminary Plat (if applicable) 
Construction Plans (1 reduced - half-size to scale) (as applicable) 

Digital Data (GIS) of Subdivision 

Tax Certificates - verifying that property taxes are current 
Copy of Notice Letter to The School District - revised for final submittal 
Outdoor Lighting Ordinance Compliance Agreement 
Development Agreement/PDD (if applicable) 
Utility Service Provider Letters – verifying their easements 
Driveway Permit Application (TxDOT, County, City) - showing either approval, or as submitted 
Cost Estimate of Public Improvements (If in City Limits, all public improvements to include 
water, wastewater (as applicable to sewer), roads, drainage, curbs, sidewalks, etc.) (if applicable)
“Letter of Satisfactory Completion” (see below) (if applicable) 

Article 28 Sec. 5.2 “Letter of Satisfactory Completion” (of the public improvements) 
from the City, and other required information, including documentation that all 
required public improvements have been constructed and installed in accordance 
with City standards, letters from utility companies verifying their easements, and 
submission of the proper assurances or escrow funds for the completion of the 
improvements will be considered incomplete, shall not be accepted for submission 
by the City, and shall not be considered by the City Administrator or scheduled on a 
P&Z or City Council agenda until the proper information is provided to City staff. 

Ag Facility Fees - $35 per residential LUE (if applicable) 
Parkland Dedication Fees (if applicable) 

$25 Public Notice Sign Fee 

84,850

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

■

23

Item 2.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


24

Item 2.



25

Item 2.



26

Item 2.



27

Item 2.



28

Item 2.



29

Item 2.



Planning and Zoning Commission  
Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
May 25, 2020 

Project No:  SUB2020-0022 

Project Planner:  Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Big Sky Ranch at Dripping Springs Tract 2 Preliminary Plat 

Property Location: Lone Peak Way, Dripping Springs Texas 

Legal Description: 
Being a 12.233 acre tract of land out of the I.V. DAVIS, JR. PREEMPTION 

SURVEY, abstract number 673, Hays County, Texas 

Applicant: Chris Reid, P.E., Doucet and Associates, Inc.  

Property Owner: Meritage Homes of Texas, LLC 

Request: 
Applicant is requesting to Preliminary Plat Big Sky Ranch at Dripping Springs 

Tract 2 

Staff recommendation: Staff is recommending approval of the Preliminary Plat 

30

Item 3.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview  

The applicant is requesting to Preliminary Plat Big Sky Ranch at Dripping Springs Tract 2. The Preliminary plat of Tract 

2 is approximately 12.233 acres. The property is generally located North of US Hwy 290 and east of Ranch Road 12 

within the City’s City Limits. The property is zoned Planned Development District 10.  The property is currently 

undeveloped. The preliminary plat proposes 41 lots with 35 lots being single-family lots. Tract 2 of Big Sky Ranch was 

added to the Planned Development District 10 on June 9, 2020 by City Council. Based on the PDD, Tract 2 is permitted 

38 dwelling units. Tract 2 will also provide an additional 0.6 acres of parkland. 

 

 

The Big Sky Ranch Tract 1 was annexed and subsequently zoned to PDD 10, with a base zoning district of SF-3 on 

October 16, 2018. The original boundary of this Planned Development District had a maximum density of 780 LUEs and 

has 256 lots platted thus far since being zoned into the city. Homes are actively being built within Tract 1.  

 

 

 

 

 
31

Item 3.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
The Preliminary Plat utility providers are listed below: 

Wastewater- City of Dripping Springs 

Water – Dripping Springs Water Supply Corporation  

Electric- Pedernales Electric Cooperative  

Recommendation: 

The property is within a Planned Development District, all comments have been met and the proposed plat is consistent 

and complies with the development standards set forth in the Planned Development District and City Ordinances.  

Staff is recommending approval of the plat.  

 

Outstanding Comments: 

None 

Public Notification 

Signs were posted on the site; notice was placed on the City Website. 

Meetings Schedule 

December 16, 2020 Planning and Zoning Commission  

May 25, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments 

Attachment 1 – Subdivision Application 

Attachment 2 – Big Sky Ranch at Dripping Springs Tract 2 Preliminary Plat  

 

Recommended Action Approve the plat. 

Alternatives/Options N/A 

Budget/Financial impact N/A 

Public comments None received at this time 

Enforcement Issues  N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Element N/A 

 

32

Item 3.



33

Item 3.



34

Item 3.



35

Item 3.



36

Item 3.



37

Item 3.



38

Item 3.



39

Item 3.



40

Item 3.



41

Item 3.



42

Item 3.



43

Item 3.



44

Item 3.



45

Item 3.



46

Item 3.



47

Item 3.



48

Item 3.



 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 

P& Z Meeting: May 25, 2021 

Project Number:  SUB2020-0028 – CRTX Preliminary Plat 

 SUB2020-0029 – CRTX Final Plat 

Project Planner: Robyn Miga, Consulting Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: CRTX Addition 

Property Location:   27110 RR 12 

Legal Description:  Approximately 8.57 acres out of the P.A. Smith Survey, Abstract No. 415, City of 

Dripping Springs, Hays County, Texas 

Applicant: Doug Cobb 

Property Owner: CRTX Development, LLC c/o Doug Cobb   

Request: Preliminary and Final Plat 

Property Location 

 
49

Item 4.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Action Requested 

 

Disapproval for the reasons set forth in the items applications for a Preliminary Plat (SUB2020-0028) and Final Plat 

(SUB2020-0029), consisting of approximately 8.57 acres out of the P.A. Smith Survey, Abstract No. 415, generally 

located south of Sports Park Road, east of RR 12, and west of Rob Shelton Blvd., to be known as CRTX Addition.  

 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

The Subject property is located south of Sports Park Road, east of RR 12, and west of Rob Shelton Blvd.   

 

Physical and Natural Features:  

The property is mostly flat with moderate tree coverage. The site is also an existing manufactured housing park.  

 

Zoning Designation:   
The property is zoned Planned Development District No. 11, with a base zoning district of Multi-Family Residential 

(MF), adopted by Ordinance No. 2020-14. 

 

Property History  

The property was zoned to Planned Development District No. 11 under Ordinance No. 2020-14 in May 2020. This is the 

first time these plat applications have been considered.  

 

Outstanding Comments 

Staff analyzed the proposed plats (SUB2020-0028, and SUB2020-0029) against the city’s code of ordinances, and the 

comments are attached are left outstanding.  

 

Recommendation 

 

Staff is recommending denial of the request based on the reasons set forth in item, including all attachments.  

 
Attachments 

Attachment 1 – Proposed Preliminary Plat  

Attachment 2 – Proposed Final Plat 

Attachment 3 – Staff Comments 

 

 

Recommended Action: Recommend denial of the request.   

Budget/Financial Impact:    All fees have been paid.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

50

Item 4.



STATE OF TEXAS §
CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS §
COUNTY OF HAYS §

THE SUBDIVIDER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF ALL STREETS AND FACILITIES NEEDED TO
SERVE THE LOTS WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION.

APPROVED BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS FOR FILING AT THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK OF HAYS
COUNTY, TEXAS.

APPROVED BY: PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION - CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, TEXAS.

MIM JAMES                                                                                                DATE
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION CHAIR

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION:

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR IN THE STATE OF TEXAS, HEREBY
CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT IS TRUE AND CORRECT, THAT IT WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF THE
PROPERTY  MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION ON THE GROUND, AND THAT ALL NECESSARY SURVEY
MONUMENTS ARE CORRECTLY SET OR FOUND AS SHOWN THEREON.

JOHN BRAUTIGAM DATE
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR
NO. 5057 - STATE OF TEXAS
DELTA SURVEY GROUP, INC.
8213 BRODIE LANE, SUITE 102
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78745
TBPLS FIRM NO. 10004700

ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION:

I, AARON PESEK,  A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER IN THE STATE OF TEXAS, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT
PROPER ENGINEERING CONSIDERATION HAS BEEN GIVEN THIS PLAT.

__________ _____________________________ _____________
AARON PESEK, P.E. DATE
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER NO. 93959
BRUSHY CREEK ENGINEERING, LLC
P.O. BOX 1002
ROUND ROCK, TEXAS 78680
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. F-13324

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF HAYS §
KNOW ALL THESE MEN BY PRESENTS:

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT CRTX DEVELOPMENT LLC, BEING THE OWNER OF A 7.82 ACRE
TRACT OF LAND AND A 0.75 ACRE TRACT OF LAND OUT OF THE P.A. SMITH SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 415, HAYS
COUNTY, TEXAS, CONVEYED BY SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 20025433, OF THE
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, DO HEREBY SUBDIVIDE 8.59 ACRES OF LAND, TO BE
KNOWN AS "CRTX ADDITION", IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLAT SHOWN HEREON, SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL
EASEMENTS OR RESTRICTIONS HERETOFORE GRANTED, AND DOES HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE PUBLIC THE
USE OF THE STREETS AND EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON.

WITNESS MY HAND THIS _______ DAY OF _______________, 20_______________________.

_______________________________________________________________________
DOUG COBB
OWNER

BEFORE ME, A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE OF TEXAS, ON THIS DAY PERSONALLY APPEARED
STEVEN MICHAEL SLEDGE KNOWN TO BE THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE FOREGOING
INSTRUMENT OF WRITING, AND HE ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME FOR THE
PURPOSES AND CONSIDERATIONS THEREIN EXPRESSED AND IN THE CAPACITY THEREIN STATED.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE THIS _______ DAY OF ______________, 20_____.

(SEAL)

                               ____________________________________________
                               NOTARY PUBLIC'S SIGNATURE

LEINHOLDER CONSENT:

____________________________________________
COMPANY NAME

____________________________________________
REPRESENTATIVE

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

SEWAGE DISPOSAL/INDIVIDUAL WATER SUPPLY CERTIFICATION TO-WIT:

NO STRUCTURE IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTED TO AN INDIVIDUAL WATER
SUPPLY OR STATE-APPROVED COMMUNITY WATER SYSTEM. DUE TO DECLINING WATER SUPPLIES AND
DIMINISHING WATER QUALITY, PROSPECTIVE PROPERTY OWNERS ARE CAUTIONED BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING
SPRINGS TO QUESTION THE SELLER CONCERNING GROUND WATER AVAILABILITY. RAIN WATER COLLECTION
IS ENCOURAGED AND IN SOME AREAS MAY OFFER THE BEST RENEWABLE WATER RESOURCE.

NO STRUCTURE IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTED TO A PUBLIC SEWER SYSTEM
OR TO AN ON-SITE WASTEWATER SYSTEM WHICH HAS BEEN APPROVED AND PERMITTED BY THE CITY OF
DRIPPING SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT SERVICES.

CHAD GILPIN, P.E.                                                                                              DATE
CITY ENGINEER

PRELIMINARY - NOT FOR RECORDATION

SHEET
1

OF
2

Delta Survey Group Inc.
8213 BRODIE LANE  STE. 102   AUSTIN, TX. 78745

OFFICE: (512) 282-5200  FAX: (512) 282-5230
TBPLS FIRM NO. 10004700

PREPARATION DATE: 9/29/20

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF HAYS §

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
THAT, ELAINE HANSON CARDENAS, COUNTY CLERK OF HAYS COUNTY COURT DOES HEREBY CERTIFY THAT
THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT OF WRITING AND THE CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION WAS FILED FOR
RECORDS IN MY OFFICE ON THE___DAY OF_______________20___A.D. IN THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF SAID
COUNTY AND STATE IN DOCUMENT NUMBER ________________ WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE OF
COUNTY CLERK OF SAID COUNTY ON THIS THE___DAY OF ________________, 20___. FILED FOR RECORD AT
________O'CLOCK __.M.  THIS THE ___DAY OF ________________, 20___A.D.

ELAINE HANSON CARDENAS
COUNTY CLERK
HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

PLAT ESTABLISHING

CRTX ADDITION
8.59 ACRES

OUT OF THE P.A. SMITH SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 415,
CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS

HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

FLOODPLAIN NOTE:
THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED WITHIN ZONE "X", AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL
CHANCE FLOODPLAIN, AS SHOWN ON F.I.R.M. PANEL NO. 48209C0115F, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS DATED
SEPTEMBER 2, 2005. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR THE STRUCTURES
THEREON WILL BE FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE.

JURISDICTION PLAT NOTES:
1. THIS SUBDIVISION IS WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS.
2. THIS SUBDIVISION IS WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE DRIPPING SPRINGS INDEPENDENT SCHOOL

DISTRICT.
3. THIS SUBDIVISION IS ENTIRELY WITHIN THE NORTHEAST HAYS COUNTY ESD #1 FOR EMS SERVICE.
4. THIS SUBDIVISION IS ENTIRELY WITHIN THE NORTHEAST HAYS COUNTY ESD #6 FOR FIRE SERVICE.
5. THIS SUBDIVISION IS ENTIRELY WITHIN DISTRICT 1 OF THE HAYS-TRINITY GROUNDWATER CONSERVATION

DISTRICT.
6. THIS SUBDIVISION IS WITHIN THE EDWARDS AQUIFER CONTRIBUTING ZONE.

GENERAL NOTES
1. DRIPPING SPRINGS WILL MAINTAIN ALL PUBLIC STREETS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ROAD AGREEMENT

DATED MAY 12TH, 2020 BETWEEN THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS AND CRTX DEVELOPMENT, LLC
RECORDED IN DOC#  , PUBLIC RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY.

2. NO CONSTRUCTION OR OTHER DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION MAY BEGIN UNTIL ALL
APPLICABLE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT PERMIT REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN MET.

3. THIS SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS PARKLAND DEDICATION REQUIREMENT
PER THE PARK PLAN PREPARED FOR THIS SUBDIVISION.

4. THE PARKS AND OPEN SPACE SHALL BE PRIVATELY DEDICATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ZONING
REQUIREMENTS OF THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT.

5. WASTEWATER FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT WILL BE PROVIDE  BY DRIPPING SPRINGS.
6. ROADWAY DESIGN STANDARDS WILL BE TO CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS STANDARDS.
7. THIS SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT No. 11 (KNOWN AS PDD2019-0001 -

27110 RR 12), APPROVED BY THE DRIPPING SPRING CITY COUNCIL ON MAY 12, 2020 AND RECORDED ON MAY
21, 2020 AS DOC# 20019802 IN THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS.

8. THIS SUBDIVISION IS REQUIRED TO BE COMPLIANT WITH CITY FIRE CODE AT THE TIME OF DEVELOPMENT,
AS AMENDED.

9. MINIMUM BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHALL COMPLY WITH THE ZONING AT THE TIME OF DEVELOPMENT.
10. SIDEWALKS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE DRIPPING SPRINGS UNIFIED

DEVELOPMENT CODE. SIDEWALKS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS.
11. EASEMENTS: ANY PUBLIC UTILITY, INCLUDING CITY, SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO MOVE AND KEEP MOVED

ALL OR PART OF ANY BUILDING, FENCE, TREES, SHRUBS OTHER GROWTHS OR IMPROVEMENTS WHICH IN
ANY WAY ENDANGER OR INTERFERE WITH THE CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, OR EFFICIENCY OF ITS
RESPECTIVE SYSTEMS ON ANY OF THE EASEMENTS OR RIGHT-OF-WAY SHOWN ON THE PLAT (OR FILED BY
SEPARATE INSTRUMENT THAT IS ASSOCIATED WITH SAID PROPERTY); AND ANY PUBLIC UTILITY,
INCLUDING THE CITY, SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT AT ALL TIMES OF INGRESS AND EGRESS TO AND FROM AND
UPON SAID EASEMENTS FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTION, RECONSTRUCTION, INSPECTION,
PATROLLING, MAINTAINING AND ADDING TO OR REMOVING ALL OR PART OF ITS RESPECTIVE SYSTEMS
WITHOUT THE NECESSITY AT ANY TIME OF PROCURING THE PERMISSION OF ANYONE. EASEMENTS SHALL
BE MAINTAINED BY PROPERTY OWNERS. THE CITY CAN MOVE TREES OR ANY OTHER IMPROVEMENTS AND
DOES NOT HAVE THE RESPONSIBILITY TO REPLACE THEM.

12. STORMWATER AND DETENTION FACILITIES LOCATED ON LOT 1 ARE TO BE MAINTAINED BY THE OWNER
OF LOT 1.  THESE INCLUDE ANY ADDITIONAL FACILITIES LOCATED ON LOT 1 THAT TREAT RUNOFF FROM
THE ROB SHELTON EXTENSION.

SLOPE INFORMATION
NO SLOPES WITHIN THIS PLAT EXCEED 15%

UTILITY NOTES
1. WASTEWATER UTILITY SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS.
2. WATER UTILITY SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY THE DRIPPING SPRINGS WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION.
3. ELECTRIC UTILITY SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY PEC.
4. TELEPHONE UTILITY SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY TIME WARNER CABLE OR SIMILAR AUTHORIZED

UTILITY PROVIDER.
5. GAS UTILITY SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY TEXAS GAS SERVICE.

TRAIL EASEMENT DEDICATION - 0.43Ac.
TO BE ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC AND MAINTAINED BY OWNER OR HOA.

SUBDIVISION ROADS
PUBLIC STREET DEDICATION - ROB SHELTON BLVD 60' ROW (0.68Ac.)

STREET SUMMARY
STREET NAME (CLASSIFICATION)                     ROW              LENGTH       PAVEMENT WIDTH

                            WIDTH                 (LF)     (F-F)
ROB SHELTON BOULEVARD (COLLECTOR)          60'     491.3'   VARIES' C&G

PRELIMINARY - NOT FOR RECORDATION

51

Item 4.



SHEET
2

OF
2

Delta Survey Group Inc.
8213 BRODIE LANE  STE. 102   AUSTIN, TX. 78745

OFFICE: (512) 282-5200  FAX: (512) 282-5230
TBPLS FIRM NO. 10004700

PREPARATION DATE: 9/29/20

N87°47'14"E  913.25'

N87°47'44"E
206.45'

S01°31'53"E
164.85'

S01°34'54"E
326.63'

S88°06'52"W  1005.20'

N
18°38'45"W

  317.34'

A = 17.15'
R =1597.42'
D =0°36'55"
B =N18°10'12"W
C =17.15'

LOT 1
7.91 ACRES

15' B
.L.

10' TRAIL EASEMENT

10' ELECTRICAL UTILITY EASEMENT
VOL. 1393, PG. 301

O.P.R.H.C.TX
10' GTE EASEMENT AND ROW

VOL. 1063, PG. 853
O.P.R.H.C.TX

10' WATERLINE EASEMENT
VOL. 199, PG. 639

O.P.R.H.C.TX

10' TRAIL EASEMENT

10' TRAIL
EASEMENT

S01°34'54"E  327.00'
S01°31'53"E  164.15'

60.00'146.45'

60.00'

80.19'

80.35'

82.02 ACRES
VIKTOR KOPPONEN AND SIRKKA KOPPONEN

VOL. 1265, PG. 776
O.P.R.H.C.TX

40 ACRES
CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS

VOL. 1462, PG. 671
O.P.R.H.C.TX

SURVEY CONTROL DATA & BEARING BASIS:
TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, SOUTH CENTRAL ZONE, NAD83/CORS
PROJECT CONTROL POINTS WERE ESTABLISHED USING THE 'SMARTNET' RTK NETWORK.

SURVEY CONTROL MONUMENT
C.O.A. MONUMENT E344
GRID COORDINATES
N=10055821.99
E=3093670.81
C.S.F. = 0.99997207
ELEVATION = 678.33' NAVD 88

BENCHMARK LIST:

BM #1 COTTON SPINDLE SET IN UTILITY POLE (SOUTH ROW SPORTS PARK RD.)
ELEV.= 1163.91'

BM #2 COTTON SPINDLE SET IN UTILITY POLE (EAST ROW RR12)
ELEV = 1142.93'

CHESTNUT RIDGE
SUBDIVISION
VOL. 6, PG. 121

O.P.R.H.C.T.

LOT
1

LOT
2

LOT
3

LOT
4

LOT
5

LOT
10

LOT 9

MAGIC GREENS
SUBDIVISION
VOL. 12, PG. 81

O.P.R.H.C.T.

LOT
1 LOT

2

P. A. SMITH SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 415
HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

SEPTEMBER 2020

GRAPHIC SCALE
1" = 100'

300'200'100'0'

10' ELECTRICAL UTILITY EASEMENT
VOL. 1393, PG. 301

O.P.R.H.C.TX
10' BTE EASEMENT AND ROW

VOL. 1063, PG. 853
O.P.R.H.C.TX

LEGEND

O.P.R.H.C.TX OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

1/2 INCH IRON ROD WITH "4160" CAP FOUND
1/2 INCH IRON ROD WITH "DELTA SURVEY" CAP SET
3/4 INCH IRON PIPE FOUND
TXDOT TYPE I CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND

4.36 ACRES
SPRING VALLEY FELLOWSHIP

D/B/A CHURCH OF THE SPRINGS
VOL. 2535, PG. 838

O.P.R.H.C.TX

N
07°13'47"W

165.51'

PLAT ESTABLISHING

CRTX ADDITION
8.59 ACRES

OUT OF THE P.A. SMITH SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 415,
CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS

HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

ELEVATION BENCHMARK

BM #1

BM #2

1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND

RA
N

CH
 RO

A
D

 12

(RO
W

 80')

S R
O

B
 SH

ELTO
N

 B
O

U
LEV

A
R

D
(R

O
W

 60')

SPORTS PARK ROAD
(ROW 60')

S R
O

B
 SH

ELTO
N

 B
O

U
LEV

A
R

D
(R

O
W

 60')  (H
ER

EB
Y

 D
ED

IC
A

TED
 B

Y
 TH

IS PLA
T)

0.68 A
C

R
ES

CHESTNUT RID
GE

(R
OW 60

')

NEEDHAM ROAD

(ROW 60')

490.34'
422.92'

573.69'
371.51'

15' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

10' TRAIL EASEMENT

15' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

15' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

SPORTS PARK ROAD

R
O

B
 S

H
EL

TO
N

 B
LV

D

190

BUTLER RANCH ROAD

EAST HWY 290

R
R

12

RR12

SITE LOCATION

NEEDHAM RD

MERCER ST

DRIPPING
SPRINGS

CITY HALL

CITY LIMITS
ETJ

ETJ

CITY LIMITS
ETJ

SITE LOCATION MAP
SCALE 1"=2000'

52

Item 4.



SHEET
1

OF
2

Delta Survey Group Inc.
8213 BRODIE LANE  STE. 102   AUSTIN, TX. 78745

OFFICE: (512) 282-5200  FAX: (512) 282-5230
TBPLS FIRM NO. 10004700

PREPARATION DATE: 9/29/20

PLAT ESTABLISHING

CRTX ADDITION
8.59 ACRES

OUT OF THE P.A. SMITH SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 415,
CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS

HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

STATE OF TEXAS §
CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS §
COUNTY OF HAYS §

THE SUBDIVIDER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF ALL STREETS AND FACILITIES NEEDED TO
SERVE THE LOTS WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION.

APPROVED BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS FOR FILING AT THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK OF HAYS
COUNTY, TEXAS.

APPROVED BY: PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION - CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, TEXAS.

MIM JAMES                                                                                                DATE
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION CHAIR

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION:

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR IN THE STATE OF TEXAS, HEREBY
CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT IS TRUE AND CORRECT, THAT IT WAS PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF THE
PROPERTY  MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION ON THE GROUND, AND THAT ALL NECESSARY SURVEY
MONUMENTS ARE CORRECTLY SET OR FOUND AS SHOWN THEREON.

JOHN BRAUTIGAM DATE
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR
NO. 5057 - STATE OF TEXAS
DELTA SURVEY GROUP, INC.
8213 BRODIE LANE, SUITE 102
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78745
TBPLS FIRM NO. 10004700

ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION:

I, AARON PESEK,  A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER IN THE STATE OF TEXAS, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT
PROPER ENGINEERING CONSIDERATION HAS BEEN GIVEN THIS PLAT.

__________ _____________________________ _____________
AARON PESEK, P.E. DATE
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER NO. 93959
BRUSHY CREEK ENGINEERING, LLC
P.O. BOX 1002
ROUND ROCK, TEXAS 78680
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. F-13324

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF HAYS §
KNOW ALL THESE MEN BY PRESENTS:

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT CRTX DEVELOPMENT LLC, BEING THE OWNER OF A 7.82 ACRE
TRACT OF LAND AND A 0.75 ACRE TRACT OF LAND OUT OF THE P.A. SMITH SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 415, HAYS
COUNTY, TEXAS, CONVEYED BY SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 20025433, OF THE
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, DO HEREBY SUBDIVIDE 8.59 ACRES OF LAND, TO BE
KNOWN AS "CRTX ADDITION", IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLAT SHOWN HEREON, SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL
EASEMENTS OR RESTRICTIONS HERETOFORE GRANTED, AND DOES HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE PUBLIC THE
USE OF THE STREETS AND EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON.

WITNESS MY HAND THIS _______ DAY OF _______________, 20_______________________.

_______________________________________________________________________
DOUG COBB
OWNER

BEFORE ME, A NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE OF TEXAS, ON THIS DAY PERSONALLY APPEARED
STEVEN MICHAEL SLEDGE KNOWN TO BE THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE FOREGOING
INSTRUMENT OF WRITING, AND HE ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME FOR THE
PURPOSES AND CONSIDERATIONS THEREIN EXPRESSED AND IN THE CAPACITY THEREIN STATED.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE THIS _______ DAY OF ______________, 20_____.

(SEAL)

                               ____________________________________________
                               NOTARY PUBLIC'S SIGNATURE

LEINHOLDER CONSENT:

____________________________________________
COMPANY NAME

____________________________________________
REPRESENTATIVE

ADDRESS FOR NOTICES:

SEWAGE DISPOSAL/INDIVIDUAL WATER SUPPLY CERTIFICATION TO-WIT:

NO STRUCTURE IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTED TO AN INDIVIDUAL WATER
SUPPLY OR STATE-APPROVED COMMUNITY WATER SYSTEM. DUE TO DECLINING WATER SUPPLIES AND
DIMINISHING WATER QUALITY, PROSPECTIVE PROPERTY OWNERS ARE CAUTIONED BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING
SPRINGS TO QUESTION THE SELLER CONCERNING GROUND WATER AVAILABILITY. RAIN WATER COLLECTION
IS ENCOURAGED AND IN SOME AREAS MAY OFFER THE BEST RENEWABLE WATER RESOURCE.

NO STRUCTURE IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTED TO A PUBLIC SEWER SYSTEM
OR TO AN ON-SITE WASTEWATER SYSTEM WHICH HAS BEEN APPROVED AND PERMITTED BY THE CITY OF
DRIPPING SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT SERVICES.

CHAD GILPIN, P.E.                                                                                              DATE
CITY ENGINEER

PRELIMINARY - NOT FOR RECORDATION

STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF HAYS §

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
THAT, ELAINE HANSON CARDENAS, COUNTY CLERK OF HAYS COUNTY COURT DOES HEREBY CERTIFY THAT
THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT OF WRITING AND THE CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION WAS FILED FOR
RECORDS IN MY OFFICE ON THE___DAY OF_______________20___A.D. IN THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF SAID
COUNTY AND STATE IN DOCUMENT NUMBER ________________ WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE OF
COUNTY CLERK OF SAID COUNTY ON THIS THE___DAY OF ________________, 20___. FILED FOR RECORD AT
________O'CLOCK __.M.  THIS THE ___DAY OF ________________, 20___A.D.

ELAINE HANSON CARDENAS
COUNTY CLERK
HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

FLOODPLAIN NOTE:
THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED WITHIN ZONE "X", AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL
CHANCE FLOODPLAIN, AS SHOWN ON F.I.R.M. PANEL NO. 48209C0115F, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS DATED
SEPTEMBER 2, 2005. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR THE STRUCTURES
THEREON WILL BE FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE.

JURISDICTION PLAT NOTES:
1. THIS SUBDIVISION IS WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS.
2. THIS SUBDIVISION IS WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE DRIPPING SPRINGS INDEPENDENT SCHOOL

DISTRICT.
3. THIS SUBDIVISION IS ENTIRELY WITHIN THE NORTHEAST HAYS COUNTY ESD #1 FOR EMS SERVICE.
4. THIS SUBDIVISION IS ENTIRELY WITHIN THE NORTHEAST HAYS COUNTY ESD #6 FOR FIRE SERVICE.
5. THIS SUBDIVISION IS ENTIRELY WITHIN DISTRICT 1 OF THE HAYS-TRINITY GROUNDWATER CONSERVATION

DISTRICT.
6. THIS SUBDIVISION IS WITHIN THE EDWARDS AQUIFER CONTRIBUTING ZONE.

GENERAL NOTES
1. DRIPPING SPRINGS WILL MAINTAIN ALL PUBLIC STREETS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ROAD AGREEMENT

DATED MAY 12TH, 2020 BETWEEN THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS AND CRTX DEVELOPMENT, LLC
RECORDED IN DOC#  , PUBLIC RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY.

2. NO CONSTRUCTION OR OTHER DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION MAY BEGIN UNTIL ALL
APPLICABLE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS DEVELOPMENT PERMIT REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN MET.

3. THIS SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS PARKLAND DEDICATION REQUIREMENT
PER THE PARK PLAN PREPARED FOR THIS SUBDIVISION.

4. THE PARKS AND OPEN SPACE SHALL BE PRIVATELY DEDICATED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ZONING
REQUIREMENTS OF THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT.

5. WASTEWATER FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT WILL BE PROVIDE  BY DRIPPING SPRINGS.
6. ROADWAY DESIGN STANDARDS WILL BE TO CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS STANDARDS.
7. THIS SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT No. 11 (KNOWN AS PDD2019-0001 -

27110 RR 12), APPROVED BY THE DRIPPING SPRING CITY COUNCIL ON MAY 12, 2020 AND RECORDED ON MAY
21, 2020 AS DOC# 20019802 IN THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS.

8. THIS SUBDIVISION IS REQUIRED TO BE COMPLIANT WITH CITY FIRE CODE AT THE TIME OF DEVELOPMENT,
AS AMENDED.

9. MINIMUM BUILDING SETBACK LINES SHALL COMPLY WITH THE ZONING AT THE TIME OF DEVELOPMENT.
10. SIDEWALKS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED PER THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE DRIPPING SPRINGS UNIFIED

DEVELOPMENT CODE. SIDEWALKS SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS.
11. EASEMENTS: ANY PUBLIC UTILITY, INCLUDING CITY, SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO MOVE AND KEEP MOVED

ALL OR PART OF ANY BUILDING, FENCE, TREES, SHRUBS OTHER GROWTHS OR IMPROVEMENTS WHICH IN
ANY WAY ENDANGER OR INTERFERE WITH THE CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, OR EFFICIENCY OF ITS
RESPECTIVE SYSTEMS ON ANY OF THE EASEMENTS OR RIGHT-OF-WAY SHOWN ON THE PLAT (OR FILED BY
SEPARATE INSTRUMENT THAT IS ASSOCIATED WITH SAID PROPERTY); AND ANY PUBLIC UTILITY,
INCLUDING THE CITY, SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT AT ALL TIMES OF INGRESS AND EGRESS TO AND FROM AND
UPON SAID EASEMENTS FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTION, RECONSTRUCTION, INSPECTION,
PATROLLING, MAINTAINING AND ADDING TO OR REMOVING ALL OR PART OF ITS RESPECTIVE SYSTEMS
WITHOUT THE NECESSITY AT ANY TIME OF PROCURING THE PERMISSION OF ANYONE. EASEMENTS SHALL
BE MAINTAINED BY PROPERTY OWNERS. THE CITY CAN MOVE TREES OR ANY OTHER IMPROVEMENTS AND
DOES NOT HAVE THE RESPONSIBILITY TO REPLACE THEM.

12. STORMWATER AND DETENTION FACILITIES LOCATED ON LOT 1 ARE TO BE MAINTAINED BY THE OWNER
OF LOT 1.  THESE INCLUDE ANY ADDITIONAL FACILITIES LOCATED ON LOT 1 THAT TREAT RUNOFF FROM
THE ROB SHELTON EXTENSION.

SLOPE INFORMATION
NO SLOPES WITHIN THIS PLAT EXCEED 15%

UTILITY NOTES
1. WASTEWATER UTILITY SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS.
2. WATER UTILITY SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY THE DRIPPING SPRINGS WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION.
3. ELECTRIC UTILITY SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY PEC.
4. TELEPHONE UTILITY SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY TIME WARNER CABLE OR SIMILAR AUTHORIZED

UTILITY PROVIDER.
5. GAS UTILITY SERVICE WILL BE PROVIDED BY TEXAS GAS SERVICE.

TRAIL EASEMENT DEDICATION - 0.43Ac.
TO BE ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC AND MAINTAINED BY OWNER OR HOA.

SUBDIVISION ROADS
PUBLIC STREET DEDICATION - ROB SHELTON BLVD 60' ROW (0.68Ac.)

STREET SUMMARY
STREET NAME (CLASSIFICATION)                     ROW              LENGTH       PAVEMENT WIDTH

                            WIDTH                 (LF)     (F-F)
ROB SHELTON BOULEVARD (COLLECTOR)          60'     491.3'   VARIES' C&G

PRELIMINARY - NOT FOR RECORDATION

53

Item 4.



SHEET
2

OF
2

Delta Survey Group Inc.
8213 BRODIE LANE  STE. 102   AUSTIN, TX. 78745

OFFICE: (512) 282-5200  FAX: (512) 282-5230
TBPLS FIRM NO. 10004700

PREPARATION DATE: 9/29/20

N87°47'14"E  913.25'

N87°47'44"E
206.45'

S01°31'53"E
164.85'

S01°34'54"E
326.63'

S88°06'52"W  1005.20'

N
18°38'45"W

  317.34'

A = 17.15'
R =1597.42'
D =0°36'55"
B =N18°10'12"W
C =17.15'

LOT 1
7.91 ACRES

15' B
.L.

10' TRAIL EASEMENT

10' ELECTRICAL UTILITY EASEMENT
VOL. 1393, PG. 301

O.P.R.H.C.TX
10' GTE EASEMENT AND ROW

VOL. 1063, PG. 853
O.P.R.H.C.TX

10' WATERLINE EASEMENT
VOL. 199, PG. 639

O.P.R.H.C.TX

10' TRAIL EASEMENT

10' TRAIL
EASEMENT

S01°34'54"E  327.00'
S01°31'53"E  164.15'

60.00'146.45'

60.00'

80.19'

80.35'

82.02 ACRES
VIKTOR KOPPONEN AND SIRKKA KOPPONEN

VOL. 1265, PG. 776
O.P.R.H.C.TX

40 ACRES
CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS

VOL. 1462, PG. 671
O.P.R.H.C.TX

SURVEY CONTROL DATA & BEARING BASIS:
TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, SOUTH CENTRAL ZONE, NAD83/CORS
PROJECT CONTROL POINTS WERE ESTABLISHED USING THE 'SMARTNET' RTK NETWORK.

SURVEY CONTROL MONUMENT
C.O.A. MONUMENT E344
GRID COORDINATES
N=10055821.99
E=3093670.81
C.S.F. = 0.99997207
ELEVATION = 678.33' NAVD 88

BENCHMARK LIST:

BM #1 COTTON SPINDLE SET IN UTILITY POLE (SOUTH ROW SPORTS PARK RD.)
ELEV.= 1163.91'

BM #2 COTTON SPINDLE SET IN UTILITY POLE (EAST ROW RR12)
ELEV = 1142.93'

CHESTNUT RIDGE
SUBDIVISION
VOL. 6, PG. 121

O.P.R.H.C.T.

LOT
1

LOT
2

LOT
3

LOT
4

LOT
5

LOT
10

LOT 9

MAGIC GREENS
SUBDIVISION
VOL. 12, PG. 81

O.P.R.H.C.T.

LOT
1 LOT

2

P. A. SMITH SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 415
HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

SEPTEMBER 2020

GRAPHIC SCALE
1" = 100'

300'200'100'0'

10' ELECTRICAL UTILITY EASEMENT
VOL. 1393, PG. 301

O.P.R.H.C.TX
10' BTE EASEMENT AND ROW

VOL. 1063, PG. 853
O.P.R.H.C.TX

LEGEND

O.P.R.H.C.TX OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

1/2 INCH IRON ROD WITH "4160" CAP FOUND
1/2 INCH IRON ROD WITH "DELTA SURVEY" CAP SET
3/4 INCH IRON PIPE FOUND
TXDOT TYPE I CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND

4.36 ACRES
SPRING VALLEY FELLOWSHIP

D/B/A CHURCH OF THE SPRINGS
VOL. 2535, PG. 838

O.P.R.H.C.TX

N
07°13'47"W

165.51'

FINAL PLAT ESTABLISHING

CRTX ADDITION
8.59 ACRES

OUT OF THE P.A. SMITH SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 415,
CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS

HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

ELEVATION BENCHMARK

BM #1

BM #2

1/2 INCH IRON ROD FOUND

RA
N

CH
 RO

A
D

 12

(RO
W

 80')

S R
O

B
 SH

ELTO
N

 B
O

U
LEV

A
R

D
(R

O
W

 60')

SPORTS PARK ROAD
(ROW 60')

S R
O

B
 SH

ELTO
N

 B
O

U
LEV

A
R

D
(R

O
W

 60')  (H
ER

EB
Y

 D
ED

IC
A

TED
 B

Y
 TH

IS PLA
T)

0.68 A
C

R
ES

CHESTNUT RID
GE

(R
OW 60

')

NEEDHAM ROAD

(ROW 60')

490.34'
422.92'

573.69'
371.51'

15' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

10' TRAIL EASEMENT

15' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

15' PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

SPORTS PARK ROAD

R
O

B
 S

H
EL

TO
N

 B
LV

D

190

BUTLER RANCH ROAD

EAST HWY 290

R
R

12

RR12

SITE LOCATION

NEEDHAM RD

MERCER ST

DRIPPING
SPRINGS

CITY HALL

CITY LIMITS
ETJ

ETJ

CITY LIMITS
ETJ

SITE LOCATION MAP
SCALE 1"=2000'

54

Item 4.



      

 

     

 

 

 

     

      

Date: May 21, 2021 
 

   

      

Name: Doug Cobb 
Company: CRTX Development 
Email: doug@crtxdev.com 

 

   

      

Dear: Doug Cobb  
 

 

  

      

This letter is to inform you that the case number SUB2020-0028 is being denied on May 25, 2021 due to the following: 
 

      

Robyn Miga 
Planning Department robyn@texasmunicipallawyers.com 

  1.  Note 7 - Remove all the filing information regarding the PDD. If the PDD changes, and that info changes, the plat 
will have to be vacated to remove that note.  

  2. Note 1 - regarding the roadway agreement cites an old date. Provide instrument number. 

  3.  Note 5- Add "in accordance with the Wastewater Agreement recorded by Doc No._____" 

  4. Add "Final" to plat at the bottom of page 1.  

  5. Should this lot configuration change again, it will require a new application. 

  6. The final plat cannot be approved prior to the wastewater agreement being approved. 

Chad Gilpin 
City Engineer cgilpin@cityofdrippingsprings.com 

7. Clarify the concept demonstrating how detention and water quality for the extension of Rob Shelton Boulevard 
will be achieved and where the detention and water quality facilities will be located. . [Preliminary Plat Info 
Requirements Checklist] 

    

  Response 01: Note and area have been demoted on sheet 2 of the Engineering Exhibit. 

    

  Comment 02: Provide more detailed backup information for Preliminary Drainage design shown on the 
exhibit. Show drainage calculations used to size onsite detention and Rob Shelton Detention including 
contributing drainage areas, resulting peak flows for 2, 10, 25 & 100 yr storms and preliminary detention 
facility sizing, location and routing. Provide preliminary calculations demonstrating how water quality will 
be achieved. Confirm you are using Atlas 14 rainfall data. 

    

55

Item 4.



8. Provide an OSSF Facility Planning Report for the temporary OSSF facilities. [Preliminary Plat Info Requirements 
Checklist] 

    

  Response 01: OSSF Facility Planning Report has been included in this update as required. 

    

  Comment 02: Review comment from City OSSF reviewer - A minimum of 20,000sq.ft. of drain field area 
for a 200-unit apartment complex is needed.  The profile holes presented only cover around 
4,800sq.ft.  A couple more profile holes should be excavated to verify soil conditions before the City 
OSSF reviewer goes out there to review the site. 

    

9. Update General Note 1 by adding “in accordance with the Road Agreement dated Month, Day, Year between the 
City of Dripping Springs and CRTX Development LLC recorded in Document #, Public Records of Hays County, 
Texas.” 

    

  Response 01:Note adjusted as required. We are currently working on finding the document number for 
the agreement. Any assistance would be appreciated. 

    

  Comment 02: Please fill in document number. 

    

10. Update the sidewalk note (General Note 10) as follows: 
 Replace “Unified Development Code” with Code of Ordinances. 
 Revise “sidewalks shall be maintained by City of Dripping Springs” to state “sidewalks in trail 

easements within Lot 1 shall be privately maintained by the owner of Lot 1”. 
11. Update the wastewater utility note by adding “in accordance with the Utility Agreement dated Month, Day, Year 

between the City of Dripping Springs and CRTX Development LLC recorded in Document #, Public Records of 
Hays County, Texas.” 

 
      

Resubmittals must include a cover letter addressing each reviewer comment and noting where associated 
corrections/revisions/changes can be found in the submittal documents. Please keep previous review comments on the 
document as you resubmit your response letter, so that staff can keep track of the original comments. Resubmittals 
that do not include a cover letter will be considered incomplete and returned. For more information regarding resubmitting 
an application and dates please visit our website at http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/page/Planning.Submittinganapp 
 
Please note that this denial of this project now results in a complete refiling of the application per Chapter 28, Exhibit A 
Section 3.8. If you wish to resubmit you will need to pay the refiling fee as indicated in the City’s Fee Schedule and the 
review process begins over again with a new project number and a 10-day completeness check prior to the 30-day review. 
 
Should you have any questions or concerns in the meantime, please feel free to reach out to the planning department. 
 

 

      

 

 

      

 

56

Item 4.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/page/Planning.Submittinganapp


      

 

     

 

 

 

     

      

Date: May 21, 2021 
 

   

      

Name: Doug Cobb 
Company: CRTX Development 
Email: doug@crtxdev.com 

 

   

      

Dear: Doug Cobb   
 

 

  

      

This letter is to inform you that the case number SUB2020-0029 is being denied on May 25, 2021 due to the following: 
 

      

Robyn Miga 
Planning Department robyn@texasmunicipallawyers.com 

  1. Note 7 - Remove all of the filing information regarding the PDD. If the PDD changes, and that info changes, the 
plat will have to be vacated to remove that note.  

  2.  Note 1 - regarding the roadway agreement cites an old date. Provide instrument number.  

  3.  Note 5- Add "in accordance with the Waste Water Agreement recorded by Doc No._____"  

  4.  Add "Final" to plat at the bottom of page 1.  

  5.  Should this lot configuration change again, it will require a new application.  

  6.  The final plat can not be approved prior to the wastewater agreement being approved.  

Chad Gilpin 
City Engineer cgilpin@cityofdrippingsprings.com 

7. Comment 01: Update General Note 1 by adding “in accordance with the Road Agreement dated Month, Day, 
Year between the City of Dripping Springs and CRTX Development LLC recorded in Document #, Public Records 
of Hays County, Texas.” 

    

  Response 01:Note adjusted as required.  We are currently working on finding the document number for 
the agreement.  Any assistance would be appreciated. 

    

  Comment 02:  Please fill in document number. 

    

8. Comment 01: Provide a legend defining BTE easement. 

    
57

Item 4.



  Response 01: The easement has been modified t the current label of “GTE” easement. 

    

  Comment 02: Clarify in legend or n note what “GTE” stands for.  Also, easement is still labeled as BTE 
just north of this tract. 

    

9. The Final Plat cannot be approved until either; 

    

a. Construction of Public Infrastructure is complete and accepted by the Jurisdiction that will own 
it; OR 

b. Fiscal Surety is posted and approved by the Jurisdiction that will own the Public Infrastructure. 

    

10. Update the sidewalk note (General Note 10) as follows: 
a. Replace “Unified Development Code” with Code of Ordinances. 
b. Revise “sidewalks shall be maintained by City of Dripping Springs” to state “sidewalks in trail 

easements within Lot 1 shall be privately maintained by the owner of Lot 1”. 

    

11. Update the wastewater utility note by adding “in accordance with the Utility Agreement dated Month, Day, Year 
between the City of Dripping Springs and CRTX Development LLC recorded in Document #, Public Records of 
Hays County, Texas.” 

 

      

Resubmittals must include a cover letter addressing each reviewer comment and noting where associated 
corrections/revisions/changes can be found in the submittal documents. Please keep previous review comments on the 
document as you resubmit your response letter, so that staff can keep track of the original comments. Resubmittals 
that do not include a cover letter will be considered incomplete and returned. For more information regarding resubmitting 
an application and dates please visit our website at http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/page/Planning.Submittinganapp 
 
Please note that this denial of this project now results in a complete refiling of the application per Chapter 28, Exhibit A 
Section 3.8. If you wish to resubmit you will need to pay the refiling fee as indicated in the City’s Fee Schedule and the 
review process begins over again with a new project number and a 10-day completeness check prior to the 30-day review. 
 
Should you have any questions or concerns in the meantime, please feel free to reach out to the planning department. 
 

 

      

 

 

      

 

58

Item 4.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/page/Planning.Submittinganapp


 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 

P& Z Meeting: May 25, 2021 

Project Number:  SUB2021-0019  

Project Planner: Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Bunker Ranch Phase 3 Block 3 Lots 15-19 Plat Vacation and Final Plat 

Property Location:   Located off Bunker Ranch Boulevard 

Legal Description:  Bunker Ranch Phase 3 Lots 15-19 

Applicant: Brian Estes, P.E. Civil & Environmental Consultants, Inc.  

Property Owner: Steve Harren, Bunker Ranch LLC  

Request: Vacation of lots 15-19 and Final Plat of lots 15-18 and additional right-of-way 

Staff Recommendations: Staff recommends approval with conditions of the Plat Vacation and Final Plat 

 

 
 

59

Item 5.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 

Overview 

 

The applicant requested to vacate Lots 15,16,17,18, and 19, Block 3 from the Bunker Ranch, Phase Three, Final Plat to add 

right-of-way for access to the Florio Tract that was recently annexed into the City Limits.  

 

Local Government Code 212.013 allows for plat vacations if all owners of lots in the plat join in the application for vacation. 

In this proposed vacation, the applicant is vacating Lots 15,16,17,18, and 19, Block 3 from the existing subdivision, and 

then Final Platting the new lot as a new subdivision in accordance with City of Dripping Springs ordinances.  

 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

The subject property is located at the end of Bunker Ranch Boulevard, generally located at the intersection of Bunker 

Ranch Boulevard and Stockman Drive.   

 

Zoning Designation:  SF-2  

 

 

Recommendation 

 

Staff is recommending approval with Conditions for the Final Plat and Plat Vacation (SUB2021-0019), consisting of 

approximately 5.14-acres located within the Bunker Ranch Phase 3 subdivision.  

 

Conditions/ Outstanding Comments 

1. Approval of this plat is pending the approval of the Revised Preliminary Plat for Phases 3 & 4. 

2. It is my understanding that the construction of Bryce Lane will be completed at a later date with the infrastructure 

for the Overlook at Bunker Ranch. Therefore, Fiscal Surety is required to be posted for the portion of Bryce Lane 

within this Phase 3 Plat before this plat can be approved. 

3. Staff receives signed copy of the Plat Vacation Affidavit  

Attachments 

 

Attachment 1 – Subdivision Application 

Attachment 2 – Plat Vacation Application 

Attachment 3 – Plat Vacation Affidavit 

Attachment 4 – Proposed Final Plat for the Subdivision 

 

Recommended Action: Approval of the plat with conditions 

Budget/Financial Impact:    All fees have been paid.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

60

Item 5.



CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS 
PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street •   MAILING: PO Box 384 

Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

• 512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com

Revised 10.2.2019 Page 1 of 12 

SUBDIVISION APPLICATION 

CONTACT INFORMATION 

  Case Number (staff use only): ________-____ 

MEETINGS REQUIRED 
(AS APPLICABLE PER SITE DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE) 

INFORMAL 
CONSULTATION  

PRE-APPLICATION 
CONFERENCE 

DATE: 
______________       
☐ NOT
SCHEDULED

DATE: 
______________       
☐ NOT SCHEDULED

APPLICANT NAME____________________________________________________________________________________ 
COMPANY __________________________________________________________________________________________ 
STREET ADDRESS_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
CITY_______________________________STATE_________________________ ZIP CODE __________________________ 
PHONE________________________ EMAIL_______________________________________________________________ 

OWNER NAME____________________________________________________________________________________ 
COMPANY __________________________________________________________________________________________ 
STREET ADDRESS_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
CITY_______________________________STATE_________________________ ZIP CODE __________________________ 
PHONE________________________ EMAIL_______________________________________________________________ 

PLAT TYPE 

� Amending Plat 

� Minor Plat 

� Replat 

� Final Plat 

� Plat Vacation 

� Other:_______________ 

1/7/2021

Brian Estes, PE
Civil & Environmental Consultants, Inc.

3711 South Mopac Epressway, Building 1, Suite 550
Austin TX 78746

(512)-439-0400 bestes@cecinc.com

Steve Harren
Bunker Ranch, LLC

317 Grace Lane #240
Austin TX 78746

(512)-644-6800 steveharren@aol.com

✔

61

Item 5.



PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 2 of 12 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
PROPERTY OWNER NAME 

PROPERTY ADDRESS 

CURRENT LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION  

TAX ID # 

LOCATED IN � City Limits 

� Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 

CURRENT LAND ACREAGE 

SCHOOL DISTRICT 

ESD DISTRICT(S) 

ZONING/PDD/OVERLAY 

EXISTING ROAD FRONTAGE � Private         Name: _____________________ 

� State          Name: _____________________  

� City/County (public)       Name: _____________________ 

DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT?  

(If so, please attach 
agreement) 

� Yes (see attached)  

� Not Applicable  

Development Agreement Name: _____________________________ 

ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION
IS PROPERTY OVER THE EDWARDS AQUIFER RECHARGE ZONE? � YES    � NO 

IS PROPERTY OVER THE BARTON SPRINGS CONTRIBUTING ZONE TO THE 
EDWARDS AQUIFER? 

� YES    � NO 

IS PROPERTY WITHIN A FEMA FLOODPLAIN AS DEFINED BY THE MOST CURRENT 
FIRM?  

� YES    � NO 

Bunker Ranch Blvd

X

X

X

Steve Harren (Bunker Ranch, LLC)
2751 US 290, Dripping Springs, Texas 78620

Final Plat of Bunker Ranch Phase 3
R15053, R15068

40.20 Ac
Dripping Springs ISD

ESD #6
SF2

✔

✔

✔

62

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 3 of 12 

PROJECT INFORMATION
PROPOSED SUBDIVISION 
NAME 

TOTAL ACREAGE OF 
DEVELOPMENT 

TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTS 

AVERAGE SIZE OF LOTS 

INTENDED USE OF LOTS � RESIDENTIAL     � COMMERCIAL    � INDUSTRIAL/OTHER:________________ 

# OF LOTS PER USE RESIDENTIAL: _______________ 

COMMERCIAL: ______________ 

INDUSTRIAL:________________ 

ACREAGE PER USE RESIDENTIAL: _______________ 

COMMERCIAL: ______________ 

INDUSTRIAL:________________ 

LINEAR FEET (ADDED) OF 
PROPOSED ROADS 

PUBLIC:________________ 

PRIVATE:_______________ 

ANTICIPATED 
WASTEWATER SYSTEM 

� CONVENTIONAL SEPTIC SYSTEM 

� CLASS I (AEROBIC) PERMITTED SYSTEM 

� PUBLIC SEWER         

WATER SOURCES SURFACE WATER 

� PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY 

� RAIN WATER 

GROUND WATER* 

� PUBLIC WELL 

� SHARED WELL 

� PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY   

*IF DOING GROUND WATER PROVISION FOR THE DEVELOPMENT USING GROUNDWATER RESOURCES,
THE HAYS-TRINITY GROUNDWATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT MUST BE NOTIFIED:

HAYS-TRINITY GCD NOTIFIED?       � YES    � NO 

300 LF Proposed ROW Addition

X

Replat of Bunker Ranch Phase 3

40.20 Ac

39
0.88 Ac

39

40.20

✔

✔

✔

63

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 4 of 12 

COMMENTS: ________________________________________ 

TITLE: ______________________ SIGNATURE: _________________________________ 

PUBLIC UTILITY CHECKLIST

ELECTRIC PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): _______________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE 

COMMUNICATIONS PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): ______________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE 

WATER PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): _________________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE 

WASTEWATER PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): ___________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE 

GAS PROVIDER NAME (if applicable): ____________________________________________________ 

� VERIFICATION LETTER ATTACHED    � NOT APPLICABLE 

PARKLAND DEDICATION? AGRICULTURE FACILITIES (FINAL PLAT)? 

� YES    � NOT APPLICABLE � YES    � NOT APPLICABLE 

PEC (See signature on Ph 3  Plat Vacation application)

DSWSC  (See signature on Ph 3  Plat Vacation application)

Texas Gas  (See signature on Ph 3  Plat Vacation application)

✔

✔

✔ ✔

64

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 5 of 12 

 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH OUTDOOR LIGHTING ORDINANCE?* 

 

(See attached agreement) 

 

*If proposed subdivision is in the City Limits, compliance with the Lighting Ordinance is mandatory. If 
proposed subdivision is in the ETJ, compliance is mandatory when required by a Development 
Agreement, or as a condition of an Alternative Standard/Special Exception/Variance/Waiver.  

 

Voluntary compliance is strongly encouraged by those not required by above criteria (see Outdoor 
Lighting tab on the city’s website at www.cityofdrippingsprings.com and online Lighting Ordinance 
under the Code of Ordinances tab for more information).  

 

� YES (REQUIRED)    � YES (VOLUNTARY*)   � NO  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

✔

65

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/
http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


66

Item 5.



Refer to Bunker Ranch Preliminary Plat
Application Package, N/A for ReplatN/A

67

Item 5.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 8 of 12 

 

� � Development Agreement/PDD (If applicable) 

� � Cost estimate of public infrastructure improvements (all public infrastructure 
improvements including water, wastewater, roads, drainage, curbs, 
sidewalks, etc.) (if applicable).  

*A Final Plat application will not be accepted if staff has not already 
approved this. 

� � Documentation showing approval of driveway locations (TxDOT, County)  

� � Documentation showing Hays County 911 Addressing approval (If applicable) 

� � Parkland Dedication fee (if applicable)  

� � $25 Public Notice Sign Fee 

� � Ag Facility Fees - $35 per residential LUE (if applicable) 

� � Proof of Utility Service (Water & Wastewater) or permit to serve 

� � Preliminary Conference Form signed by City Staff 

 

FINAL PLAT INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS 

� � A vicinity, or location, map that shows the location of the proposed Plat within 
the City (or within its ETJ) and in relationship to existing roadways. 

� � Boundary lines, abstract/survey lines, corporate and other jurisdictional 
boundaries, existing or proposed highways and street right-of-way, bearings 
and distances sufficient to locate the exact area proposed for the subdivision, 
and all survey monuments including any required concrete monuments (per 
the City Engineer); the length and bearing of all straight lines, radii, arc lengths, 
tangent lengths and central angles of all curves shall be indicated along the 
lines of each lot or Unit (curve and line data may be placed in a table format); 
accurate reference ties via courses and distances to at least one recognized 
abstract or survey corner or existing subdivision corner shall be shown. 

� � The name, location and recording information of all adjacent subdivisions (or 
property owners of adjacent unplatted property), including those located on 
the other sides of roads or creeks, shall be drawn to the same scale and shown 
in dotted lines adjacent to the tract proposed for subdivision in sufficient 
detail to show accurately the existing streets, alleys, building setbacks, lot and 
block numbering, easements, and other features that may influence the 
layout of development of the proposed subdivision; adjacent unplatted land 
shall show property lines, the names of owners of record, and the recording 
information. 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

68

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 9 of 12 

� � The location, widths and names of all street right-of-way and easements (it 
shall be the applicant’s responsibility to coordinate with appropriate utility 
entities for placement of necessary utility easements and for location of all 
streets and median openings on highways or arterial roadways), existing or 
proposed, within the subdivision limits and adjacent to the subdivision; a list 
of proposed street names shall be submitted (in the form of a letter or memo 
along with the application form) for all new street names (street name 
approval is required at the time the Plat is approved) 

� � The location of all existing property lines, existing lot and block numbers and 
date recorded, easements of record (with recording information), 

� � Proposed arrangement and square footage of lots or Units (including lot and 
block numbers or Unit numbers). 

� � All sheets shall have a title block which shows the title or name under which 
the proposed subdivision is to be recorded; the name, address and phone 
number of the property owner(s); the name, address and phone number of 
the licensed engineer or registered professional land surveyor who prepared 
the plat/plans; the scale of the plat/plans; the date the plat/plan was 
prepared; and the location of the property according to the abstract or survey 
records of Hays County, Texas.  

� � Sites, if any, to be reserved or dedicated for parks, schools, playgrounds, 
other public uses or for private facilities or amenities 

� � Scale (including a graphic scale), date, north arrow oriented to the top or left 
side of the sheet, and other pertinent informational data 

� � All physical features of the property to be subdivided shall be shown, 
including: 

- The location and size of all watercourses; and

- 100-year floodplain according to Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) information; and

- Water Quality Buffer Zones as required by [WQO 22.05.017]

- Drainage ways and drainage easements.  Drainage easements are required
for bypass of any offsite flows and for concentrated flows conveyed across
lots.  Drainage easements shall be large enough to contain the 100-yr storm
[Sub. Ord. 12.2.2].

- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers flowage easement requirements; and

- All critical environmental features (CEFs) such as karsts, springs, sinkholes,

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

69

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 10 of 12 

 

caves, etc., to be located and documentation to be signed and certified by a 
geologist. All CEF to have a minimum setback of 150’. All designated wetlands 
to be certified as such by an accredited wetland biologist relying the presence 
of wetlands plant species.  

- Drainage area in acres or area draining into subdivisions (to be included in 
drainage report and construction plans); and 

 

� � Existing zoning of the subject property and all adjacent properties if within the 
city limits. 

� � Provide notes identifying the following: 
• Owner responsible for operation and maintenance of stormwater 

facilities. 

• Owner/operator of water and wastewater utilities. 

• Owner/operator of roadway facilities 

� � Certificates and other language shall be included on the plat, pursuant to the 
following Subsections: A statement signed by the property owner(s) and 
acknowledged before a Notary Public that the subdivided area is legally 
owned by the applicant. 

- A statement signed by the property owner(s) and acknowledged before a 
Notary Public that the subdivided area is legally owned by the applicant.  

- An accurate legal, such as by metes and bounds, description by bearings 
and distances (including necessary curve and line data), accurate to the 
nearest one hundredth of a foot, for all boundary, block and lot lines, with 
descriptions correlated to a permanent survey monument. 

- The registered professional land surveyor’s certificate, with a place for his 
or her signature and notarization of his or her signature. 

- A place for plat approval signature of the Chair or Vice Chair, in the Chair’s 
absence) of the Planning and Zoning Commission, a place for the City 
Secretary to attest such signature, and the approval dates by Planning and 
Zoning Commission. 

- Appendices to this Chapter contain certificates and languages to be used 
on the plat to accommodate the above requirements: 

 

 

 

 

✔

✔

✔

70

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 11 of 12 

 

 

 
 

NARRATIVE OF COMPLIANCE 
A written narrative describing how all portions of the subdivision meets all requirements of this code 
and other codes, including landscaping, lighting, parkland dedication, site development, water quality 
protection, and zoning, as may be relevant.  

Outdoor Lighting,    
Article 24.06 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Parkland Dedication, 
Article 28.03 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Landscaping and Tree 
Preservation, Article 
28.06 

 

 

 

 
 

N/A for Replat. Outdoor Lighting Agreement was submitted during 
the preliminary planning stage. Refer to Preliminary Plan submittal 
for Bunker Ranch Subdivision. 

N/A for Replat. Fee in lieu of parkland dedication was paid during 
the Preliminary Planning stage of Bunker Ranch Subdivision for the 
overall subdivision. Refer to Preliminary Plan submittal for Bunker 
Ranch Subdivision. 

N/A for Replat. No existing trees will be impacted by the replat or 
plat vacation.  

71

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 12 of 12 

 

 

 

 
 

Subdivision, 28.02, 
Exhibit A 

This section shall also include, depending on what type of plat is being filed, how public or 
private improvements will meet City standards, including water quality, drainage, 
stormwater, and fire  (if applicable).  

 

 

 

 

 

 
Zoning, Article 30.02, 
Exhibit A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This Replat meets all requirements outlined in the Subdivision 
Ordinance. 

This Replat meets all requirements outlined in the Zoning
Ordinance.

72

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


Received on/by: 

Project Number:  _____-_____ 
Only filled out by staff 

Date, initials 

BILLING CONTACT FORM 

Project Name:   

Project Address:   

Project Applicant Name:  

Billing Contact Information 

Name: 

Mailing Address: 

Email:  Phone Number:  

Type of Project/Application (check all that apply): 

� Alternative Standard Special Exception 
� Certificate of Appropriateness � Street Closure Permit 
� Conditional Use Permit � Subdivision 
� Development Agreement � Waiver 
� Exterior Design � Wastewater Service 
� Landscape Plan � Variance 
� Lighting Plan � Zoning 
� Site Development Permit � Other 

Applicants are required to pay all associated costs associated with a project’s application for a 
permit, plan, certificate, special exception, waiver, variance, alternative standard, or agreement, 
regardless of City approval. Associated costs may include, but are not limited to, public notices 
and outside professional services provided to the City by engineers, attorneys, surveyors, 
inspectors, landscape consultants, lighting consultants, architects, historic preservation 
consultants, and others, as required. Associated costs will be billed at cost plus 20% to cover 
the City’s additional administrative costs. Please see the online Master Fee Schedule for more 
details. By signing below, I am acknowledging that the above listed party is financially 
accountable for the payment and responsibility of these fees. 

Signature of Applicant Date 

� 

Steve Harren

Bunker Ranch Phase 3-Replat and Plat Vacation
2751 US 290, Dripping Springs, Texas 78620

Brian Estes, PE

317 Grace Lane #240 
Austin, 78746

steveharren@aol.com (512)644-6800

3/9/2021
73

Item 5.

ccordoba
Text Box
Replat and Plat Vacation



CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS 
PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street •   MAILING: PO Box 384 

Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

• 512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com 

 

Revised 11.16.2020  Page 1 of 9 

 

 

 PLAT VACATION APPLICATION 
 

 

 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

APPLICANT NAME____________________________________________________________________________________ 

COMPANY __________________________________________________________________________________________ 

STREET ADDRESS_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

CITY_______________________________STATE_________________________ ZIP CODE __________________________  

PHONE________________________ EMAIL_______________________________________________________________ 

 

OWNER NAME____________________________________________________________________________________ 

COMPANY __________________________________________________________________________________________ 

STREET ADDRESS_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

CITY_______________________________STATE_________________________ ZIP CODE __________________________  

PHONE________________________ EMAIL_______________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Case Number (staff use only): ________-____ 

 

Brian Estes, PE
Civil & Environmental Consultants, Inc.

3711 South MoPac Expressway, Building 1, Suite 550
Austin TX 78746

(512)-230-6383 bestes@cecinc.com

Steve Harren
Bunker Ranch, LLC

317 Grace Lane #240
Austin TX 78746

(512)-644-6800 steveharren@aol.com

74

Item 5.



 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 2 of 9 

 

PLAT VACATION  

The purpose of a Plat Vacation is to nullify a portion of or the entire previously recorded plat. A plat 
vacation application must be considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission as permitted and in 
compliance with Ch. 28, Exhibit A, Sec 9 of the Code of Ordinances. There will be property owner 
notifications and newspaper notifications prior to the meeting that the plat vacation will be on the 
agenda. Please note: a vacation of plat is not guaranteed. If the vacation intends to vacate an 
easement and one of the utility providers refuses to grant the vacation, then you may, at your own 
expense, attempt to negotiate with the utility company. Depending on what is being vacated, other 
entities may need to sign off on the vacation.  Also, be aware that all plat vacation (partial or total) 
require the signatures of 100% of the property owners in the subdivision who own intact original lots 
as shown on the original plat as required by State Law per Section 212.013 of the Local Government 
Code, prior to submittal for completeness check.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
PROPERTY OWNER NAME  

PROPERTY ADDRESS  

CURRENT LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION  

 

TAX ID #  

JURISDICTION � City Limits 

� Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 

CURRENT LAND ACREAGE  

SCHOOL DISTRICT  

ESD DISTRICT(S)   

ZONING/PDD/OVERLAY  

DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT?  

(If so, please attach 
agreement) 

� Yes (see attached)  

� Not Applicable  

Development Agreement Name: _____________________________ 

X

X

Steve Harren (Bunker Ranch, LLC)
2751 US 290, Dripping Springs, Texas 78620

Final Plat of Bunker Ranch Phase 3
R15053, R15068

40.20 Ac
Dripping Springs ISD

ESD #6
SF2

75

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 3 of 9 

 

PLAT ATTRIBUTES 

Requesting               � Partial Plat Vacation       �  Total Plat Vacation  

Do the lot(s) being vacated receive utility service?       � Yes       � No  

Specific Services and utility provider(s):  

Water __________________________________ Waste Water:______________________________ 

 

Electric: _________________________________  Gas: _____________________________________ 

 

Communications: _________________________________ 

       

Has any development occurred on the lot(s) being vacated?       � Yes       � No 

Specify type of development: 
____________________________________________________________ 

 

Will a replat also be submitted?       � Yes (this is recommended)       � No    

Have parkland fees been paid for the lot(s) being vacated?       � Yes       � No  

Was a Right-of-Way dedicated by the plat?       � Yes       � No 

Was an easement dedicated by the plat?      � Yes       � No 

 

 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION 

IS PROPERTY OVER THE EDWARDS AQUIFER RECHARGE ZONE? � YES    � NO 

IS PROPERTY OVER THE BARTON SPRINGS CONTRIBUTING ZONE TO THE 
EDWARDS AQUIFER? 

� YES    � NO 

IS PROPERTY WITHIN A FEMA FLOODPLAIN AS DEFINED BY THE MOST CURRENT 
FIRM?  

� YES    � NO 

 

 

 

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

DSWSC Private Septic

PEC Texas Gas

76

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 4 of 9 

Electric Utility Provider   ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 

Printed Name: _________________________________ 
Title:_____________________________________ 

Contact Info:  

Phone Number: ______________________ 
Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

Communications Utility Provider    ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 

Printed Name: _________________________________ 

Title:_____________________________________ 
Contact Info:  

Phone Number: ______________________ 
Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

Water Utility Provider ☐N/A

Provider: ______________________________________ 
Printed Name: _________________________________

Title:_____________________________________ 

Contact Info: 
Phone Number: ______________________ 

Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature: 

Sewer Utility Provider    ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 
Printed Name: _________________________________ 

Title:_____________________________________ 
Contact Info:  

Phone Number: ______________________ 
Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

Gas Utility Provider    ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 
Printed Name: _________________________________ 

Title:_____________________________________ 

Contact Info:  
Phone Number: ______________________ 

Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

Other Utility Provider    ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 

Printed Name: _________________________________ 

Title:_____________________________________ 
Contact Info:  

Phone Number: ______________________ 
Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

Kyle Dannhaus
General Manager

5128587897

kyle@drippingspringswater.com

xX

PEC

DSWSC

Texas Gas

Spectrum

77

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 4 of 9 

Electric Utility Provider   ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 

Printed Name: _________________________________ 
Title:_____________________________________ 

Contact Info:  

Phone Number: ______________________ 
Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

Communications Utility Provider    ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 

Printed Name: _________________________________ 

Title:_____________________________________ 
Contact Info:  

Phone Number: ______________________ 
Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

Water Utility Provider    ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 
Printed Name: _________________________________ 

Title:_____________________________________ 

Contact Info:  
Phone Number: ______________________ 

Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

Sewer Utility Provider    ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 
Printed Name: _________________________________ 

Title:_____________________________________ 
Contact Info:  

Phone Number: ______________________ 
Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

Gas Utility Provider    ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 
Printed Name: _________________________________ 

Title:_____________________________________ 

Contact Info:  
Phone Number: ______________________ 

Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

Other Utility Provider    ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 

Printed Name: _________________________________ 

Title:_____________________________________ 
Contact Info:  

Phone Number: ______________________ 
Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

PEC
Wzzielh Marquez

Electrical Distribution Planner 2

800-868-4791 Ext. 7923

wzzielh.marquez@peci.com

DSWSC

Texas Gas

Spectrum

✔

78

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 4 of 9 

Electric Utility Provider   ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 

Printed Name: _________________________________ 
Title:_____________________________________ 

Contact Info:  

Phone Number: ______________________ 
Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

Communications Utility Provider    ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 

Printed Name: _________________________________ 

Title:_____________________________________ 
Contact Info:  

Phone Number: ______________________ 
Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

Water Utility Provider    ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 
Printed Name: _________________________________ 

Title:_____________________________________ 

Contact Info:  
Phone Number: ______________________ 

Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

Sewer Utility Provider    ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 
Printed Name: _________________________________ 

Title:_____________________________________ 
Contact Info:  

Phone Number: ______________________ 
Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

Gas Utility Provider    ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 
Printed Name: _________________________________ 

Title:_____________________________________ 

Contact Info:  
Phone Number: ______________________ 

Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

Other Utility Provider    ☐N/A 

Provider: ______________________________________ 

Printed Name: _________________________________ 

Title:_____________________________________ 
Contact Info:  

Phone Number: ______________________ 
Email: ______________________________ 

Approval of the Vacation     � Yes       � No 

Signature:  

X

PEC

DSWSC

Texas Gas
Christpher McKnight

Manager, Commercial Project Management

512-465-1110
christopher.mcknight@onegas.com

Spectrum

79

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


80

Item 5.



81

Item 5.

ccordoba
Text Box
see signature on Page 5 of 9



PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 7 of 9 

� � $25 Public Notice Sign Fee 

� � Plat Vacation Affidavit 

- A signed and notarized affidavit filled out completely and accurately by the
landowner for the type of plat that is proposed to be vacated must be
included (Affidavit template is provided on the next page)

� � Vicinity Map (8 ½” X 11”) 

� � Survey of existing/proposed buildings 

- Submit map(s) showing the location, size, use and arrangement of all
buildings/strictures showing height in stories and feet, total floor area, total
square feet of ground area coverage of existing buildings which will remain,
if any, and the location, designation and total area of all usable open space.

� � Hays Trinity Groundwater Conservation District approval of water well (if 
applicable) 

� � Preliminary Conference Form signed by City Staff 

N/A

Meeting held 1/7/2021

N/A No existing buildings.

✔

✔

✔

✔

82

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


3

83

Item 5.



PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 9 of 9 

City of Dripping Springs, at its regular meeting, did approve the total/partial vacation of the subdivision known 

as ______________________________________, as recorded in Book ____, Page _____, ______________ 

County Plat Records, upon application therefore by all of the owners of all of the lots in said subdivision.  

EXECUTED, this _______ day of ___________, 20___ 

_________________________________________ 

Chair  

___________________ Commission  

City of Dripping Springs  

Hays County, Texas  

ATTEST:  

__________________________________ 

____________, Executive Secretary  

__________________ Commission of the City of Dripping Springs 

STATE OF TEXAS  

COUNTY OF HAYS  

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for the State of Texas, on this day personally 

appeared ________________________________________________________, known to be the person whose 

name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument as Chairperson of the ____________________ Commission of 

the City of Dripping Springs, Texas a municipal corporation, and she/he acknowledge to me that she/he 

executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated.  

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, THIS __________ DAY OF _________, 20____ 

___________________________________ 

Seal Printed name________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas  

84

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


 

 

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street • MAILING: PO Box 384 • Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

512.858.4725 • www.cityofdrippingsprings.com  

Page 10 of 9 

 

      My Commission Expires: ______________ 

85

Item 5.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/


Page 1 of 2 
 

Plat Vacation Affidavit 

PARTIAL VACATION OF “BUNKER RANCH PHASE 3” 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

COUNTY OF HAYS  § 

WHEREAS, Bunker Ranch, LLC, OWNER of Bunker Ranch Phase 3, recorded in Document No. 

21009701 of the Official Public Records of Hays County, Texas out of the Benjamin 

F. Hanna Survey No. 28 Abstract No. 222, in Hays County, Texas as conveyed by 

Warranty Deed as recorded in Document No. 160120931 of the Official Public 

Records of Hays County, Texas; and 

WHEREAS, the following lots in said subdivision are now owned by the parties indicated, to wit: 

LOTS 15, 16, 17, 18, 19 Block 3 OWNER Bunker Ranch, LLC; and 

WHEREAS, Bunker Ranch, LLC, who collectively constitute the owners of all original, intact 

lots in Bunker Ranch Phase 3 are desirous of partially vacating said subdivision plat 

so as the destroy the force and effect of the recording of such subdivision plat insofar 

and only insofar as the same pertains to Lots. 

 

 WHEREAS, on the ______ day of _______ 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the 

City of Dripping Springs, Texas, at its regular meeting, did approve the partial 

vacation of Lots 15,16, 17, 18, 19 Block 3, Bunker ranch Subdivision, Phase Three, 

of that certain plat of record in Document No. 21009701 of the Plat Records of Hays 

County, Texas upon application thereof by the Owners of all land covered thereby; 

and 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

DRIPPING SPRINGS, TEXAS DOES BY THESE PRESENTS HEREBY DECLARE THAT:   

 

The above recitals are true and correct and that Lots 15,16, 17, 18, 19 Block 3, Bunker ranch 

Subdivision, Phase Three, of that certain plat of record in Document No. 21009701 of the Plat 

Records of Hays County, Texas are to be partially vacated as shown in Instrument Number 

21009701 of the Plat Records of Hays County, Texas. 

 

 

 

EXECUTED THIS, THE _____ DAY OF_______. 

 

 

86

Item 5.



Page 2 of 2 
 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS:  

By: ____________________________________________________ 

Planning and Zoning Commission Chair or Vice Chair 

City of Dripping Springs, Texas 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

COUNTY OF HAYS   §  

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared 

__________________________________________, known to me to the person whose name is 

subscribed to the foregoing instrument as _____________of the Planning and Zoning Commission of 

the City of Dripping Springs, Texas, a municipal corporation, and he acknowledged to me that he 

executed the same for the purposes and considerations therein expressed, in the capacity therein stated.  

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND SEAL OF OFFICE, this the ___ day of _______ 2021.  

 

______________________________________ 

Andrea Cunningham, Notary Public  

State of Texas 

 

Bunker Ranch, LLC.: 

 

By: __________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF HAYS §  

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally 

appeared________________________ , known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to 

the foregoing instrument as ___________________________________and they acknowledged to me 

that they executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed, in the capacity 

therein stated.  

 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND SEAL OF OFFICE, this the ___ day of _______ 2021.  

 

_________________________________ 

Notary Public Signature  

State of Texas  

 

87

Item 5.



DOC NO. 21009701

DOC NO. 21009701DOC NO. 21009701

DOC NO. 21009701

LOT TABLE

BLOCK "1"

TOTAL

STREET AREA

www.cecinc.com

3711 South MoPac Expressway · Building 1, Suite 550 · Austin, TX  78746
Ph: 512.439.0400 · Fax: 512.329.0096

Texas Registered Surveying Firm 10194419

88

Item 5.



”

www.cecinc.com

3711 South MoPac Expressway · Building 1, Suite 550 · Austin, TX  78746
Ph: 512.439.0400 · Fax: 512.329.0096

Texas Registered Surveying Firm 10194419

89

Item 5.



 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 

P& Z Meeting: May 25, 2021 

Project Number:  SUB2021-0029 – Driftwood Creek Phase 2 Preliminary Plat 

Project Planner: Robyn Miga, Consulting Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Driftwood Creek Phase 2 Preliminary Plat 

Property Location:   Thurman Roberts Way, Driftwood  

Legal Description:  Approximately 19.301 acres out of the Fannie A. D. Darden Survey, Abstract No. 664, 

and the Freelove Woody Survey No. 23, Abstract No. 20, Hays County, Texas.  

Applicant: Murfee Engineering Co. Inc c/o Ronee Gilbert 

Property Owner: VP of Driftwood Golf Club c/o Don Bosse 

Request: Preliminary Plat 

 

 
 

 
90

Item 6.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Overview 

 

The Driftwood Creek Subdivision Phase Two consists of eighteen (18) single family residential lots, three (3) open space 

lots and two (2) private street lots on 19.30 acres located within Hays County and the ETJ of the City of Dripping Springs. 

The Driftwood Creek Subdivision Phase Two is being proposed to accommodate a single-family residential subdivision. 

The preliminary plat area is part of the 539.12 acres subject to the Development Agreement with the City of Dripping 

Springs. The preliminary plat is situated within the Onion Creek watershed. The preliminary plat is bounded by the 

existing Driftwood Phase 1 Section 1 subdivision on the west side, the existing Club Core Development on the north, 

privately owned property on the east and south. The subdivision is located within the Edwards Aquifer Contributing Zone. 

 

Action Requested 

 

Disapproval for the reasons set forth in the items applications for a Preliminary Plat (SUB2021-0029), consisting of 

approximately 19.301 acres out of the Fannie A.D. Darden Survey, Abstract No. 664, and Freelove Woody Survey No. 

23, Abstract No. 20, Hays County, Texas, generally located along Thurman Roberts Way in Driftwood, to be known as 

Driftwood Creek Phase 2.  

 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

Along Thurman Roberts Way in Driftwood 

 

Zoning Designation:   
ETJ 

 

Property History  

This is the first time this plat applications have been considered.  

 

Outstanding Comments 

Staff analyzed the proposed plats (SUB2021-0029) against the city’s code of ordinances, and the comments are attached are 

left outstanding.  

Recommendation 

 

Staff is recommending denial of the request based on the reasons set forth in item, including all attachments.  

 
Attachments 

Attachments 1 – Proposed Preliminary Plat  

Attachments 2 – Staff Comments 

 

 

Recommended Action: Recommend denial of the request.   

Budget/Financial Impact:    All fees have been paid.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

91

Item 6.



92

Item 6.



93

Item 6.



94

Item 6.



95

Item 6.



96

Item 6.



97

Item 6.



98

Item 6.



99

Item 6.



100

Item 6.



101

Item 6.



102

Item 6.



      

 

     

 

 

 

     

      

Date: May 20, 2021 
 

   

      

Name: Don Bosse 
Company: VP of Driftwood Golf Club 
Address:  582 Thurman Roberts Way, 
Driftwood TX 78619 
Email: dbosse@driftwoodgolfclub.com 

 

   

      

Dear : Don Bosse 
 

 

  

      

This letter is to inform you that the case number SUB2021-0029 is being denied on May 25, 2021 due to the following: 
 

      

Robyn Miga, Consulting Planner 
Planning Department robyn@texasmunicipallawyers.com 

  1. Remove the layer regarding those things that are being removed, it makes it difficult to read the details that 
are required on the plat under Section 4.7 of the City's Code.  

  2. Ensure lots are labeled with acreage, and width of lot, as well as all streets and easements labeled in 
accordance with requirements of 4.7(d) of the City's Code.  

  3. Signature page required for approval with the plat (attached separately). Which includes owners, surveyor, 
engineer, Planning & Zoning Commission, etc. (In accordance with 4.7(g))  

  4.  Include legal description on the plat.  

    

Chad Gilpin 
City Engineer cgilpin@cityofdrippingsprings.com 

5. Your engineering report and impervious cover calculations state “Per the Development Agreement, rainwater 
capture improvements for roofs will zero out the building’s effect of impervious cover and will not be used in 
the calculations.” Please point out what section of the DA says this. 

    

6. In your Engineering report please provide more specific discussion on how water quality and drainage is 
accomplished for this tract.  You broadly refer to the 2015 Engineering report prepared by J33S Engineering, 
but that report is quite extensive. Please direct me to the pages of the report that specifically speak to the 
water quality and drainage facilities designed that will be utilized by this tract and provide confirmation in 
your report that the design for Phase 2 is consistent with the original design considerations of the 2015 
report including sizing of water quality and drainage facilities, Impervious Cover, and  routing of storm flow. 

    

7. Provide proposed street sections [Preliminary Plat Information Requirements] 

103

Item 6.



    

8. Provide some schematic callouts clarifying what portions of the water line are being abandoned and how and 
where the proposed waterline will be connected into the existing system. [Preliminary Plat Information 
Requirements] 

    

9. Provide some schematic callouts clarifying where the force main and rainwater main are tying into mains 
outside phase 2. 

    

10. Is the intention for the entirety of Lot 14 to be a drainage easement?  Please clarify. 

    

11. Please add the IC tracking chart to the Preliminary Plat Cover Sheet.  Per [DA 3.2.4(h)]. 

Robby Callegari, Wastewater Reviewer 
 rcallegari@cma-engineering.com 

  11. A more detailed review will be done by CMA with the review of the construction plans.  This will be the 
determining factor on if all easements are shown and accounted for. 

 

      

Resubmittals must include a cover letter addressing each reviewer comment and noting where associated 
corrections/revisions/changes can be found in the submittal documents. Please keep previous review comments on 
the document as you resubmit your response letter, so that staff can keep track of the original comments. 
Resubmittals that do not include a cover letter will be considered incomplete and returned. For more information 
regarding resubmitting an application and dates please visit our website at 
http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/page/Planning.Submittinganapp 
 
Please note that this is the first denial of this project. If the project is denied again for unaddressed comments, it will 
require a complete refiling including a refiling fee, 10-day completeness check, and 30-day comment review period. To 
avoid this, we encourage applicants to schedule a meeting with reviewers to properly address the above comments. 
 
Should you have any questions or concerns in the meantime, please feel free to reach out to the planning department. 
 

 

      

 

 

      

 

104

Item 6.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/page/Planning.Submittinganapp


 
 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 

P& Z Meeting: May 25, 2021 

Project Number:  SUB2021-0030 – Bunker Ranch Phase 4 

Project Planner: Robyn Miga, Consulting Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Bunker Ranch Phase 4 

Property Location:   Generally located south of U.S. 290, between Bunker Ranch Blvd. and Arrowhead Ranch     

Blvd.  

Legal Description:  Approximately 38.94 acres out of the Benjamin F. Hanna Survey, No. 28, Abstract No. 

222, Hays County, Dripping Springs, Texas 

Applicant: Brian Estes 

Property Owner: Steve Harren 

Request: Final Plat for Bunker Ranch Phase 4 

 

 
 

105

Item 7.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

Action Requested 

 

Disapproval for the reasons set forth in the item’s applications for a Final Plat (SUB2021-0030), consisting of 

approximately 38.94 acres out of the Benjamin F. Hanna Survey No. 28, Abstract No. 222, Hays County, Dripping 

Springs, Texas, generally located south of U.S. 290, east of Bunker Ranch Blvd., and west of Arrowhead Ranch Blvd, 

to be known as Bunker Ranch Ph. 4.  

 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

The Subject property is located south of U.S. 290, east of Bunker Ranch Blvd., and west of Arrowhead Ranch Blvd.   

 

Physical and Natural Features:  

The property is mostly flat with moderate tree coverage.  

 

Zoning Designation:   
The property is zoned SF-2, Single-Family Residential, Moderate Density 

 

Property History  

This is the first time this plat applications have been considered.  

 

Outstanding Comments 

Staff analyzed the proposed plats (SUB2021-0030 against the city’s code of ordinances, and the comments are attached are 

left outstanding.  

 

Recommendation 

 

Staff is recommending denial of the request based on the reasons set forth in item, including all attachments.  

 
Attachments 

Attachment 1 – Proposed Final Plat  

Attachment 2 – Staff Comments 

 

 

Recommended Action: Recommend disapproval of the request.   

Budget/Financial Impact:    All fees have been paid.  

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

106

Item 7.



D
O

C
 N

O
. 2

00
17

19
7

D
O

C
 N

O
. 2

10
09

70
1

D
O

C
 N

O
. 2

10
09

70
1

D
O

C
 N

O
. 2

00
17

19
7

w
w

w
.c

ec
in

c.
co

m

37
11

 S
o

ut
h

 M
o

P
ac

 E
xp

re
ss

w
ay

 · 
B

ui
ld

in
g

 1
, S

ui
te

 5
50

 · 
A

us
tin

, T
X

  7
87

46
P

h
: 5

12
.4

39
.0

40
0 

· F
ax

: 5
12

.3
29

.0
09

6
Te

xa
s 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

S
ur

ve
yi

ng
 F

irm
 1

01
94

41
9

107

Item 7.



LO
T 

TA
B

LE

S
TR

E
E

T 
A

R
E

A

B
LO

C
K

 "1
"

TO
TA

L

w
w

w
.c

ec
in

c.
co

m

37
11

 S
o

ut
h

 M
o

P
ac

 E
xp

re
ss

w
ay

 · 
B

ui
ld

in
g

 1
, S

ui
te

 5
50

 · 
A

us
tin

, T
X

  7
87

46
P

h
: 5

12
.4

39
.0

40
0 

· F
ax

: 5
12

.3
29

.0
09

6
Te

xa
s 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

S
ur

ve
yi

ng
 F

irm
 1

01
94

41
9

108

Item 7.



”

w
w

w
.c

ec
in

c.
co

m

37
11

 S
o

ut
h

 M
o

P
ac

 E
xp

re
ss

w
ay

 · 
B

ui
ld

in
g

 1
, S

ui
te

 5
50

 · 
A

us
tin

, T
X

  7
87

46
P

h
: 5

12
.4

39
.0

40
0 

· F
ax

: 5
12

.3
29

.0
09

6
Te

xa
s 

R
eg

is
te

re
d 

S
ur

ve
yi

ng
 F

irm
 1

01
94

41
9

109

Item 7.



      

 

     

 

 

 

     

      

Date: May 21, 2021 
 

   

      

Name: Steve Harren 
Address:  317 Grace Lane #240, Austin, TX 78746 
Email: steveharren@aol.com   

 

   

      

Dear: Steve Harren 
 

 

  

      

This letter is to inform you that the case number SUB2021-0030 is being denied on May 25, 2021 due to the following: 
 

      

Chad Gilpin 
City Engineer cgilpin@cityofdrippingsprings.com 

   

1. The easement between Ph 4, Blk 1, Lots 22 & 23. should be a minimum 50ft ROW rather than an easement and 
an improved surface suitable for emergency access should be completed. The access shown on the previous 
preliminary plat provided access from the Stevens 50ft access easement on to Gaucho Way.  That access has 
been cut off by revision.  Per [Sub Ord 20.1.2] Adequate Public Facilities Policy. Wherever the subject property 
adjoins undeveloped land, or wherever required by the City to serve the public good, utilities shall be extended 
to adjacent property lines to allow connection of these utilities by adjacent property owners when such adjacent 
property is platted and/or developed.  Per this section this includes street facilities. 

 

2. Identify the WQBZ as shown on the Preliminary Plat. [Plat Information Requirement Checklist] 

 

3. Identify the FEMA 100-yr floodplain and floodway within lots 16 and 17 as identified on the Preliminary Plat. 
[Plat Information Requirement Checklist]  

 

4. Delete or modify Plat Note 6 regarding the floodplain as it is not accurate and conflicts with the Floodplain note 
below the engineer’s certification. 

 

5. Approval of this plat is pending the approval of the Revised Preliminary Plat for Phases 3 & 4. 

Dillon Polk 
North Hays ESD #6 dpolk@northhaysfire.com 

6. Emergency access needs to meet minimum fire code requirements. 
7. cul-de-sac must have a 48ft radius.      

 
 

      

110

Item 7.

mailto:steveharren@aol.com


Resubmittals must include a cover letter addressing each reviewer comment and noting where associated 
corrections/revisions/changes can be found in the submittal documents. Please keep previous review comments on the 
document as you resubmit your response letter, so that staff can keep track of the original comments. Resubmittals 
that do not include a cover letter will be considered incomplete and returned. For more information regarding resubmitting 
an application and dates please visit our website at http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/page/Planning.Submittinganapp 
 
Please note that this is the first denial of this project. If the project is denied again for unaddressed comments it will require 
a complete refiling including a refiling fee, 10-day completeness check, and 30-day comment review period. To avoid this, 
we encourage applicants to schedule a meeting with reviewers to properly address the above comments. 
 
Should you have any questions or concerns in the meantime, please feel free to reach out to the planning department. 
 

 

      

 

 

      

 

111

Item 7.

http://www.cityofdrippingsprings.com/page/Planning.Submittinganapp


Planning and Zoning Commission  
Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 
 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
May 25, 2021 

Project No:  SUB2021-0031 

Project Planner:  Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Parten Ranch Phase 5 Final Plat   

Property Location: 
1.5 miles southwest of the intersection of Nutty Brown Road and FM 1826 

(R16615) 

Legal Description: A0323 LAMAR MOORE SURVEY, ACRES 203.271 

Applicant: Daniel Ryan P.E., LJA Engineering  

Property Owner: HM Parten Ranch Development, Inc. 

Request: Final Plat of Parten Ranch Phase 5 

Staff recommendation: Approval of Parten Ranch Phase 5 final plat 

112

Item 8.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview  

The applicant is requesting to Final Plat Parten Ranch Phase 5. The Parten Ranch development is planned as a low-density 

single-family residential development located South of the intersection of Nutty Brown Road and FM1826, within the City 

of Dripping Springs Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). Parten Ranch Phase 5 is a portion of the Parten Ranch Concept Plan 

approved with the Parten Ranch Development Agreement.  The 46.57-acre Final Plat consists of a total of 70 lots and right 

of way. The lots include 68 single family lots, and 2 open space lot. 

ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION 

Access to this project shall be from FM 1826 by Parten Ranch Parkway  

SITE DRAINAGE AND WATER QUALITY 

The subdivision is located in the Bear Creek watershed. The detention requirements for this subdivision will be met by a 

regional detention pond constructed with Parten Ranch Phase 1. The tributary that traverses Parten Ranch is known as 

Springhollow. A portion of the project is within the boundaries of the 100-year floodplain. The runoff from this development 

will be routed to a proposed water quality pond. Once the pond is full to capacity, bypass flow will be directed to the existing 

Spring Hollow tributary within the Bear Creek Watershed.  

 

Parten Ranch Phase 5 Final Plat utility providers are listed below: 

 

Water: West Travis County PUA  

Wastewater: Hays County Mud No. 5 

Electric: PEC 

 

Recommendation: 

The property is within a Development Agreement, all comments have been met and the proposed plat is consistent and 

complies with the development standards set forth in the Development Agreement and City Ordinances.  

Staff is recommending approval of the plat. 

Outstanding Comments: 

None 

Public Notification 

Signs were posted on the site; notice was placed on the City Website. 

Attachments 

Attachments 1 – Subdivision Application 

Attachments 2 – Parten Ranch Phase 5 Final Plat  

Recommended Action Approve the Plat 

Alternatives/Options N/A 

Budget/Financial impact N/A 

Public comments None received at this time 

Enforcement Issues  N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Element N/A 

 
113

Item 8.



114

Item 8.



115

Item 8.



116

Item 8.



117

Item 8.



118

Item 8.



119

Item 8.



120

Item 8.



121

Item 8.



122

Item 8.



123

Item 8.



124

Item 8.



125

Item 8.



126

Item 8.



127

Item 8.



128

Item 8.



129

Item 8.



From: Cordoba, Cristina
To: Chad Gilpin; Amanda Padilla; Abraham Martinez
Cc: Estes, Brian; Castillo, Mario
Subject: RE: 5.4.2021 Meeting Minutes
Date: Thursday, May 13, 2021 9:22:59 AM
Attachments: image006.png

image002.png

Chad and Amanda –

Thanks for adding your meeting minute notes below. We would like to request that the Florio Tract
Preliminary Plat be postponed to the 6/22 P&Z review date. Per our discussion on 5/5, City Staff
indicated that a resubmittal fee would be required if the Preliminary plat is rejected twice at P&Z.
The TIA will not be approved by 5/25. The realistic goal is to obtain a Technical Approval Letter from
Leslie in time to place it on the 6/22 P&Z agenda with the Preliminary Plat.

Can you please confirm that postponing the P&Z review date will not require a resubmittal fee?
Basically, the application would be tabled on our desks until we receive the Technical Approval
Letter for the TIA from Leslie.

Please let me know.

Thanks,

Cristina Cordoba, EIT | Project Consultant
Civil & Environmental Consultants, Inc.
3711 S. MoPac Expressway, Building 1, Suite 550, Austin, TX 78746
direct 512.493.6062 office 512.439.0400 mobile 512.230.6383
www.cecinc.com

This electronic communication and any attachments are intended solely for the use of the person or entity to which it is
addressed, and may contain information that is confidential, privileged and exempt from disclosure under applicable law,
including copyright law. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, you are prohibited from disclosing, reproducing,
distributing, disseminating or otherwise using this transmission. Please promptly notify the sender by reply electronic
communication and immediately delete this message from your system.

130

Item 9.

mailto:ccordoba@cecinc.com
mailto:CGilpin@cityofdrippingsprings.com
mailto:apadilla@cityofdrippingsprings.com
mailto:amartinez@cityofdrippingsprings.com
mailto:bestes@cecinc.com
mailto:mcastillo@cecinc.com
https://www.cecinc.com/




 

STAFF REPORT 
 

City of Dripping Springs 

PO Box 384 

511 Mercer Street 

Dripping Springs, TX 78602 

Submitted By: Aaron Reed, Public Works Coordinator 

P&Z Meeting Date:  05/25/2021 

Agenda Item Wording: 
 Discuss and consider Approval of a Resolution Of Support regarding the City 

Of Dripping Springs Application for Funding under the 2021 Texas 

Department of Transportation TASA Call for Projects Program for the 

construction of a pedestrian pathway on Mercer St. and US Highway 290 

between RR-12 and Rob Shelton Blvd. 

 

Agenda Item Requestor: Aaron Reed 

Summary/Background:  City staff submitted a preliminary application for the 2021 TxDOT TASA 

call for projects for sidewalks along Mercer St. and US Hwy 290 between 

RR-12 and Rob Shelton Blvd.  The project was deemed eligible for funding 

by TxDOT and City staff is working on the detailed application.  City staff 

would like to request a Resolution of support from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission as this project would decrease traffic on City streets and 

provide safe, ADA compliant routes for pedestrians. 

Commission 

Recommendations: 

 

Recommended  

Actions: 

City Staff Recommends Approval. 

Attachments:  

Next Steps/Schedule: Send to City Secretary for Execution. 

131

Item 10.



 

132

Item 10.



Planning and Zoning Commission  Resolution of Support – Mercer St. 

Resolution No. 2021-_____  Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS 

RESOLUTION No. 2021-______ 

A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT BY PLANNING AND ZONING 

COMMISSION (“P&Z”) OF THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, TEXAS 

(“CITY”) FOR APPLICATION FOR FUNDING UNDER THE 2021 TEXAS 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION TASA CALL FOR PROJECTS 

PROGRAM (2021 TXDOT TASA PROGRAM) FOR THE ENHANCEMENT OF 

A PEDESTRIAN PATHWAY ON MERCER ST. AND US HIGHWAY 290 

BETWEEN RR-12 AND ROB SHELTON BLVD. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Dripping Springs Planning and Zoning Commission (“P&Z”) is aware 

of the need for sidewalks along Mercer St. and US Highway 290  (“Route”), 

specifically between Ranch Road 12 and Rob Shelton Blvd.; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Route is in the heart of the City where it is heavily traveled by pedestrians, 

cyclists, automobiles, trucks, and motorcycles, and commercial traffic which 

causes many safety issues for pedestrians and cyclists that access the Farmer’s 

Market, Veteran’s Memorial Park, Historic District, and businesses; and  

 

WHEREAS, funding from the 2021 TxDOT  TASA Program to improve the trails and sidewalks 

would enhance safety and also allow for the City to accommodate ADA (Americans 

with Disabilities) citizens; and 

 

WHEREAS, the P&Z believes funding under the 2021 TxDOT TASA Program for the 

improvement and enhancement of pedestrian and cyclist pathways along the Route 

would provide safety for the Citizens and users of the pathways as well as increase 

commercial foot and bicycle traffic in the area. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING & ZONING  

COMMISION OF THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, TEXAS: 

 

1. The Dripping Springs Planning and Zoning Commission supports the safe travel of all 

pedestrians and cyclists enjoying recreational facilities and local businesses in the heart of 

the community. 

 

2. The Dripping Springs Planning and Zoning Commission supports the application for 

funding under the 2021 TxDOT TASA Program to improve and enhance a pedestrian and 

cyclist pathways on Mercer St. and US Highway 290 between Ranch Road 12 and Rob 

Shelton Blvd. 

 

3. The meeting at which this Resolution was passed was open to the public, and that public 

notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 

Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551. 

 

133

Item 10.



Planning and Zoning Commission  Resolution of Support – Mercer St. 

Resolution No. 2021-_____  Page 2 of 2 

APPROVED, this the 25th day of May 2021, by a vote of _____ (ayes) to _____ (nays) to 

_____ (abstentions) of the Planning & Zoning Commission of Dripping Springs, Texas. 

 

 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS: 

 

 

       

Mim James, Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Andrea Cunningham, City Secretary 

134

Item 10.



Transportation Alternatives Grant
Mercer Street Connectivity Project

N
Improvements shown are conceptual  
and for illustrative purpose only.

Proposed sidewalk

Proposed crosswalk

Rob Shelton Blvd
Rob Shelton Blvd

Mercer St
Mercer St

Hays StHays St

12

Source: Google Maps 2019

Homespun Restaurant

24-Hour Emergency 
Center

Dripping Springs  
Farmers Market

Homestead Commercial Center

Downtown Dripping Springs

The Commons Commercial Center

McDonald’s 

Connect to Rob Shelton 2019 
Transportation Alternatives grant project

135

Item 10.



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

City of Dripping Springs 

PO Box 384 

511 Mercer Street 

Dripping Springs, TX 78602 

Submitted By: Aaron Reed, Public Works Coordinator 

P&Z Meeting Date:  05/25/2021 

Agenda Item Wording: 
 Discuss and consider Approval of a Resolution Of Support regarding the City 

Of Dripping Springs Application for Funding under the 2021 Texas 

Department of Transportation TASA Call for Projects Program for the 

construction of a pedestrian pathway on RR-12 and Event Center Dr. between 

the Founders Ridge subdivision, DSISD elementary school, Dripping Springs 

Ranch Park, and the Harrison Hills subdivision. 

 

Agenda Item Requestor: Aaron Reed 

Summary/Background:  City staff submitted a preliminary application for the 2021 TxDOT TASA 

call for projects for sidewalks along Ranch Road 12 and Event Center Dr. 

between the Founders Ridge subdivision, DSISD elementary school and 

Dripping Springs Ranch Park.  The project was deemed eligible for funding 

by TxDOT and City staff is working on the detailed application.  City staff 

would like to request a Resolution of support for the Planning & Zoning 

Commission as this project would improve connectivity between City parks, 

schools and multiple residential subdivisions. 

Commission 

Recommendations: 

 

Recommended  

Actions: 

City Staff Recommends Approval. 

Attachments:  

Next Steps/Schedule: Send to City Secretary for Execution. 

136

Item 11.



 

137

Item 11.



Planning and Zoning Commission  Resolution of Support- Elementary School 

Resolution No. 2021-_______                                Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS 

RESOLUTION No. 2021-______ 

A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT BY PLANNING AND ZONING 

COMMISSION (“P&Z”) OF THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, TEXAS 

(“CITY”) FOR THE GRANT APPLICATION TO THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT 

OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE CREATION OF PEDESTRIAN AND 

CYCLIST TRAIL CONNECTIONS FROM THE FOUNDERS RIDGE 

SUBDIVISION TO THE D.S.I.S.D. ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, DRIPPING 

SPRINGS RANCH PARK, AND SURROUNDING AREA. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Dripping Springs Planning and Zoning Commission (“P&Z”) is aware 

of the lack of pedestrian/ cyclist trails or sidewalks on the east side of Ranch Road 

12, running from the Founders Ridge Subdivision to the driveway for Dripping 

Springs Independent School District (“D.S.I.S.D.”) Elementary School and 

Dripping Springs Ranch Park (“Area”); and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to make the Area safe for pedestrians and cyclists, including all DSISD 

students and ADA (Americans with Disabilities) students; significant work must 

be done to create ADA pathways walkway; and  

 

WHEREAS, funding from the 2021 TxDOT TASA Program to would afford the construction of 

several, needed improvements within the Area slated as: sidewalks on the east side 

of Ranch Road 12 running from the Founders Ridge subdivision to the D.S.I.S.D. 

elementary school driveway; a sidewalk on the North side of Event Center Dr. from 

Ranch Road 12 to the Harrison Hills subdivision; a DG trail from Event Center Dr. 

to DS Ranch Park and Existing Trails; Improvements to the signalized crossing on 

Ranch Road 12; and 

 

WHEREAS, with the constant flow of commercial vehicles and cars, it is extremely dangerous 

for students to traverse the Area without a safe route; and 

 

WHEREAS, the P&Z believes funding under the 2021 TxDOT TASA Program for the 

improvement and enhancement of a shared pathway in the Area would provide 

safety for the City’s students and patrons alike. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING & ZONING 

COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, TEXAS: 

 

1. The Dripping Springs Planning and Zoning Commission supports the safe travel of all 

students and patrons of the City. 

 

2. The Dripping Springs Planning & Zoning Commission supports submission of the 

application for funding under the 2021 TxDOT TASA Program to create a shared 

pedestrian/cyclist pathway of various parts on the east side of Ranch Road 12 from the 

138

Item 11.



Planning and Zoning Commission  Resolution of Support- Elementary School 

Resolution No. 2021-_______                                Page 2 of 2 

Founders Ridge subdivision to the D.S.I.S.D. Elementary School, Dripping springs Ranch 

Park, and surrounding area. 

 

3. The meeting at which this Resolution was passed was open to the public, and that public 

notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 

Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551. 

 

APPROVED, this the 25th day of May 2021, by a vote of _____ (ayes) to _____ (nays) to 

_____ (abstentions) of the Planning & Zoning Commission of Dripping Springs, Texas. 

 

 

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS: 

 

 

       

Mim James, Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Andrea Cunningham, City Secretary 

 

 

139

Item 11.



Transportation Alternatives Grant
Elementary School Sidewalk Project

N
Improvements shown are conceptual  
and for illustrative purpose only.

12

Source: Google Maps 2019

Proposed sidewalk

Connect to existing  
sidewalks

Connect to existing  
sidewalks

ADA-compliant pedestrian 
signal enhancements

Dripping Springs 
Elementary School

Dripping Springs Ranch 
Park and Events Center

Founders Ridge Subdivision

Harrison Hills Subdivision

Proposed crosswalk

Buffalo Canyon Dr
Buffalo Canyon Dr

Event Center Dr
Event Center Dr

Founders Ridge

Founders Ridge

Connect to existing  
park trail

140

Item 11.



Planning and Zoning Commission  
Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 
 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
May 25, 2021 

Project No:  SUB2021-0028 

Project Planner:  Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: 480 and 500 Butler Ranch Replat  

Property Location: 480 and 500 Butler Ranch Road, Dripping Springs 

Legal Description: 
COUNTS ESTATES PHASE ONE, BLOCK A, Lot 3, ACRES 2.0727 

COUNTS TRACT, BLOCK A, Lot 1-A-1, ACRES 2.398 

Applicant: Steven Crauford, P.E., Pape-Dawson Engineers, Inc.  

Property Owner: Chris and Amanda Kelley  

Request: Adjust the shared lot line between 480 and 500 Butler Ranch Road  

Staff recommendation: Approval with conditions of Replat  

141

Item 12.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview  

The applicant is requesting to Replat Counts Estates Phase One, Block A, Lot 3, and Counts Tract, Block A, Lot 1-A-1. 

Counts Estates Phase 1 Subdivision is a 5-lot subdivision and Counts Tract is a 1-lot subdivision. Both subdivisions are 

located within the City of Dripping Springs City Limits. The 4.470-acre Replat consists of a total of 2 lots. The lots include 

2 single family lots. The replat would take lot 2 and subdivide it into 2 lots. The replat does not remove any recorded 

covenants or restrictions and does not increase the number of single-family residential lots. The replat is to allow a lot line 

to be adjusted between these subdivisions. No additional improvements or construction is proposed with this submittal.  

 

The property currently has frontage on Butler Ranch Road The applicant was granted a variance to Sec. 28.14.4 Irregular- 

Shaped Lots. Sec 14.4 of the Subdivision Ordinance is approved administratively. The decision made by the Development 

Team Review Committee is attached.  

 

The2 lot Replat utility providers are listed below: 

 

Water: Dripping Springs Water Supply Corporation  

Wastewater: OSSF 

Electric: Pedernales Electric Cooperative 

 

Recommendation: 

Staff is recommending approval of the plat with conditions (see below Section).  
142

Item 12.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Once all conditions have been met the proposed plat will be consistent and comply with the development standards set 

forth in the City Ordinances.  

Outstanding Comments: 

1. Approval is pending review of OSSF design by City OSSF reviewer. 

 

Public Notification 

Property Owner Notification were sent out to property owners within 300ft; signs were posted on the site; notice was 

placed on the City Website; notice was placed in the newspaper.  

Attachments 

Attachments 1 – Subdivision Application 

Attachments 2 –Subdivision Replat  

Attachments 3 – Counts Estates Phase 1 recorded plat 

Attachments 4 – Counts Tract recorded plat 

 

Recommended Action Approve the Plat with Conditions  

Alternatives/Options N/A  

Budget/Financial impact N/A 

Public comments None received at this time 

Enforcement Issues  N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Element N/A 

 

143

Item 12.



144

Item 12.



145

Item 12.



146

Item 12.



147

Item 12.



148

Item 12.



149

Item 12.



150

Item 12.



151

Item 12.



152

Item 12.



153

Item 12.



154

Item 12.



LOT 2-A-1, BLOCK A
VACATING PLAT &
REPLAT OF LOT 1,
BLOCK A, COUNTS

TRACT AND  REPLAT
OF LOT 2, BLOCK A,
COUNTS ESTATES

PHASE  ONE
VOL. 18, PG. 342 (P.R.)

OWNER: KEVIN &
KRISTY FRANTA

(VOL. 6925, PG. 358
O.P.R.)

COUNTS ESTATES,
PHASE 1

(VOL. 15, PG. 6 P.R.)

COUNTS ESTATES, PHASE 2
(VOLUME 18, PG. 2-7 P.R.)

COUNTS ESTATES, PHASE 2

(VOLUM
E 18, PG. 2-7 P.R.)

BLOCK A

LOT 7, BLOCK A
OWNER: CENTURY
LAND HOLDINGS

(VOL. 5190, PG. 717
O.P.R.)

LOT 6, BLOCK A
OWNER: CHRISTOPHER

HARKRIDER
(DEED NO. 18003609

O.P.R.)

LOT 5, BLOCK A
OWNER: CENTURY
LAND HOLDINGS

(VOL. 5354, PG. 215
O.P.R.)

LOT 4, BLOCK A
OWNER: CENTURY
LAND HOLDINGS

(VOL. 4890, PG. 787
O.P.R.)

A CALLED 10 ACRE TRACT (TRACT L)
OWNER: RODNEY WHITLEY

CONTRACT OF SALE AND PURCHASE,
TEXAS VETERANS LAND PROGRAM

(VOL. 357, PG. 594 O.P.R.)

A CALLED 6.997 ACRE TRACT (TRACT 1)
OWNER: VICKIE ANN JONES
(DEED NO. 19079087 O.P.R.)

LOT 3
BLOCK A

2.0727 ACRES

LOT 1-A-1, BLOCK A
VACATING PLAT &
REPLAT OF LOT 1,
BLOCK A, COUNTS

TRACT AND  REPLAT
OF LOT 2, BLOCK A,
COUNTS ESTATES

PHASE  ONE
VOL. 18, PG. 342 (P.R.)

2.398 ACRES

BUTLER RANCH RD
(50' ROW)

(50' INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT
VOL. 350, PG. 760 (D.R.)
VOL. 351, PG. 71 (D.R.)

50' WIDE ACCESS ESMT PER PLAT
VOL. 351, PG. 188 (P.R.)

AREA
BEING

REPLATTED

LOT 2-A-1, BLOCK A
VACATING PLAT &
REPLAT OF LOT 1,
BLOCK A, COUNTS

TRACT AND  REPLAT
OF LOT 2, BLOCK A,
COUNTS ESTATES

PHASE  ONE
VOL. 18, PG. 342 (P.R.)

OWNER: KEVIN &
KRISTY FRANTA

(VOL. 6925, PG. 358
O.P.R.)

COUNTS ESTATES,
PHASE 1

(VOL. 15, PG. 6 P.R.)

COUNTS ESTATES, PHASE 2
(VOLUME 18, PG. 2-7 P.R.)

COUNTS ESTATES, PHASE 2

(VOLUM
E 18, PG. 2-7 P.R.)

BLOCK A

LOT 7, BLOCK A
OWNER: CENTURY
LAND HOLDINGS

(VOL. 5190, PG. 717
O.P.R.)

LOT 6, BLOCK A
OWNER: CHRISTOPHER

HARKRIDER
(DEED NO. 18003609

O.P.R.)

LOT 5, BLOCK A
OWNER: CENTURY
LAND HOLDINGS

(VOL. 5354, PG. 215
O.P.R.)

LOT 4, BLOCK A
OWNER: CENTURY
LAND HOLDINGS

(VOL. 4890, PG. 787
O.P.R.)

A CALLED 10 ACRE TRACT (TRACT L)
OWNER: RODNEY WHITLEY

CONTRACT OF SALE AND PURCHASE,
TEXAS VETERANS LAND PROGRAM

(VOL. 357, PG. 594 O.P.R.)

A CALLED 6.997 ACRE TRACT (TRACT 1)
OWNER: VICKIE ANN JONES
(DEED NO. 19079087 O.P.R.)

LOT 3
BLOCK A

2.0727 ACRES

LOT 1-A-1, BLOCK A
VACATING PLAT &
REPLAT OF LOT 1,
BLOCK A, COUNTS

TRACT AND  REPLAT
OF LOT 2, BLOCK A,
COUNTS ESTATES

PHASE  ONE
VOL. 18, PG. 342 (P.R.)

2.398 ACRES

BUTLER RANCH RD
(50' ROW)

(50' INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT
VOL. 350, PG. 760 (D.R.)
VOL. 351, PG. 71 (D.R.)

50' WIDE ACCESS ESMT PER PLAT
VOL. 351, PG. 188 (P.R.)

SHEET 1 OF 3

D
a

t
e

:
 
M

a
y
 
1

8
,
 
2

0
2

1
,
 
1

0
:
5

9
a

m
 
 
U

s
e

r
 
I
D

:
 
V

Z
u

r
c
h

e
r

F
i
l
e

:
 
H

:
\
S

u
r
v
e

y
\
C

I
V

I
L

\
5

1
1

3
9

-
0

0
\
P

l
a

t
\
F

P
5

1
1

3
9

-
0

0
.
d

w
g

10801 N. MOPAC EXPY. BLDG. 3, SUITE 200 I AUSTIN, TX 78757 I 512.454.8711

AUST IN I SAN ANTON IO I HOUSTON I FORT WORTH I DALLAS

TBPE FIRM REGISTRATION #470  I  TBPLS FIRM REGISTRATION #10028801

C
iv

il J
ob

 N
o.

 5
11

39
-0

0;
 S

ur
ve

y 
Jo

b 
N

o.
 5

11
39

-0
0

C
O

UN
TS

 E
ST

A
TE

S

REPLAT OF
LOT 1-A-1, BLOCK A, COUNTS TRACT AND LOT 3, BLOCK

A, COUNTS ESTATES PHASE ONE
A 4.470 ACRE, OR 194,710 SQUARE FOOT, TRACT OF LAND, BEING ALL OF LOT 3, BLOCK A OF COUNTS

ESTATES, PHASE 1, A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN VOL. 15, PGS. 5-7 OF THE PLAT

RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, SAME BEING ALL OF LOT 1-A-1, BLOCK A OF VACATING PLAT AND

REPLAT OF LOT 1, BLOCK A, COUNTS TRACT AND VACATING PLAT AND REPLAT OF LOT 2, BLOCK A, COUNTS

ESTATES PHASE ONE, A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN VOL. 18, PG. 342 OF THE PLAT

RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, SITUATED IN THE  PHILIP A. SMITH SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 415 IN THE

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS.

OWNER: CENTURY LAND HOLDINGS II, LLC

8390  EAST CRESCENT PARKWAY, SUITE 650

GREENWOOD VILLAGE, CO 80111

OWNER: CHRIS & AMANDA KELLEY

500 BUTLER RANCH ROAD

DRIPPING SPRINGS, TX 78620

SURVEYOR: PAPE-DAWSON ENGINEERS, INC.

10801 N. MOPAC EXPY. BLDG. 3, SUITE 200

AUSTIN, TX 78759

(512) 454-8711 P

ENGINEER: PAPE-DAWSON ENGINEERS, INC.

10801 N. MOPAC EXPY. BLDG. 3, SUITE 200

AUSTIN, TX 78759

(512) 454-8711 P

SUBMITTAL DATE: DECEMBER 9 , 2019

LEGEND

PLAT RECORDS OF  HAYS
COUNTY, TEXAS
DEED RECORDS OF HAYS
COUNTY, TEXAS

FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD
(UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF
HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

(SURVEYOR)

FD. I.R. (SURVEYOR AS NOTED)

DOCUMENT NUMBER

FOUND IRON ROD
RIGHT OF WAY
VOLUME
PAGE

PAPE-DAWSON

DOC. NO.
O.P.R.

P.R.

D.R.

FD. I.R.
ROW
VOL.

PG.

(PD)

SET 12" IRON ROD WITH
YELLOW CAP MARKED
"PAPE=DAWSON"

LOCATION MAP
1" = 2000'

BUTLER RANCH

ROAD

CITY OF
DRIPPING
SPRINGS

SITE

L

L

O

Y

D

 

L

A

N

E

F

M

 

1

2

HWY 290

HAYS COUNTY

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTP.U.E.
BUILDING SETBACK LINEB.L.

ORIGINAL CONFIGURATION
A 4.470 ACRE, OR 194,710 SQUARE FOOT, TRACT OF LAND, BEING ALL OF LOT 3, BLOCK A OF COUNTS ESTATES, PHASE 1, A SUBDIVISION

ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN VOL. 15, PGS. 5-7 OF THE PLAT RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, SAME BEING ALL OF LOT 1-A-1,

BLOCK A OF VACATING PLAT AND REPLAT OF LOT 1, BLOCK A, COUNTS TRACT AND VACATING PLAT AND REPLAT OF LOT 2, BLOCK A, COUNTS

ESTATES PHASE ONE, A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN VOL. 18, PG. 342 OF THE PLAT RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY,

TEXAS, SITUATED IN THE  PHILIP A. SMITH SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 415 IN THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS.

AREA BEING REPLATTED

APPROXIMATE

CITY LIMITS

APPROXIMATE

ETJ

A
P

P
R

O
X

I
M

A
T

E

C
I
T

Y
 
L

I
M

I
T

S

A
P

P
R

O
X

I
M

A
T

E

E
T

J

EXTRA TERRITORIAL JURISDICTIONETJ

155

Item 12.



LOT 2-A-1, BLOCK A
VACATING PLAT &
REPLAT OF LOT 1,
BLOCK A, COUNTS

TRACT AND  REPLAT
OF LOT 2, BLOCK A,
COUNTS ESTATES

PHASE  ONE
VOL. 18, PG. 342 (P.R.)
OWNER: KEVIN &

KRISTY FRANTA
(VOL.6925, PG. 358

O.P.R.)

COUNTS ESTATES,
PHASE 1

(VOL. 15, PG. 6 P.R.)

BUTLER RANCH RD
(50' ROW)

(50' INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT
VOL. 350, PG. 760 (D.R.)
VOL. 351, PG. 71 (D.R.)

50' WIDE ACCESS ESMT PER PLAT
VOL. 351, PG. 188 (P.R.)

P.O.B.

COUNTS ESTATES, PHASE 2
(VOLUME 18, PG. 2-7 P.R.)

LOT 12LOT 11LOT 10LOT 9

COUNTS ESTATES, PHASE 2

(VOLUM
E 18, PG. 2-7 P.R.)

N:13977704.6

E:2260226.1

N:13976916.2

E:2260746.5

N:13976915.7

E:2260709.4

BLOCK A

N:13977716.2

E:2260615.6

LOT 7, BLOCK A
OWNER: CENTURY
LAND HOLDINGS

(VOL. 5190, PG. 717
O.P.R.)

LOT 6, BLOCK A
OWNER: CHRISTOPHER

HARKRIDER
(DEED NO. 18003609

O.P.R.)

LOT 5, BLOCK A
OWNER: CENTURY
LAND HOLDINGS

(VOL. 5354, PG. 215
O.P.R.)

LOT 4, BLOCK A
OWNER: CENTURY
LAND HOLDINGS

(VOL. 4890, PG. 787
O.P.R.)

A CALLED 10 ACRE TRACT (TRACT L)
OWNER: RODNEY WHITLEY

CONTRACT OF SALE AND PURCHASE,
TEXAS VETERANS LAND PROGRAM

(VOL. 357, PG. 594 O.P.R.)

A CALLED 6.997 ACRE TRACT (TRACT 1)
OWNER: VICKIE ANN JONES
(DEED NO. 19079087 O.P.R.)

LOT 3-A-1
BLOCK A

1.852 ACRES

LOT 1-A-2
BLOCK A

2.617 ACRES

LINE TABLE

CURVE TABLE

SHEET 2 OF 3

D
a

t
e

:
 
M

a
y
 
1

8
,
 
2

0
2

1
,
 
1

0
:
5

6
a

m
 
 
U

s
e

r
 
I
D

:
 
V

Z
u

r
c
h

e
r

F
i
l
e

:
 
H

:
\
S

u
r
v
e

y
\
C

I
V

I
L

\
5

1
1

3
9

-
0

0
\
P

l
a

t
\
F

P
5

1
1

3
9

-
0

0
.
d

w
g

10801 N. MOPAC EXPY. BLDG. 3, SUITE 200 I AUSTIN, TX 78757 I 512.454.8711

AUST IN I SAN ANTON IO I HOUSTON I FORT WORTH I DALLAS

TBPE FIRM REGISTRATION #470  I  TBPLS FIRM REGISTRATION #10028801

C
iv

il J
ob

 N
o.

 5
11

39
-0

0;
 S

ur
ve

y 
Jo

b 
N

o.
 5

11
39

-0
0

C
O

UN
TS

 E
ST

A
TE

S

REPLAT OF
LOT 1-A-1, BLOCK A, COUNTS TRACT AND LOT 3, BLOCK

A, COUNTS ESTATES PHASE ONE
A 4.470 ACRE, OR 194,710 SQUARE FOOT, TRACT OF LAND, BEING ALL OF LOT 3, BLOCK A OF COUNTS

ESTATES, PHASE 1, A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN VOL. 15, PGS. 5-7 OF THE PLAT

RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, SAME BEING ALL OF LOT 1-A-1, BLOCK A OF VACATING PLAT AND

REPLAT OF LOT 1, BLOCK A, COUNTS TRACT AND VACATING PLAT AND REPLAT OF LOT 2, BLOCK A, COUNTS

ESTATES PHASE ONE, A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN VOL. 18, PG. 342 OF THE PLAT

RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, SITUATED IN THE  PHILIP A. SMITH SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 415 IN THE

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS.

PLAT  NOTES:

1. PROPERTY CORNERS ARE MONUMENTED WITH A CAP OR DISK MARKED "PAPE-DAWSON"

UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

2. COORDINATES SHOWN ARE BASED ON THE NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 NAD83 (NA2011)

EPOCH2010.00 FROM THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM ESTABLISHED FOR THE SOUTH

CENTRAL ZONE DISPLAYED IN GRID VALUES DERIVED FROM THE NGS COOPERATIVE CORS

NETWORK.

3. DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE SURFACE WITH A COMBINED SCALE FACTOR OF 1.00013.

4. BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 NAD83 (NA2011)

EPOCH2010.00, FROM THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM ESTABLISHED FOR THE SOUTH

CENTRAL ZONE.

5. THE EASEMENTS CREATED BY SEPARATE INSTRUMENT AND THEIR LOCATIONS ARE GOVERNED

BY THE TERMS, PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH SEPARATE INSTRUMENTS.

6. THIS PROPERTY IS NOT WITHIN AN IDENTIFIED SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA INUNDATED BY

THE 100 YEAR AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA)

FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP (FIRM)  FOR HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS AND INCORPORATED AREAS,

MAP NO. 78209C0115F, DATED SEPTEMBER 2, 2005.

7. EDWARDS AQUIFER NOTE:

NO PORTION OF THIS SUBDIVISION LIES WITHIN THE EDWARDS AQUIFER RECHARGE ZONE. THIS

SUBDIVISION DOES LIE WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE BARTON SPRINGS SEGMENT OF TEH

CONTRIBUTING ZONE OF THE EDWARDS AQUIFER.

8. UTILITY INFORMATION:

WATER: DRIPPING SPRINGS WATER SUPPLY CORP.

WASTEWATER: INDIVIDUAL ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITIES

ELECTRICITY: PEDERNALES ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC.

TELEPHONE: VERIZON, INC.

9. SCHOOL DISTRICT: DRIPPING SPRINGS INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT

10. THIS PROPERTY LIES WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS

CORPORATE CITY LIMITS.

11. DRIVEWAY PERMIT NOTE:

IN ORDER TO PROMOTE SAFE USE OF ROADWAYS AND PRESERVE THE CONDITIONS OF PUBLIC

ROADWAYS, NO DRIVEWAY CONSTRUCTED ON ANY LOT IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE

PERMITTED TO ACCESS ONTO A PUBLICLY DEDICATED ROADWAY UNLESS (a) A DRIVEWAY

PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, TEXAS AND (b) THE DRIVEWAY

SATISFIES THE MINIMUM SPACING AND DRAINAGE FACILITY REQUIREMENTS FOR DRIVEWAYS.

12. MINIMUM CULVERT SIZE:

WHEN REQUIRED, LOTS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM DRIVEWAY CULVERT DIAMETER OF 18 INCHES.

13. THE PURPOSE OF THIS REPLAT IS TO ADJUST THE INTERIOR PROPERTY LINES BETWEEN LOT

1-A-1, BLOCK A OF THE COUNTS TRACT AND LOT 3, BLOCK A OF COUNTS ESTATES PHASE ONE

SUBDIVISION.

14. THE IMPERVIOUS COVER LIMITATION IS 30% PER SECTION 3.3.4(C) OF THE DRIPPING SPRINGS

ZONING ORDINANCE FOR SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LOTS CLASSIFIED AS LOW DENSITY

(SF-1).

LOCATION MAP
1" = 2000'

BUTLER RANCH

ROAD

CITY OF
DRIPPING
SPRINGS

SITE

L

L

O

Y

D

 

L

A

N

E

F

M

 
1

2

HWY 290

HAYS COUNTY

UTILITY  EASEMENT NOTE:

1. IN ADDITION TO ALL PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREOF, THERE IS HEREBY DEDICATED A 15' WIDE

UTILITY EASEMENT CENTERED ON ALL TELEPHONE, POWER POLES, AERIAL UTILITY LINES AND GUY WIRES

ON THIS PROPERTY.

2. DRIPPING SPRINGS WATER SUPPLY CORP. IS DEDICATED A 15' WATERLINE EASEMENT, THE CENTERLINE

BEING THE WATERLINE AS CONSTRUCTED.

LEGEND

PLAT RECORDS OF  HAYS
COUNTY, TEXAS
DEED RECORDS OF HAYS
COUNTY, TEXAS

FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD
(UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE)

OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF
HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS

(SURVEYOR)

FD. I.R. (SURVEYOR AS NOTED)

DOCUMENT NUMBER

FOUND IRON ROD
RIGHT OF WAY
VOLUME
PAGE

PAPE-DAWSON

DOC. NO.
O.P.R.

P.R.

D.R.

FD. I.R.
ROW
VOL.

PG.

(PD)

SET 12" IRON ROD WITH
YELLOW CAP MARKED
"PAPE=DAWSON"

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTP.U.E.
BUILDING SETBACK LINEB.L.
EXTRA TERRITORIAL JURISDICTIONETJ

156

Item 12.



STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

THAT CENTURY LAND HOLDINGS II, LLC, AS THE OWNER OF CALLED 2.0727 ACRE TRACT, BEING LOT 3, BLOCK

A, OF COUNTS ESTATES, PHASE 1, A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN  VOLUME 15,

PAGE 6 OF THE PLAT RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS CONVEYED  IN DEED DATED OCTOBER 15, 2015

RECORDED IN VOLUME 5354, PAGE 215 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS,

SITUATED IN THE PHILIP A. SMITH SURVEY, SECTION  NO. 26, ABSTRACT 415, IN THE CITY OF DRIPPING

SPRINGS, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, DO HEREBY SUBDIVIDE SAID LOT 3, PURSUANT TO PUBLIC NOTIFICATION

AND HEARING PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 212 OF THE TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, IN ACCORDANCE

WITH THIS PLAT, TO BE KNOWN AS

REPLAT OF LOT 1-A-1, BLOCK A, COUNTS TRACT AND LOT 3, BLOCK A, COUNTS ESTATES PHASE ONE

AND DO HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE PUBLIC THE USE OF THE EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON SUBJECT TO ANY

EASEMENTS, COVENANTS OR RESTRICTIONS HERETOFORE GRANTED AND NOT RELEASED.

BY: _________________________________

BRIAN BEKKER

VICE PRESIDENT OF OPERATIONS

CENTURY LAND HOLDINGS II, LLC

A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, D/B/A/ CENTURY LH II, LLC

6500 RIVER PLACE BLVD.

BUILDING 2, SUITE 200

AUSTIN, TX 78730

THE STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF HAYS §

I, Elaine H. Cárdenas, County Clerk of Hays County, Texas, do hereby certify that the foregoing instrument of Writing, with

its Certificate of Authentication was filed for record in my office on the ___day of___________, 20___, A.D., at _____

o'clock ___M. and duly recorded on the ___day of ____________, 20___, A.D., at ____o'clock ___M. in the plat records of

Hays County, Texas in CFN:_______________________

WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK of said County the ___day of ___________,

20___, A.D.

__________________________

Elaine H. Cárdenas, County Clerk

Hays County, Texas

THE STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

I, PARKER J. GRAHAM, AM AUTHORIZED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS TO PRACTICE THE

PROFESSION OF SURVEYING, AND HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT IS TRUE AND CORRECT AND WAS

PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY OF THE PROPERTY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND THAT THE

MONUMENTS WERE PROPERLY PLACED UNDER MY SUPERVISION.

PARKER J. GRAHAM DATE

REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO. 5556

STATE OF TEXAS

PAPE-DAWSON ENGINEERS, INC.

TBPE, FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 470

TBPLS, FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 10028801

10801 N. MOPAC EXPRESSWAY BUILDING 3, SUITE 200

AUSTIN, TEXAS, 78759

D
a

t
e

:
 
M

a
y
 
1

8
,
 
2

0
2

1
,
 
9

:
2

5
a

m
 
 
U

s
e

r
 
I
D

:
 
V

Z
u

r
c
h

e
r

F
i
l
e

:
 
H

:
\
S

u
r
v
e

y
\
C

I
V

I
L

\
5

1
1

3
9

-
0

0
\
P

l
a

t
\
F

P
5

1
1

3
9

-
0

0
.
d

w
g

SHEET 3 OF 3
10801 N. MOPAC EXPY. BLDG. 3, SUITE 200 I AUSTIN, TX 78757 I 512.454.8711

AUST IN I SAN ANTON IO I HOUSTON I FORT WORTH I DALLAS

TBPE FIRM REGISTRATION #470  I  TBPLS FIRM REGISTRATION #10028801

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

APPROVED AND AUTHORIZED TO BE RECORDED ON THE ____ DAY OF ______________, 20___ BY THE

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, TEXAS.

RECORDING SECRETARY DATE

REPLAT OF

A 4.470 ACRE, OR 194,710 SQUARE FOOT, TRACT OF LAND, BEING ALL OF LOT 3, BLOCK A OF COUNTS

ESTATES, PHASE 1, A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN VOL. 15, PGS. 5-7 OF THE PLAT

RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, SAME BEING ALL OF LOT 1-A-1, BLOCK A OF VACATING PLAT AND

REPLAT OF LOT 1, BLOCK A, COUNTS TRACT AND VACATING PLAT AND REPLAT OF LOT 2, BLOCK A, COUNTS

ESTATES PHASE ONE, A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN VOL. 18, PG. 342 OF THE PLAT

RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, SITUATED IN THE  PHILIP A. SMITH SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 415 IN THE

CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS.

ENGINEERING & PUBLIC WORKS:

NO STRUCTURE IN THIS SUBDIVISION SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTED TO A INDIVIDUAL WATER

SUPPLY OR A STATE-APPROVED COMMUNITY WATER SYSTEM. DUE TO DECLINING WATER SUPPLIES AND

WATER QUALITY, PROSPECTIVE PROPERTY OWNERS ARE CAUTIONED BY THE CITY TO QUESTION THE

SELLER CONCERNING GROUND WATER AVAILABILITY: RAIN WATER COLLECTION IS ENCOURAGED AND IN

SOME ARES MAY OFFER THE BEST RENEWABLE WATER SOURCE. NO STRUCTURE IN THE SUBDIVISION

SHALL BE OCCUPIED UNTIL CONNECTED TO A PUBLIC SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM OR TO AN INDIVIDUAL

ON-SITE SEWER FACILITY WHICH HAS BEEN APPROVED AND PERMITTED BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING

SPRINGS ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT.

NO CONSTRUCTION OR OTHER DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION MAY BEGIN UNTIL ALL CITY OF

DRIPPING SPRINGS, TEXAS DEVELOPMENT PERMIT REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN MET.

CHAD GILPIN, P.E. DATE

CITY ENGINEER

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, ON THIS DAY PERSONALLY APPEARED BRIAN BEKKER, KNOWN

TO ME TO BE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGED

TO ME THAT HE EXECUTED THE SAME FOR THE PURPOSES AND CONSIDERATION THEREIN STATED.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE ON THIS THE _______DAY OF ___________________, 2020, A.D.

_________________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS

PRINTED NAME MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF HAYS §

THAT WE, CHRIS KELLEY AND AMANDA KELLEY OWNERS OF LOT 1-A-1, AS THE OWNER OF CALLED 2.8525

ACRE TRACT, BEING LOT 1-A-1 VACATING PLAT AND REPLAT OF LOT 1, BLOCK A, COUNTS TRACT AND

VACATING PLAT AND REPLAT OF LOT 2, BLOCK A, COUNTS ESTATES PHASE ONE, A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING

TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN  VOLUME 18, PAGE 342 OF THE PLAT RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS

CONVEYED  IN DEED DATED OCTOBER 15, 2007 RECORDED IN VOLUME 3267, PAGE 118 OF THE OFFICIAL

PUBLIC RECORDS OF HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, SITUATED  IN THE PHILIP A. SMITH SURVEY, SECTION  NO. 26,

ABSTRACT 415, IN THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS, HAYS COUNTY, TEXAS, DO HEREBY SUBDIVIDE SAID LOT

1-A-1, PURSUANT TO PUBLIC NOTIFICATION AND HEARING PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 212 OF THE TEXAS

LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS PLAT, TO BE KNOWN AS

REPLAT OF LOT 1-A-1, BLOCK A, COUNTS TRACT AND LOT 3, BLOCK A, COUNTS ESTATES PHASE ONE

AND DO HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE PUBLIC THE USE OF THE EASEMENTS SHOWN HEREON SUBJECT TO ANY

EASEMENTS, COVENANTS OR RESTRICTIONS HERETOFORE GRANTED AND NOT RELEASED.

CHRIS KELLEY, OWNER AMANDA KELLEY, OWNER

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF HAYS §

BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY ON THIS DAY PERSONALLY APPEARED CHRIS KELLEY AND

AMANDA KELLEY, KNOWN TO ME TO BE THE PERSON WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE FOREGOING

INSTRUMENT, AND HE/SHE ACKNOWLEDGED TO ME THAT HE/SHE EXECUTED THE SAME FOR THE PURPOSE

AND CONSIDERATIONS THEREIN EXPRESSED AND IN THE CAPACITY THEREIN STATED.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE THIS DAY OF _______________________, A.D. 2020.

__________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS

_____________________

PRINTED NOTARY'S NAME

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: _____________________

LOT 1-A-1, BLOCK A, COUNTS TRACT AND LOT 3, BLOCK
A, COUNTS ESTATES PHASE ONE

C
iv

il J
ob

 N
o.

 5
11

39
-0

0;
 S

ur
ve

y 
Jo

b 
N

o.
 5

11
39

-0
0

C
O

UN
TS

 E
ST

A
TE

S

157

Item 12.



158

Item 12.



159

Item 12.



160

Item 12.



161

Item 12.



162

Item 12.



163

Item 12.



Planning and Zoning Commission  

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
May 25, 2021 

Project No:  CUP2020-0004 

Project Planner:  Abraham Martinez, Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: 451 Oak Springs Accessory Dwelling Unit 

Property Location: 451 Oak Springs Drive, Dripping Springs, Texas 78620 

Legal Description: SPRINGWOOD LOT 32 3.24 AC GEO#90403693 

Applicant: Michael Cottone; Journey Remodeling 

Property Owner: Josephine Shaw and Samuel Darren Shaw 

Request: Conditional use permit for an accessory dwelling structure 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the requested CUP with the conditions outlined in the staff report 

164

Item 13.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                     CUP2021-0004 
 
Background 

Ch. 30 Exhibit A § 1.6 of the Development Code defines the following: 

 Accessory use: A use that is customarily incidental, appropriate and subordinate to the principal use of land or 

building(s) and that is located upon the same lot therewith. The land and building area that is used for the accessory 

use must be significantly less than that used for the primary use, and the gross receipts that are derived from the 

accessory use must be significantly less than those derived from the primary use. 

 Accessory building (residential): In a residential district, a subordinate building that is attached or detached and 

is used for a purpose that is customarily incidental to the main structure but not involving the conduct of a business. 

The building area is less than that of the main structure as regulated herein. Examples may include, but are not 

limited to, the following: A private garage for automobile storage, tool shed, greenhouse as a hobby, home 

workshop, children's playhouse, storage building or garden shelter. 

 

Overview 

The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow an ± 1,035-square-foot accessory dwelling measuring 

approximately 36’ L x 28’ 9”W with an ±120-square-foot open air porch to be located at 451 Oak Springs Drive, Dripping 

Springs, Texas 78620. The accessory dwelling unit (ADU) would be comprised of a two (2) bedroom, two (2) bathrooms, 

kitchen, and living space; the ADU will connect to the existing drive approach, which will be expanded to accommodate an 

additional uncovered parking spot for the unit. The applicant is proposing to locate the ADU near the south property line 

(see Exhibit 2) with a 20-foot setback from the adjacent property line. The applicant is indicating a removal of up to three 

trees and an unspecified amount of cedar bush may take place for placement of the ADU but intends to further screen the 

unit using existing trees and additional bushes. Utilities (water, electric, sewer/septic) will be supplied to the ADU from the 

primary structures utilities, and upgrade as needed based on build out. The ADU will be on concrete foundation, have wood 

framing, and hardi siding painted to match the primary structure with matching asphalt shingles.  

The Property is located within the Single-Family Residential District- Low Density (SF-1) zoning district. Accessory 

dwellings are permitted in SF-1 zoning districts with an approved Conditional Use Permit. A conditional use is a land use 

that is compatible with the permitted land uses in a given zoning district only under certain conditions. Such conditions 

include a determination that the external effects of the conditional use in relation to the existing and planned uses of 

adjoining property and the neighborhood can be mitigated through imposition of additional standards and conditions. 

Accessory Dwelling is defined as a secondary living space that is on-site with a primary living space and that may be 

contained within the space structure as the primary or may be contained in a separate structure. Occupants of secondary 

living spaces typically include a caretaker, servant, or farm worker employed by the owner/occupant, or a guest or family 

member of the owner/occupant 

Single- Family Residential– Low Density (SF-1) zoning district is intended to provide for development of low density, 

detached, single- family residences on lots of at least one (1) acre in size. The applicant is proposing placing this accessory 

dwelling unit near the south line of the property line. The property located on the southwest corner of Springwood Road 

and Oak Springs Drive, east of FM 150.  

The Comprehensive Plan 2016 was adopted by the City Council on November 15, 2016. The Comprehensive Plan 2016 

outlines several goals and policies which can serve as a framework for assisting in evaluating the applicant’s request. The 

proposed accessory dwelling unit request meets the below goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan.  

Chapter 3: Livability / Quality of life 

 § 3.1 Support housing options in Dripping Springs 

“Accessory dwelling units (ADUs) are another opportunity to incorporate lower cost housing options into the 

existing fabric of the community. These units provide an option for older residents who want to downsize but 

remain in Dripping Springs or young couples just starting out. They also provide an option for homeowners 

who may want or need extra income, allowing them to remain in their homes by providing supplemental 

165

Item 13.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                     CUP2021-0004 
 

income. It will be important to explore best practices from other communities and establish a policy that 

reflects the values of Dripping Springs and protects neighborhood integrity for existing residents.”  

 

 

 Code requirement Code Met? 

Front Twenty-five feet (25') Yes; ±148 feet 

Rear Twenty-five feet (25') Yes; ±316 feet 

Side 

Total of forty (40) feet combining 

both side yards with a minimum of 

fifteen feet (15') on either side. 

Yes; north setback fronting 

Springwood Rd ±193 feet, ±30 

feet south line 

Setback for Garage 

Side-Entry Garages: Single-family 

homes with side-entry garages 

where lot frontage is only to one 

street (not a corner lot) shall have a 

minimum of twenty-five feet (25') 

from the door face of the garage or 

carport to the side property line for 

maneuvering. 

N/A 

Height  

Accessory Building(s): Maximum 

twenty-five feet (25') for other 

accessory buildings, including a 

detached garage or accessory 

dwelling units. 

Height is 17’7”  

Impervious Cover 
Thirty Percent (30%) Yes, they are under the 

impervious cover 
Table 1 Code requirements 

The applicant will need to provide two parking spaces for the accessory dwelling unit, in addition to the two parking spaces 

required for the primary structure, as written in the Code per Exhibit A: Sec 5 §5.6.1 Parking based on use:  

5.6.1 Residential  

(a) Single-family residential including SF-1, SF-2, SF-3 and SF-4: Two per dwelling unit. 

 

The Accessory Dwelling Unit will connect into utilities from the Main Residential Building. Utilities are below: 

Water: Dripping Springs Water Supply Corporation (DSWSC). The structure will connect into existing 1” Water 

Line on Main House.  

Wastewater:  Proposed ADU will first try to connect to existing septic, after review. New septic may be installed 

for ADU pending results of septic review.   

Electricity: PEC 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
166

Item 13.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                     CUP2021-0004 
 
Surrounding Properties 

 
The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are outlined in the 

table below: 

 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Comprehensive Plan 

North 
Single- Family Residential 

– Low Density (SF-1) 
 Single family residential 

Plot is located outside 

of Comprehensive 

Plan category. 

Adjacent to a 2016 

Transportation Plan 

Road 

East 
Single- Family Residential 

– Low Density (SF-1)  
Single family residential 

South 
Single- Family Residential 

– Low Density (SF-1) 
Single Family Residential  

West 
Single- Family Residential 

– Low Density (SF-1)  
Single Family Residential  

 

The feel of the subdivision is a low to moderate dense rural neighborhood with open yards. The neighborhood has very 

little fencing. The applicant does not intend to place a fence around the ADU.  

 

Approval Criteria for Conditional Use Permit Review (3.17.6-Zoning Ordinance) 

Approval Criteria Staff Comments 

1. The proposed use at the specified location is 

consistent with the policies embodied in the 

Comprehensive Plan; 

The Compressive Plan addresses accessory dwelling units 

in the Comprehensive Plan Goal 3.1. ADUs are an option 

for supporting housing options in Dripping Springs. 

2. The proposed use is consistent with the general 

purpose and intent of the applicable zoning district 

regulations; 

The subject property is zoned Single-family Residential 

District – Low Density (SF-1). Accessory dwelling units 

are a listed conditional use in this zoning district. 

167

Item 13.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                     CUP2021-0004 
 

3. The proposed use meets all supplemental standards 

specifically applicable to the use, as established in 

the Development Standards, Section 5; 

Based on the concept plan the proposed use meets all the 

development standards established in the section 5. The 

structure will be reevaluated at the building permit stage.  

 

4. The proposed use is compatible with and preserves 

the character and integrity of adjacent 

development and neighborhoods, and (as required 

by the particular circumstances) includes 

improvements or modifications (either on-site or 

within the public rights-of-way) to mitigate 

development-related adverse impacts, including 

but not limited to the following: 

 

a. Adequate ingress and egress to 

property and proposed structures 

thereon with particular reference to 

vehicular and pedestrian safety and 

convenience, and access in case of 

fire; 

The applicant will be utilizing the existing driveway 

already in place for main structure and extending the 

driveway to access the ADU.  

b. Off-street parking areas, loading areas, 

and pavement type; 

The accessory dwelling unit will have adequate parking. 

Open air off-street parking will be provided.  

c. Refuse and service areas; 

 

The City's solid waste service will need to be alerted. 

d. Utilities with reference to location, 

availability, and compatibility; 

See staff report 

e. Screening and buffering, features to 

minimize visual impacts, and/or 

setbacks from adjacent uses; 

There will be no new permanent fencing with this 

additional structure and there is no current permanent 

fencing – it is all open space. 

f. Control of signs, if any; 

 

N/A 

g. Control of exterior lighting with 

reference to glare, traffic safety, 

economic effect, and compatibility 

and harmony with properties in the 

district; 

Lighting for the new structure will match the current 

house structure in accordance with city codes. 

h. Required yards and open space; 

 

The ADU will have access to the open space and yard of 

the main dwelling per the attached survey 

i. Height and bulk of structures; 

 

The ADU will match the proposed elevations 

j. Hours of operation; 

 

N/A 

k. Exterior construction material, 

building design, and building facade 

treatment; 

The new structure will be of wood framing with hardi 

siding painted to match the existing home.  

l. Roadway adjustments, traffic-control 

devices or mechanisms, and access 

restrictions to control traffic flow or 

divert traffic as may be needed to 

reduce or eliminate development-

generated traffic on neighborhood 

streets; and 

N/A 

m. Provision for pedestrian 

access/amenities/areas; 

N/A 

168

Item 13.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                     CUP2021-0004 
 

5. The proposed use is not materially detrimental to 

the public health, safety, convenience and welfare, 

or results in material damage or prejudice to other 

property in the vicinity; and, 

 

The use is not materially detrimental to the public health, 

safety, convenience and welfare, or results in material 

damage or prejudice to other property in the vicinity. 

6. Noise; N/A 

7. Odors; and N/A 

8. Dust. N/A 

 

Summary 

Staff recognizes an ADU as an appropriate accessory use in the SF-1 Single Family Residential District and supports the 

proposed request. The inclusion of an ADU would not adversely impact the property or its surrounding neighbors, and 

conditions as listed below would serve as additional measures to mitigate any visual or development factors.  

Based on the proposed land use, compatibility with surrounding properties, and the Comprehensive Plan, staff recommends 

approval of the requested CUP with the following conditions: 

1. Maximum floor area for an Accessory Dwelling Unit may not exceed 1,170-square-feet. 

2. The ADU must adhere to a 20-foot side yard setback.  

3. A minimum of two off-street parking spaces for the Accessory Dwelling Unit must be provided in addition 

to any other parking requirements.  

4. Connections to an appropriate on-site septic system must be approved by the City prior to occupancy.  

5. The Accessory Dwelling Unit may not be sold separately from the primary structure.  

6. Conditional Use Permits for new uses/structures shall be deemed to have expired and shall become null 

and void if construction is not completed and occupation commenced within two years of the date the 

CUP was approved.  

7. The City Administrator may revoke the CUP for failure to comply with municipal regulations and the 

conditions placed on the use (City of Dripping Springs Zoning Ordinance §3.17.9) 

8. Conditional Use Permit is effective on _______. 

 

The below is an excerpt of the Code for the procedures that P&Z should take for CUPS.   

Chapter 30 Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance Sec 3.17.5 Procedures for CUPs:  

(a) P&Z Recommendation: Following the public hearing, the P&Z shall recommend approval, approval subject 

to modification, or denial of the proposal to the City Council. If the appropriateness of the use cannot be 

assured at the location, the P&Z shall recommend denial of the application as being incompatible with existing 

uses or with other uses permitted by right in the district. 

 

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of 

the request. 

Meetings Schedule 

May 25, 2021 – Planning and Zoning Commission 

June 08, 2021 - City Council Meeting 

 

Attachments 

Attachment 1- Conditional Use Permit Application 

Attachment 2- Proposed Site Plan, Elevations, Plans 

 

 

 

169

Item 13.



Planning Department Staff Report                                                                     CUP2021-0004 
 

Recommended Action: Recommend approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit, with staff and any 

additional conditions deemed necessary by the Commission. 

Alternatives/Options: Recommend denial of the Conditional Use Permit; recommend approval of the 

Conditional Use Permit with no, or alternate, conditions. 

Budget/Financial Impact:    None calculated at this time. 

Public Comments: None at this time 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

Comprehensive Plan 
Element: 

Livability / Quality of Life 

Support housing options in Dripping Springs 

 

170

Item 13.



171

Item 13.



172

Item 13.



173

Item 13.



174

Item 13.



C
:\U

se
rs

\n
at

ha
\O

ne
D

riv
e\

pe
rs

on
al

\0
1_

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l\0
1_

Fa
m

ily
\0

4_
S

ha
w

 R
em

od
el

\S
ha

w
 A

D
U

\S
ha

w
 A

D
U

.p
ln

 |V
er

. 2
1.

18
02

 | 
S

at
ur

da
y,

 M
ay

 8
, 2

02
1 

| 3
:4

3 
P

M

F

R
G

2'-10 1/2" 10'-5 3/4" 15'-4 3/4"

9'
-9

"

2'-7" 10'-1"

7'
-4

 1
/4

"
12

'-5
 3

/8
"

5'
-5

"
10

'-2
 3

/8
"

8'-3"

5'
-5

"

12'-8"
12

'-0
"

6'
-1

1 
1/

2"

8'-6 1/2"

3'-8 7/8"

2'-7 1/8" 4'-6"

7'-6"

6'
-1

1 
3/

8"

7'-11 1/4"

5'-11 1/4"

7'
-0

"

9'
-0

"
3'

-0
"

15
'-1

1 
5/

8"

15'-0"

7'
-7

 3
/4

"
12

'-4
 3

/4
"

5'
-9

 3
/4

"
10

'-1
 3

/4
"

36
'-0

"

28'-9"

4'-1/2" 3'-0"
1'-4 1/4"

6'-1/2" 8'-0"

3'
-4

 1
/4

"
2'

-1
/2

"
2'

-3
"

7"
2'

-1
/2

"
6'

-1
1"

2'
-1

/2
"

3'-10" 5'-4 3/4" 4'-1 5/8" 2'-7 1/8" 2'-7 1/4" 2'-0" 2'-3/4" 4'-1/2" 2'-1"

7'
-7

 5
/8

"
7'

-5
/8

"
4'

-1
/2

"
3'

-1
0 

3/
8"

5'
-1

 5
/8

"
6'

-1
/2

"
2'

-2
 3

/4
"

10
'-6

"
15

'-0
"

10
'-6

"

#/A3.11 #/A3.11

3070

3070

28
70

30703070

3070

30
70

30
70

175

Item 13.



C
:\U

se
rs

\n
at

ha
\O

ne
D

riv
e\

pe
rs

on
al

\0
1_

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l\0
1_

Fa
m

ily
\0

4_
S

ha
w

 R
em

od
el

\S
ha

w
 A

D
U

\S
ha

w
 A

D
U

.p
ln

 |V
er

. 2
1.

18
02

 | 
S

at
ur

da
y,

 M
ay

 8
, 2

02
1 

| 3
:4

3 
P

M

6'-0"x5'-0" 4'-0"x5'-0"

SCALE: 3/8"   =    1'-0"

ELEVATION - NORTH

176

Item 13.



C
:\U

se
rs

\n
at

ha
\O

ne
D

riv
e\

pe
rs

on
al

\0
1_

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l\0
1_

Fa
m

ily
\0

4_
S

ha
w

 R
em

od
el

\S
ha

w
 A

D
U

\S
ha

w
 A

D
U

.p
ln

 |V
er

. 2
1.

18
02

 | 
S

at
ur

da
y,

 M
ay

 8
, 2

02
1 

| 3
:4

3 
P

M

SCALE: 3/8"   =    1'-0"

ELEVATION - WEST

177

Item 13.



C
:\U

se
rs

\n
at

ha
\O

ne
D

riv
e\

pe
rs

on
al

\0
1_

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l\0
1_

Fa
m

ily
\0

4_
S

ha
w

 R
em

od
el

\S
ha

w
 A

D
U

\S
ha

w
 A

D
U

.p
ln

 |V
er

. 2
1.

18
02

 | 
S

at
ur

da
y,

 M
ay

 8
, 2

02
1 

| 3
:4

3 
P

M

SCALE: 3/8"   =    1'-0"

ELEVATION - SOUTH

178

Item 13.



C
:\U

se
rs

\n
at

ha
\O

ne
D

riv
e\

pe
rs

on
al

\0
1_

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l\0
1_

Fa
m

ily
\0

4_
S

ha
w

 R
em

od
el

\S
ha

w
 A

D
U

\S
ha

w
 A

D
U

.p
ln

 |V
er

. 2
1.

18
02

 | 
S

at
ur

da
y,

 M
ay

 8
, 2

02
1 

| 3
:4

3 
P

M

2'-0"x5'-0" 2'-0"x5'-0" 2'-0"x5'-0"

SCALE: 3/8"   =    1'-0"

ELEVATION - EAST

179

Item 13.



C
:\U

se
rs

\n
at

ha
\O

ne
D

riv
e\

pe
rs

on
al

\0
1_

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l\0
1_

Fa
m

ily
\0

4_
S

ha
w

 R
em

od
el

\S
ha

w
 A

D
U

\S
ha

w
 A

D
U

.p
ln

 |V
er

. 2
1.

18
02

 | 
S

at
ur

da
y,

 M
ay

 8
, 2

02
1 

| 3
:4

3 
P

M

17
'-1

 1
/2

"

17
'-7

 5
/8

"

9'
-0

"

7'-7" 15'-5 3/4" 10'-5 1/4" 2'-7 1/2"

SCALE: 3/8"   =    1'-0"

SHORT SECTION
180

Item 13.



181

Item 13.



182

Item 13.



Planning and Zoning Commission  

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
May 25, 2021 

Project No:  CUP2021-0002 

Project Planner:  Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Dog ‘N’ Bone Mobile Food Vendor 

Property Location: 310 Old Fitzhugh Road, Dripping Springs Texas 78620 

Legal Description: ABS 415 PHILIP A SMITH SURVEY 0.63 AC GEO#90401232 

Applicant: Mike Pelland 

Property Owner: Dog ‘N’ Bone LLC 

Request: 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a Mobile Food Vendor use within the General Retail (GR) 

Zoning District and Old Fitzhugh Historic District  

183

Item 14.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
Overview 

The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Mobile Food Vendor to be located at 310 Old Fitzhugh 

Road also known as Dog ‘N’ Bone. The Property is located within the General Services (GR) zoning district and the Old 

Fitzhugh Road Historic District. Mobile Food Vendors are a permitted use in the GR zoning district and Old Fitzhugh Road 

Historic District with an approved Certificate of Appropriateness and a Conditional Use Permit.  

Per the City’s Zoning Ordinance that was amended on April 10, 2018, Sec. 30.05.032 (e), Applicants of mobile food vendors 

(longer than 10 days) or mobile food courts wishing to locate in the Old Fitzhugh historic district as defined in section 

24.07.032 [chapter 30, exhibit A, section 4.3.2] of the Code of Ordinances must apply for and be granted a certificate of 

appropriateness under the requirements of chapter 24, article 24.07 [chapter 30, exhibit A, section 4, division 2] of the city 

code and apply for and be granted a conditional use permit under the requirements of chapter 30, exhibit A: zoning, section 

3.17 of the city code. A conditional use permit shall not be granted prior to a certificate of appropriateness being granted. 

 

The Mobile Food Vendor will be located at 310 Old Fitzhugh Road also known as Dog ‘N’ Bone. The property is 

approximately 0.63 acres. The required setbacks within the Old Fitzhugh Road Historic District are below:  

Direction Setback Code requirement 

Front Ten Feet (10’) 

Rear Ten Feet (10’) 

Side  Five feet (5’) 

184

Item 14.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
 

Dog ‘N” bone is advertised as a Gastropub with the option of food and drinks. The Mobile food vendor is intended to 

serve fish and chips and other gastropub items. The main structure on the property will be reserved for the bar (CUP is 

being reviewed), seating, and dining.  

 

Dog ‘N’ Bone previously received a Conditional Use Permit for a Mobile Food Vendor Use but per Chapter 30 Exhibit A 

Section 3.17.9 Expirations, extension, and termination (c) CUPs for new uses/structures shall be deemed to have expired 

and shall become null and void if construction is not completed and occupation commenced within two years of the date 

the CUP was approved. The Mobile Food Vendor use was approved on November 13, 2018 by City Council and has yet to 

be occupied and has expired. The applicant is reappearing in front of the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council 

to receive reapproval of the Conditional Use Permit.  

The applicant received a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) on October 3, 2018 and renewed the COA at the April 1st, 

2021 Historic Preservation Commission Meeting.  

The applicant had intended to build a brick-and-mortar kitchen that would replace the Mobile Food Vendor but the 

applicant has no set date on the construction of the kitchen.  

 

Surrounding Properties 

 
 

 

The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are outlined in the table 

185

Item 14.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 
below: 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Comprehensive Plan 

North Commercial Services (CS) Verizon Communications 

Not Applicable 

East Commercial Services (CS) Retail/ Bar   

South Commercial Services (CS)  Residential  

West 

General Retail (GR) / 

Single-family residential 

district—Low density (SF-

1) 

Residential 

 

 

Approval Criteria for Conditional Use Permit Review (3.17.6-Zoning Ordinance) 

Approval Criteria Staff Comments 

1. The proposed use at the specified location is 

consistent with the policies embodied in the 

Comprehensive Plan; 

The Comprehensive plan is supportive of commercial 

development. There are two goals that the comprehensive 

plans discuss that fit with this request 1. Support expansion 

of business and professional services and 2. Support 

Tourism. 

 

The addition of the mobile food vendor will add diversity 

to the local economy and make dripping springs more 

attractive to prospective businesses. 

 

2. The proposed use is consistent with the general 

purpose and intent of the applicable zoning district 

regulations; 

The zoning district is General Retail (GR), which permits 

commercial and retail uses. Mobile food vendors are 

permitted in the GR zoning district with the approval of a 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP). 

 

3. The proposed use meets all supplemental standards 

specifically applicable to the use, as established in 

the Development Standards, Section 5; 

The applicant will need to meet all development standards.  

 

4. The proposed use is compatible with and preserves 

the character and integrity of adjacent development 

and neighborhoods, and (as required by the 

particular circumstances) includes improvements or 

modifications (either on-site or within the public 

rights-of-way) to mitigate development-related 

adverse impacts, including but not limited to the 

following: 

 

a. Adequate ingress and egress to 

property and proposed structures 

thereon with particular reference to 

vehicular and pedestrian safety and 

convenience, and access in case of fire; 

The property fronts Old Fitzhugh Road and will be 

required to have adequate access prior to occupation and 

service from the Mobile Food Vendor.  

 

The applicant submitted a Site development Plan to the 

City of Dripping Springs in 2019. In the Site plan a 

driveway is proposed on the south end of the property.  

b. Off-street parking areas, loading areas, 

and pavement type; 

The property will need to have an additional 3 parking 

spaces for the mobile food vendor per the Mobile Food 

Vendor Ordinance.  

 
186

Item 14.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

c. Refuse and service areas; 

 

The applicant will be required to provide trash can 

receptacles for the patrons.  

d. Utilities with reference to location, 

availability, and compatibility; 

The mobile food vendor is required to be plugged into an 

approved outlet. Restrooms will be shared with the 

business on site.  The Mobile Food Vendor will be required 

to comply with all Fire safety regulations.  

e. Screening and buffering, features to 

minimize visual impacts, and/or 

setbacks from adjacent uses; 

No Screening is proposed. 

f. Control of signs, if any; 

 

Signage will be done with a separate permit and will need 

to comply with the Current Sign Ordinance in effect. Any 

variances will require approval.  

g. Control of exterior lighting with 

reference to glare, traffic safety, 

economic effect, and compatibility and 

harmony with properties in the district; 

The owner shall comply with the Lighting Ordinance.  

h. Required yards and open space; 

 

Not applicable.  

i. Height and bulk of structures; 

 

The mobile food vendor meets height requirements.   

j. Hours of operation; 

 

The hours of operation have yet to be decided by the 

applicant.  

 

The Mobile Food Vendor Ordinance restricts the applicant 

from operating between the hours of 11:00pm to 6:00am. 

k. Exterior construction material, 

building design, and building facade 

treatment; 

Mobile Food Vendors do not have to comply with our 

Exterior Design Ordinance, but they do have to comply 

with our Sign Ordinance and applicable Sign Codes.  

l. Roadway adjustments, traffic-control 

devices or mechanisms, and access 

restrictions to control traffic flow or 

divert traffic as may be needed to 

reduce or eliminate development-

generated traffic on neighborhood 

streets; and 

Not applicable.   

m. Provision for pedestrian 

access/amenities/areas; 

The mobile food vendor will be tied to the adjacent 

business which will provide tables and seating.   

5. The proposed use is not materially detrimental to 

the public health, safety, convenience and welfare, 

or results in material damage or prejudice to other 

property in the vicinity; and, 

 

Staff finds that the proposed mobile food vendor use will 

not be detrimental or damaging to the surrounding 

properties, these properties being similarly commercially 

zoned.  

6. Noise; The applicant stated that there will only be acoustic music 

for the time being.  

 

Due to the location and proximity to adjacent residence, 

Staff is requesting that the decibel level stay below 65 

decibels and that music shall only be allowed during the 

hours of operation.  

 

187

Item 14.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

7. Odors; and No odors anticipated. 

8. Dust. Not Applicable 

 

 

 

Summary 

Based on the proposed land use, adjacent land uses, the opportunity to attract more individuals to the Historic District and 

increase sales tax staff recommends approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit for the property with the conditions 

outlined in the below section.   

Conditional Use Permit Requirements 

 

A mobile food vendor at the above-mentioned location is allowed pursuant to the following regulations:  

1. Decibel Level shall not exceed 65 decibels. Decibel level shall be measured at the property line. 

2. Hours of operation are limited to the closing time of 10:00 p.m. Sunday through Thursday, and 11:00 p.m. Friday 

and Saturday. 

3. The property adheres to all Fire and Life Safety Codes found in the International Fire Code  

4. Should the City find the mobile food truck to create health and safety issues due to any reasons, the City 

Administrator may request that the Applicant remove any vehicle from the site. The Applicant shall comply with 

the City Administrator’s request.  

5. This Conditional Use Permit automatically renews for successive two (2) year periods unless an objection is raised 

by the City Administrator based on either:  

a. A history of poor code compliance. 

b. A revision to the Comprehensive Plan that renders the CUP incompatible. 

6. The City administrator may revoke a CUP for failure to comply with municipal regulations and the conditions 

placed on the use.  

 

The below excerpt of the Code are the procedures that P&Z should take for CUPS.   

Chapter 30 Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance Sec 3.17.5 Procedures for CUPs:  

(a)     P&Z Recommendation: Following the public hearing, the P&Z shall recommend approval, approval subject 

to modification, or denial of the proposal to the City Council. If the appropriateness of the use cannot be assured at 

the location, the P&Z shall recommend denial of the application as being incompatible with existing uses or with 

other uses permitted by right in the district. 

 

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of the 

Conditional Use Permit request. 

Meetings Schedule 

May 25, 2021 – Planning and Zoning Commission 

June 8, 2021 - City Council Meeting 

 

Attachments 

Attachment 1 - Conditional Use Permit Application 

Attachment 2 – Site Plan 

Attachment 3 – COA Staff Report 

Attachment 4 – Site Photos 

Attachment 5 – Previously approved CUP 

 

188

Item 14.



Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Recommended Action: Recommend approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit, with staff and any 

additional conditions deemed necessary by the Commission. 

Alternatives/Options: Recommend denial of the Conditional Use Permit; recommend approval of the 

Conditional Use Permit with no or alternate conditions. 

Budget/Financial Impact:    None calculated at this time, but the City would receive additional sales tax revenue. 

Public Comments: Staff has not received any public comments at this time.  

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

Comprehensive Plan 
Element: 

Support the expansion of business and professional services 

Support Tourism related businesses 

 

189

Item 14.



ORIPPIN CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS
PHYSICAL:511 Mercer Street MAILING: PO Box 384

Dripping Springs, TX 78620

512.858.4725 www.cityofdrippingsprings.com

INC.1981

TEXA

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION

Case Number(staff use only):_

NEW APPLICATION EXTENSION OF APREVIOUSLY APPROVED CUP

CONTACT INFORMATION

PROPERTY oWNER NAME n Bpne LLC
STREET ADDRESS 310 old Etzhuah Be
CITY Dnppiną Sanogs STATE T

PHONESa -814-3438 EMAIL doqabone complinueamul.com
ZIP CODE78(%20

Do n' Bone LLAPPLICANT NAME_

cOMPANY Daan' Bane LL

210 0ld Eitzhush kdSTREET ADDRESS

aITY ppin nngs _STATE TX
PHONESLa-8-2430EMAIL doqnbdneLbmpliane Eoail.cam

28lAb_ZIPCODE

Page 1 of 4
190

Item 14.



PROPERTYINFORMATION

Doa
310 Old Ptzlawah Ld

n Bone LCPROPERTY owNER NAME

PROPERTY ADDRESS

Mohile Food Vžndo
3a0laleD83505-

CURRENT LEGAL DESCRIPTION

TAX ID#

LOCATED IN CTYLIMITS

EXTRATERRITORIALJURISDICTION

CURRENTZONING Commercia
Foocd trle
Oeqvired by city

PROPOSED USE

REASON FOR REQUEST
(Attach extra sheet ifnecessary)

cOMPLIANCE WITH OUTDOOR LIGHTING ORDINANCE? *
(See attached agreement).
eYES (REQUIRED)* OYES (voLUNTARY)* O NO"

If proposed subdivision is in the City Limits, compliance with Lighting Ordinance is mandatory. If proposed
subdivision is in the ETJ, compliance is mandatory when required by a Development Agreement or as a

condition of an Alternative Standard/Special Exception/Variance/Waiver.
Voluntary compliance is strongly encouraged by those not required by
on the CODS webpage and online Lighting Ordinance under Code ofOrdinances tab for more information).

criteria (see Outdoor Lighting tabbov

PHYSICAL: S11 Mercer Street MAILING: PO Box384 Dripping Springs,TX78620
512.858.4725 www.cityofdrippingSprings.com

Page 2 of 4 191

Item 14.



APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE

The undersigned, hereby confirms that he/she/it is the owner of the above described real property and
further, that hiluAULs0_ is authorized to act as my agent and representative with
respect to this Application and the City's zoning amendment process.
(As recorded in the Hays County Property Deed Records, Vol.. Pg

ke Pellca
Name

AGq_ /1ember
Title

KELLY O'NEILL ALLISON
Notary Public, State of Texas
Comm. Expires 03-18-2024
Notary 1D 132409286

STATE OF TEXAS Y
S9

cOUNTY OF HAYS OF 1

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the1dayofADa
201 bybelly ALSan_

NotanyRublic, ștate of Texas

My Commission Expires: 03-18 2DAY

Dog N Bonc LCName oPApplicant

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street MAILING: POBox 384 Dripping Springs, TX 78620
512.858.4725 www.cityofdrippingsprings.com

Page 3 of 4 192

Item 14.



CONDITIONAL USE PERMITSUBMITTAL
All required items and information (including all opplicable above listed exhibits and fees) must be received by
theCityfor an application and request to be consideredcomplete. Incomplete submissionswillnotbe accepted.
By signing below, I acknowledge that I have read through and met the above requirements for a complete
submittal: 18la0a1
Apohcant Signature Date

CHECKLIST

APPLICANTSTAFF

Completed Application Form - including all required signatures and notarized
PDF/Digital Copies of all submitted Documents

When submitting digital files, a cover sheet must be included outlining what
digital contents are included.
Application Fee (refer to Fee Schedule)
Billing Contact Form
Outdoor Lighting Ordinance Compliance Agreement- signed with attached
photos/drawings (required ifmarked "Yes (Required)" on above Lighting
Ordinance Sectionofapplication)
LegalDescription

Plans

Maps/SitePlan/Plat

ArchitecturalElevation(ifapplicable)

Explanation for request (attach extra sheets if necessary)

PublicNoticeSign(refertoFeeSchedule)
Proof of Ownership-Tax Certificate or Deed

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street MAILING: PO Box 384 DrippingSprings, TX 78620
512.858.4725 www.cityofdrippingsprings.com

Page 4 of 4 193

Item 14.



16
74

6 
Fi

tz
hu

gh
 R

d.
St

e 
10

3
D

ri
pp

in
g 

Sp
ri

ng
s,

 T
X

 7
86

20
(5

12
) 3

64
-0

98
9

T
E

X
A

S 
R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

E
D

 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 F
IR

M
 

F 
- 1

18
20

 

1. EXISTING SITE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPROVED FOR 8,679 SF (31.58%)
IMPERVIOUS COVER WITH NO WATER QUALITY REQUIREMENTS.

2. REDUCTION OF 2,735 SF OF IMPERVIOUS COVER, NO WATER QUALITY
PROPOSED.

3. SITE CONCEPT PLAN PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED TO THE CITY INDICATED
OUTDOOR SEATING.  OUTDOOR SEATING HAS BEEN REMOVED FROM THIS
APPLICATION AS THIS PLAN PROPOSES NO SEATING AS PERMANENT
ELEMENTS.

1. BOUNDARY BY DEED INFORMATION, NO SURVEY DATA PROVIDED

2. ADJACENT PROPERTY INFORMATION PER HAYS COUNTY CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT
INFORMATION AND HAYS COUNTY PLAT RECORDS.

3. SITE TOPOGRAPHIC AND TREE DATA PROVIDED BY OWNER.

4. ALL UTILITY INFORMATION (ABOVE AND BELOW GROUND) PER CLIENT PROVIDED DATA OR
UTILITY RECORD INFORMATION.  CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY PRIOR TO SITE
CONSTRUCTION WORK

5. ALL EXCAVATION AND PLACEMENT 0F FILL SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GEOTECHNICAL
REPORT. ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THESE PLANS AND GEOTECHNICAL REPORT SHALL
DEFER TO THE INFORMATION IN THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT.

6. PER OWNER, SITE IS CURRENTLY CONNECTED TO CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS WASTEWATER SYSTEM.
NO MODIFICATIONS TO THE EXISTING CONNECTION ARE PROPOSED PER THESE PLANS.

7. PER OWNER, SITE IS CURRENTLY CONNECTED TO DRIPPING SPRINGS WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION
WATER SYSTEM.  NO MODIFICATIONS TO THE EXISTING CONNECTION ARE PROPOSED PER THESE
PLANS.

8. SIDEWALK CROSS SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED ¼ PER FOOT UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

9. AS-BUILT CONSTRUCTION PLANS AND AN ENGINEERING CONCURRENCE LETTER IS REQUIRED PRIOR
CITY'S ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY LETTER FOR THE PROJECT.

10. THE PROPOSED NEW BUILDING WILL REQUIRE BUILDING REVIEW BY ESD #6 (NORTH HAYS COUNTY
FIRE AND RESCUE) PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

11. FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROADS BE CONTINUOUSLY MARKED BY PAINTED LINES OF RED TRAFFIC
PAINT SIX INCHES (6") IN WIDTH TO SHOW THE BOUNDARIES OF THE LANE.  THE WORDS "FIRE LANE
- NO PARKING" SHALL APPEAR IN  FOUR INCH (4) WHITE LETTERS AT TWENTY-FIVE FOOT (25)
INTERVALS ON THE RED BORDER MARKINGS ALONG BOTH SIDES OF THE FIRE LANE.  WHERE A CURB
IS AVAILABLE, THE STRIPING SHALL BE ON THE VERTICAL FACE OF THE CURB.   AREAS OF ACCESS
ROAD WITHOUT PAINTABLE SURFACE SHALL HAVE FIRE LANE SIGNS INSTALLED.

12. NO EXTERIOR LIGHTS ARE PROPOSED FOR THE BUILDING OR IN THE PARKING AREA PER THIS
PERMIT. ANY FUTURE EXTERIOR LIGHTING WILL REQUIRE APPROVAL FROM THE CITY OF DRIPPING
SPRINGS.

13. NO SITE SIGNAGE IS PROPOSED PER THIS PERMIT. (LOCATION SHOWN FOR INFORMATION ONLY)
ANY FUTURE SIGNAGE WILL REQUIRE APPROVAL BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS.

14. ANY ADDITIONAL JURISDICTIONAL PERMIT REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE OBTAINED BY
OWNER/CONTRACTOR.

194

Item 14.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 1 of 6 

 
 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION MANUAL 
 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS REVIEW 

 
 
Date:  September 26, 2018  
 
Project:  310 Old Fitzhugh Rd, Dripping Springs, TX  78620 
 
Applicant: Dog “N” Bone LLC c/o Jon Thompson (512) 568-2184 
 
Historic District:  Old Fitzhugh Road Historic District 
 
Base Zoning: CS-HO 
Proposed Use: Restaurant w/ Mobile Food Trailer as Commercial Kitchen 
 
Submittals:   Current Photograph Concept Site Plan  Exterior Elevations  
  Color & Materials Samples N/A- Material Palette to match existing 
  Sign Permit Application (if applicable) N/A 
  Building Permit Application   
  Alternative Design Standards (if applicable) N/A  
 
The following review has been conducted for the City of Dripping Springs to determine compliance and consistency 
with the City of Dripping Springs CODE OF ORDINANCES, Title 2 BUILDING AND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS, Chapter 24, BUILDING REGULATIONS, Article 24.07: HISTORIC PRESERVATION, Section 
24.07.014: “CRITERIA FOR ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS.” 
 
Project Type & Description:   
 
 Ph. 1: “Adaptive Re-Use & Rehabilitation” Proposed exterior refurbishment and rehabilitation 

of the “Roberts House” (ca. 1923) a Contributing Resource & Medium Preservation Priority 
in the Old Fitzhugh Rd. Historic District, with associated & supporting site improvements. 

   
Review Summary, General Findings:  “Approval in Concept Recommended” 
  
 General Compliance Determination- Compliant Non-Compliant Incomplete  
  

13

Item 2.

195

Item 14.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 2 of 6 

Staff Recommendations / Conditions of Approval:   
 

1. Permits:  Obtain necessary Permits from the City of Dripping Springs, including a Site 
Development Permit and C.U.P for proposed Mobile Food Vendor use. 

2. Scoping: COA covers the proposed Phase I only.  Future Phases require separate COA’s. 
3. Approval in Concept: Specifications, Color & Materials for Building Exterior 

Refurbishment Elements (Native Stone Masonry, Windows, Doors, Trim, etc.) and selection 
of all Pedestrian Amenity Elements (picnic tables, seating, Outdoor Stage, shall be reviewed 
& approved by City Staff prior to issuance of Building Permits. 

 
CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS- Staff Review Summary:   

Historic Resource Background /Survey Information: 

#310 Old Fitzhugh Rd.: “Roberts House” / “Old Dripping Springs Telephone Building” (c.a. 1923) 
Roark-Foster Survey: Site #18 / HHM Survey: Site #61 / Hays County TP #17923  
 
Historic District Contribution Status:  “Contributing.” 
 
Historic Resource “Priority Rating:”   “Medium.” 
  
“310 Old Fitzhugh Road Street- Dog ’N’ Bone Pub:” The proposed development concept is to create a 
restaurant operation on the site focused on the preservation, refurbishment, rehabilitation and adaptive re-
use of the historic structure as a feature piece of the development.  The development is proposed to occur 
in three (3) phases.  The scope of this COA Application and review covers Phase I only: 
 
Phase I- Exterior Building Renovations: Refurbishment of exterior walls (structure, sheathing, 
weatherproofing etc.) and subsequent rehabilitation of exterior materials, (see plans). Native Stone 
Masonry matching existing materials as closely as possible will be used where it is missing (i.e. @ 
existing South Elevation).  Non-historic existing windows and doors are to be removed and replaced with 
new elements of an approved type. The structure’s existing Metal roofs are proposed to be refurbished 
and remain in-place without material alteration.  No changes in building footprint, massing, porch 
configurations (front, rear) are proposed.  Non-historic pipe porch columns are to be replaced with rough-
sawn cedar posts. 
 
Phase I- Site Improvements Renovations: Site Pad for one (1) only Mobile Food Trailer (sited to the 
rear of the site) to serve as the remote Kitchen. Parking and Sidewalks are to be improved. An Open Stage 
with Roof Cover, Trash Receptacle Screen are also included. Clusters of Picnic Tables and Yard Games 
are proposed under the existing mature trees at the center of the site, creating a Outdoor Seating and 
Dining Area, and providing gathering place for the neighborhood and the OFR Historic District. 
 
Phase II envisions the complete interior renovation of the historic house to accommodate interior seating 
and the Bar portion of the Restaurant. Phase III contemplates a commercial building @ rear of the site, to 
house the Commercial Kitchen plus other unspecified uses.  No design concepts have been proposed at 
this time. These future Phases will require separate Application, review and HPC consideration of COA’s. 

14

Item 2.

196

Item 14.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 3 of 6 

The development concept proposes the preservation, rehabilitation and adaptive re-use of the property’s 
historic structure, making it a central feature, focus of the plan & key business proposition.  The 
“Minimal Alteration / Match Existing to Remain” approach is an appropriate, efficient and cost effective 
strategy for the adaptive re-use of this historic resource, given the challenges of its existing physical 
condition. While the submittal is lacking in elaboration of detail, and is missing descriptive information 
on some minor design elements, Staff feels the virtues of this development approach merits consideration 
by the Historic Preservation Commission for the possible approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness.  
 
Approval in Concept is recommended, with Conditions of Approval as outlined above. 
 
“Old Fitzhugh Road Design and Development Standards”   
 
The proposed project is found to be consistent with applicable Standards (review comments below).  
“Approval with Conditions” (as stated above) is recommended. 
 
Character/Vision:  Consistent: “Eclectic Revitalization- new/old; Adaptive Re-Use; Historic 
Preservation” 
 
Design Principles:  Consistent: “Protect Historic Farmstead Scale & Character.”  “Promote Rustic 
Look/Feel of OFR (frontage), with Gathering Spaces / Patios / Decks / Courtyards / Gardens @ Rear of 
Properties.”   
 
Preferred Uses:  Consistent:  Restaurant / Uses preferred / allowed by CS/HO Zoning. CUP required for 
Mobile Food vendor use. 
 
Site Planning & Building Placement:  N/A: Existing Building- no change in Building Placement. 
 
Parking Arrangement: Consistent:  “Onsite Lots @ Rear; (limited) Off-street Parking @ Fronts.”  
 
Building Footprint / Massing / Scale: N/A: Existing Building- no change in Building 
Footprint/Massing. 
 
Street Frontage / Articulation: N/A: Existing Building- no change in Street Frontage. 
 
Porches: N/A: Existing Porches- no change in Porch configuration(s). 
 
Roofs:  N/A: Existing Roofs to remain- no change. 
 
Materials: Consistent: “Maintain Historic (look) Native Stone or Wood on all Walls- 75% of the net 
(Elevation) sf’s.  Wood Porch Structures & Trim.  OK subject to confirmation of Materials Palette & 
Elevations Call-Outs.   
 
Color Palette:  Consistent:  “Full range of hues allowed. Color Palettes to be approved.” Front Door 
Window & Door Trim color of any hue is allowed. 

15

Item 2.

197

Item 14.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 4 of 6 

 
Tree Preservation:  Consistent: All existing trees on site are being preserved. 
 
Landscape Features:  N/A- No affect to existing Landscape Features. 
 
 
CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS  
(SECTION 24.07.014)  
 
(a)  STANDARDS & DESIGN GUIDELINES OBSERVED:  
  Project is guided by applicable Historic Preservation Standards and Design Guidelines. 
 
 See detailed summary above. Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
(b)  MINIMAL ALTERATION:  
 Reasonable efforts made to adapt property requiring minimal alteration of building, 

structure, object site & environment. 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable 
  
(c)  ORIGINAL QUALITIES PRESERVED:  
 Distinguishing original qualities or characteristics not destroyed.  Removal or alteration 

of historic material or distinguishing architectural features avoided. 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
(d)  PERIOD APPROPRIATENESS:  
 Buildings, structures, objects, sites recognized as products of their own time.  Alterations 

without historic basis or creating an earlier appearance discouraged. 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
(e)  CUMULATIVE & ACQUIRED SIGNIFICANCE:  
 Cumulative changes with acquired and contributing significance are recognized and 

respected. 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
 (f)  DISTINCTIVE STYLISTIC FEATURES & CRAFTSMANSHIP:  
 Distinctive stylistic and characteristic features and examples of skilled craftsmanship are 

retained where possible. 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
 
 
 

16

Item 2.

198

Item 14.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 5 of 6 

(g)  DETERIORATED ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES:  
 Deteriorated architectural features repaired rather than replaced.  Necessary replacements 

reflect replaced materials.  Repair or replacement based on historical evidence not 
conjecture or material availability. 

 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable 
 
(h)  NON-DAMAGING SURFACE CLEANING METHODS:  
 Surface Cleaning Methods prescribed are as gentle as possible.  No sandblasting or other 

damaging cleaning methods.  
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
(i)  ARCHEOLOGICAL RESOURCES PRESERVED:  
 Reasonable efforts made to protect and preserve archeological resources affected by, or 

adjacent to project. 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
 
(j)  CONTEMPORARY DESIGN- CONTEXT SENSITIVE & COMPATIBLE:  
 Contemporary alterations & additions do not destroy significant historical, architectural, 

or cultural material and are compatible with the size, scale, color, material and character 
of the property, neighborhood or environment. 

 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable 
  
(k)  RETROVERSION- ESSENTIAL FORM & INTEGRITY UNIMPAIRED: 
 Future removal of new additions & alterations will leave the essential form & integrity of 

building, structure, object or site unimpaired. 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
(l)  PAINT COLORS- HISTORICAL BASIS: 
 Paint colors based on duplications or sustained by historical, physical or pictorial 

evidence, not conjecture. 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
(m)  HISTORIC DISTRICT CONTEXT- OVERALL COMPATIBILITY: 
 Construction plans are compatible with surrounding buildings and environment vis. 

height, gross volume and proportion. 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable 
 
 
APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS (SECTION 24.07.015)  

17

Item 2.

199

Item 14.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 6 of 6 

 
(g) EXPEDITED PROCESS FOR SMALL PROJECTS: ELIGIBILITY = “ Not Eligible” 
  Expedited process for small projects (cumulative costs < $10,000); must be “No” to all: 
   
 Building Footprint Expansion/Reduction? Yes No  
 Façade Alterations facing Public Street or ROW? Yes No  
 Color Scheme Modifications?  Yes No 
 Substantive/Harmful Revisions to Historic District? Yes No 

 
*   *   * 

Please contact (512) 659-5062 if you have any questions regarding this review. 
 

  
By: Keenan E. Smith, AIA  
 

18

Item 2.

200

Item 14.



201

Item 14.



202

Item 14.



203

Item 14.



204

Item 14.



205

Item 14.



206

Item 14.



207

Item 14.



208

Item 14.



209

Item 14.



210

Item 14.



211

Item 14.



212

Item 14.



213

Item 14.



214

Item 14.



215

Item 14.



216

Item 14.



217

Item 14.



218

Item 14.



219

Item 14.



220

Item 14.



221

Item 14.



Dog N Bone Conditional Use Permit   

 

City of Dripping Springs | Conditional Use Permit 
 

Granted to Dog N Bone, LLC, a mobile food vehicle to be utilized as a commercial kitchen on a 

property that is currently zoned Commercial Services (CS) located at:   

 

310 Old Fitzhugh Rd., Dripping Springs, Texas, 78620 

Approved by the City of Dripping Springs on November 13, 2018 

 

Operation of mobile food vehicle, to be utilized as the property’s commercial kitchen, at the 

above-mentioned location is allowed pursuant to the following regulations: 

1. The mobile food truck be considered part of the main structure in regard to determining 

allowable signage for the property. 

2. The structure and truck adhere to the City’s adopted sign code at the time of permitting. 

3. The CUP only be approved/valid for the current owner based on the proposed site plan. 

4. The mobile food truck dispose of the associated waste from the kitchen via pump and 

haul or other method and not be connected to the City’s sewer system 

5. Only one (1) auto renewal be allowed, and that any additional renewals of the CUP be 

approved by the City Council. 

6. This Conditional Use Permit automatically renews for successive two (2) year periods 

unless an objection is raised by the City Administrator based on either:  

a. A history of poor code compliance; 

b. A revision to the Comprehensive Plan that renders the CUP incompatible. 

7. The City administrator may revoke a CUP for failure to comply with municipal 

regulations and the conditions placed on the use.  

 

 

 

 

222

Item 14.



 
 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Planning Department Staff Report 

 
Planning and Zoning  
Commission Meeting: 

May 25, 2021 

Project Number:  CUP2021-0003 

Project Planner: Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: Dog ‘N’ Bone Bar   

Property Location:  310 Old Fitzhugh Road, Dripping Springs, Texas 78620 

Legal Description:  ABS 415 PHILIP A SMITH SURVEY 0.63 AC GEO#90401232 

Applicant: Mike Pelland 

Property Owner: Dog ‘N’ Bone LLC 

Request: Conditional Use Permit to allow the use “Bar”   

 

 

 
 

 

223

Item 15.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Overview 

 

The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to allow the use of a “Bar” at the property located at 310 Old Fitzhugh 

Road. The property is zoned General Retail (GR) and is within the Old Fitzhugh Road Historic District. Bars are permitted 

within this zoning district by Conditional Use Permit.  

 

Below is the definition of a Bar per the Zoning regulations:  

 

Use of a site for retail sale of alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises, including taverns, bars, 

cocktail lounges, and similar uses, that derive 75 percent or more of the establishment's gross revenue from the 

on-premises sale of alcoholic beverages. 

 

The applicant will place the Bar within the historic structure (891 square feet) located on the property. The structure is 

located twenty-five (25) feet from the front and southern side property line. The Structure is a “contributing resource and 

medium priority” in the Old Fitzhugh Road Historic District. The overall vision for the Old Fitzhugh Road Historic District 

is an emerging, eclectic mixed-use historic district. The adopted vision for Old Fitzhugh Road Historic District calls for 

an eclectic revitalization that encourages a wide range of new uses and compatible businesses, in a harmonious mixture 

of new and old buildings, through appropriate rehabilitation and well- scaled, context sensitive new infill development.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

224

Item 15.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

Dog ‘N” bone is advertised as a Gastropub with the option of food and drinks. The Mobile food vendor (CUP being 

reviewed) is intended to serve fish and chips and other gastropub items. The main structure on the property will be reserved 

for the bar, seating, and dining.  

 

 

The property had an approved Conditional Use Permit for the use of a mobile food vendor but has expired. Per Chapter 

30 Exhibit A Section 3.17.9 Expirations, extension, and termination (c) CUPs for new uses/structures shall be deemed to 

have expired and shall become null and void if construction is not completed and occupation commenced within two years 

of the date the CUP was approved. The Mobile Food Vendor use was approved on November 13, 2018 by City Council 

and has yet to be occupied and has expired. The use of a “bar” is a new request and is being evaluated for the first time.  

 

The applicant had also received a Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) on October 3, 2018 and renewed the COA at the 

April 1st, 2021 Historic Preservation Commission Meeting. 

 

The applicant had intended to build a brick-and-mortar kitchen that would replace the Mobile Food Vendor, but the 

applicant has no set date on the construction of the kitchen. 

 

Should the Commission and City Council approve the Conditional Use Permit for a bar at this location, then the applicant 

will move forward with building permitting and inspections for the addition. They will also be required to meet all state 

and local laws regarding alcohol sales and consumption, including all required permitting.   

 

 

Site Information 

 

Location:  

The Subject property is located at 310 Old Fitzhugh Road. The property has a proposed CUP for a Mobile Food Vendor 

as well. The Bar will be located within the structure on the property.   

 

Physical and Natural Features:  

The site has ample open space and tree coverage.  

 

Future Land Use and Zoning Designation:  

The Subject property zoned General Retail (GR) and is within the Old Fitzhugh Road Historic District. It is not identified 

on the city’s future land use plan. 

 

 

 

Surrounding Properties 

 

The majority of properties in this area are zoned Commercial Services (CS), but the property to the west is zoned 

Single-Family and General Retail, while still being within the Old Fitzhugh Road Historic District Overlay. The 

properties immediately adjacent within the area are unoccupied or being utilized as a single-family home.  

225

Item 15.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 
The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are outlined in the 

table below:  

 

 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Comprehensive Plan 

North Commercial Services (CS) Verizon Communications 

Not Applicable 

East Commercial Services (CS) Retail/ Tasting Room   

South Commercial Services (CS)  Residential  

West 

General Retail (GR) / 

Single-family residential 

district—Low density (SF-

1) 

Residential 

 

 

Approval Criteria for Conditional Use Permit Review (3.17.6-Zoning Ordinance) 

Approval Criteria Staff Comments 

1. The proposed use at the specified location is 

consistent with the policies embodied in the 

Comprehensive Plan; 

The Comprehensive plan is supportive of commercial 

development. There are two goals that the comprehensive 

plans discuss that fit with this request 1. Support 

expansion of business and professional services and 2. 

Support Tourism. 

2. The proposed use is consistent with the general 

purpose and intent of the applicable zoning district 

regulations; 

The subject property is zoned General Retail (GR). A bar 

is permitted with an approved conditional use permit.  

 

As well as the Historic Overlay outlines the need for a 

mix of commercial and residential development.  

3. The proposed use meets all supplemental standards 

specifically applicable to the use, as established in 

the Development Standards, Section 5; 

The applicant has a site plan application in with the city 

and will comply with all city ordinances and regulations. 

The Applicant received an approved certificate of 
226

Item 15.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

appropriateness from the Historic Preservation 

Commission.  

 

4. The proposed use is compatible with and preserves 

the character and integrity of adjacent 

development and neighborhoods, and (as required 

by the particular circumstances) includes 

improvements or modifications (either on-site or 

within the public rights-of-way) to mitigate 

development-related adverse impacts, including 

but not limited to the following: 

 

a. Adequate ingress and egress to 

property and proposed structures 

thereon with particular reference to 

vehicular and pedestrian safety and 

convenience, and access in case of 

fire; 

The proposed site plan shows a driveway to the south of 

the structure located on Old Fitzhugh Road.   

(See attachments) 

b. Off-street parking areas, loading areas, 

and pavement type; 

The applicant will need to provide the appropriate 

number of spaces on their site plan. Parking requirements 

for a Bar use follow the following requirements:  

 

Restaurant, private club, nightclub, cafe or similar 

recreation or amusement establishment: One parking 

space for each 100 square feet of seating/waiting area, or 

one space for every three seats under maximum seating 

arrangement (i.e., occupancy), whichever is greater; 

required parking spaces are in addition to any stacking 

spaces that may be required for drive-through facilities. 

 

c. Refuse and service areas; 

 

The City's solid waste service will need to be alerted. 

d. Utilities with reference to location, 

availability, and compatibility; 

Utilities are as follows: 

Water: Dripping Springs Water Supply 

Corporation 

Wastewater: City of Dripping Springs 

Electric: Pedernales Electric Cooperative, Inc.  

  

e. Screening and buffering, features to 

minimize visual impacts, and/or 

setbacks from adjacent uses; 

No screening is being provided.  

f. Control of signs, if any; 

 

N/A 

g. Control of exterior lighting with 

reference to glare, traffic safety, 

economic effect, and compatibility 

and harmony with properties in the 

district; 

Lighting will need to comply with the City’s current 

lighting ordinance.  

h. Required yards and open space; 

 

The applicant will comply with the applicable yard 

setbacks.  

i. Height and bulk of structures; 

 

The structure meets code.  

j. Hours of operation; 

 

The applicant has not determined the hours of operation.  

Staff is asking for a condition to be placed on the 

227

Item 15.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

property that limits the hours of operation to the closing 

time of 10:00 p.m. Sunday through Thursday, and 11:00 

p.m. Friday and Saturday. 

k. Exterior construction material, 

building design, and building facade 

treatment; 

The applicant received a COA for the rehabilitation of the 

building and various site improvements. 

(See attachments) 

l. Roadway adjustments, traffic-control 

devices or mechanisms, and access 

restrictions to control traffic flow or 

divert traffic as may be needed to 

reduce or eliminate development-

generated traffic on neighborhood 

streets; and 

N/A 

m. Provision for pedestrian 

access/amenities/areas; 

N/A 

5. The proposed use is not materially detrimental to 

the public health, safety, convenience and welfare, 

or results in material damage or prejudice to other 

property in the vicinity; and, 

 

The use is not materially detrimental to the public health, 

safety, convenience and welfare, or results in material 

damage or prejudice to other property in the vicinity. 

6. Noise; Applicant is requesting to have acoustic music, Staff will 

be placing conditions on the allowable decibel levels and 

time of music.  

7. Odors; and N/A 

8. Dust. N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation 
 

Based on the proposed use, adjacent land uses, and the ability to increase visitors to the Historic District, as well as the 

increased sales tax that would be generated through this proposed use, staff recommends approval of the requested 

Conditional Use Permit for the property.  

 

Conditional Use Permit Requirements 

 

A bar at the above-mentioned location is allowed pursuant to the following regulations: 

 

1. Decibel Level shall not exceed 65 decibels. Decibel level shall be measured at the property line. 

2. Hours of operation are limited to the closing time of 10:00 p.m. Sunday through Thursday, and 11:00 p.m. Friday 

and Saturday. 

3. Any additional external modifications to the building, not previously approved as part of the Certificate of 

Appropriateness, receive an updated Certificate of Appropriateness. 

4. The property adheres to all Fire and Life Safety Codes found in the International Fire Code (which may include a 

requirement to install a Fire Suppression/Sprinkler System). 

5. This Conditional Use Permit automatically renews for successive two (2) years periods unless an objection is 

raised based on either: 

(1)     A history of poor code compliance; or 

(2)     A revision to the Comprehensive Plan that renders the CUP incompatible  
6.   The City administrator may revoke a CUP for failure to comply with municipal regulations and the conditions 

placed on the use.  

 
 

 

 
228

Item 15.



 

 

Planning Department Staff Report 
 

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of 

the Conditional Use Permit request. 

 

Meetings Schedule 

May 25, 2021 – Planning and Zoning Commission 

June 8, 2021 - City Council Meeting 

 

Attachments 

Attachment 1 – Conditional Use Permit Application 

Attachment 2 – Site Plan 

Attachment 3 – COA Staff Report 

Attachment 4 – Site Photos 

  

 

Recommended Action: Recommend approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit, with any conditions 

deemed necessary by the Commission. 

Alternatives/Options: Recommend denial of the Conditional Use Permit. 

Budget/Financial Impact:    None calculated at this time, but the City would receive additional sales tax revenue. 

Public Comments: None Received at this time. 

Enforcement Issues: N/A 

 

229

Item 15.



DR
rING SPR CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street MAILING: PO Box 384

Dripping Springs, TX 78620

512.858.4725 www.cityofdrippingsprings.com

OF INC. 1981

TY

TEXAS

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION
Case Number (staff use only): .

NEW APPLICATION O EXTENSION OF A PREVIouSLY APPRovED CUP

cONTACT INFORMATION

PROPERTY OwNER NAMEDa \n Bane
STREETADDRESs 310 od Eltzhugh Ld
CITYDnppioq Spnngs STATELX zIP coDE 78lA0

PHONE Sa-814-a430 EMAILdoaakpneLamianeegmail. com
APPLICANT NAME J 'n Kane LLC

cOMPANY Doca p bohe LC
STREET ADDRESS 3L Old ftzhugh ld
aITY Dapaing Spnng STATETX

PHONESIA:B142430 EMAIL daqnloonecamplane qmail.coy
ZIP CODE8le 2a

Page 1 of4
230

Item 15.



PROPERTY INFORMATION

Doqn'Bbine LLc
310 Old Ktzhugh Rd

PROPERTY owNER NAME

PROPERTY ADDRESS

CURRENT LEGAL DESCRIPTION

TAX ID#

LOCATED IN

a0lele 083505
rCITY LIMITS

EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION

CURRENT ZONING Commesial
PROPOSED USE

Peqred by CH
REASON FOR REQUEST

(Attach extra sheet if necessary)

cOMPLIANCE WITH OUTDOOR LIGHTING ORDINANCE?*
(See attached agreement).

ES (REQUIRED)* O YES (voLUNTARY)* O NO*

If proposed subdivision is in the City Limits, compliance with Lighting Ordinance is mandatory. If proposed
subdivision is in the ETJ, compliance is mandatory when required by a Development Agreement or as a
condition of an Alternative Standard/Special Exception/Variance/Waiver.
Voluntary compliance is strongly encouraged by those not required by above criteria (see Outdoor Lighting tab
on the CODS webpage and online Lighting Ordinance under Code ofOrdinances tab for more information).

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street MALING: PO Box 384 Dripping Springs, TX 78620
512.858.4725 www.cityofdrippingsprings.com

Page 2 of 4 231

Item 15.



APPLICANT'S SIGNATURE

The undersigned, hereby confirms that he/she/t is the owner of the above described real property and
further, that_helly ALSa-
respect to this Applicatioh and the City's zoning amendment process.
(As recorded in the Hays County Property Deed Records, Vol..

is authorized to act as my agent and representative with

Pg

Mke Pellad
Name

eucshų Mense_
Title

KELLY O'NEILL ALLISON
Notary Public, State of Texas
Comm. Expires 03-18-2024
Notary 1D 132409286

Y
STATE OF TEXAS

OF
COUNTY OF HAYS

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of Aph

20 llu Allsdrn
NotanyPubic, State of Texas

My Commission Expires: 318-OA
DoaNBane LL
Name ofApplicant

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street MAILING: PO Box384 Dripping Springs, TX 78620
512.858.4725 www.cityofdrippingSprings.com

Page 3 of 4 232

Item 15.



CONDITIONAL USE PERMITSUBMITTAL
All required items and information (including all applicable above listed exhibits and fees) must be received by
theCityfor an application and request to be considered complete. Incomplete submissionswillnotbe accepted.
By signing below, I acknowledge that 1 have read through and met the above requirements for a complete
submittal: ugApplicanf Signature Date

CHECKLIST

APPLICANTSTAFF

Completed Application Form- including all required signatures and notarized
PDF/Digital Copies of all submitted Documents

When submitting digital files, a cover sheet must be included outlining what
digital contents are included.
Application Fee (refer to Fee Schedule)
Billing Contact Form
Outdoor Lighting Ordinance Compliance Agreement signed with attached
photos/drawings (required ifmarked "Yes (Required)" on above Lighting
OrdinanceSectionofapplication)
LegalDescription

Plans
Maps/Site Plan/Plat

ArchitecturalElevation(if applicable)

Explanation for request (attach extra sheets if necessary)

PublicNoticeSign(refertoFeeSchedule)
Proof of Ownership-TaxCertificateorDeed

PHYSICAL: 511 Mercer Street MAILING: PO Box 384 Dripping Springs, TX 78620
512.858.4725 www.cityofdrippingsprings.com

Page 4 of 4
233

Item 15.



16
74

6 
Fi

tz
hu

gh
 R

d.
St

e 
10

3
D

ri
pp

in
g 

Sp
ri

ng
s,

 T
X

 7
86

20
(5

12
) 3

64
-0

98
9

T
E

X
A

S 
R

E
G

IS
T

E
R

E
D

 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

 F
IR

M
 

F 
- 1

18
20

 

1. EXISTING SITE DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPROVED FOR 8,679 SF (31.58%)
IMPERVIOUS COVER WITH NO WATER QUALITY REQUIREMENTS.

2. REDUCTION OF 2,735 SF OF IMPERVIOUS COVER, NO WATER QUALITY
PROPOSED.

3. SITE CONCEPT PLAN PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED TO THE CITY INDICATED
OUTDOOR SEATING.  OUTDOOR SEATING HAS BEEN REMOVED FROM THIS
APPLICATION AS THIS PLAN PROPOSES NO SEATING AS PERMANENT
ELEMENTS.

1. BOUNDARY BY DEED INFORMATION, NO SURVEY DATA PROVIDED

2. ADJACENT PROPERTY INFORMATION PER HAYS COUNTY CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT
INFORMATION AND HAYS COUNTY PLAT RECORDS.

3. SITE TOPOGRAPHIC AND TREE DATA PROVIDED BY OWNER.

4. ALL UTILITY INFORMATION (ABOVE AND BELOW GROUND) PER CLIENT PROVIDED DATA OR
UTILITY RECORD INFORMATION.  CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY PRIOR TO SITE
CONSTRUCTION WORK

5. ALL EXCAVATION AND PLACEMENT 0F FILL SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH GEOTECHNICAL
REPORT. ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THESE PLANS AND GEOTECHNICAL REPORT SHALL
DEFER TO THE INFORMATION IN THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT.

6. PER OWNER, SITE IS CURRENTLY CONNECTED TO CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS WASTEWATER SYSTEM.
NO MODIFICATIONS TO THE EXISTING CONNECTION ARE PROPOSED PER THESE PLANS.

7. PER OWNER, SITE IS CURRENTLY CONNECTED TO DRIPPING SPRINGS WATER SUPPLY CORPORATION
WATER SYSTEM.  NO MODIFICATIONS TO THE EXISTING CONNECTION ARE PROPOSED PER THESE
PLANS.

8. SIDEWALK CROSS SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED ¼ PER FOOT UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

9. AS-BUILT CONSTRUCTION PLANS AND AN ENGINEERING CONCURRENCE LETTER IS REQUIRED PRIOR
CITY'S ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY LETTER FOR THE PROJECT.

10. THE PROPOSED NEW BUILDING WILL REQUIRE BUILDING REVIEW BY ESD #6 (NORTH HAYS COUNTY
FIRE AND RESCUE) PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

11. FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROADS BE CONTINUOUSLY MARKED BY PAINTED LINES OF RED TRAFFIC
PAINT SIX INCHES (6") IN WIDTH TO SHOW THE BOUNDARIES OF THE LANE.  THE WORDS "FIRE LANE
- NO PARKING" SHALL APPEAR IN  FOUR INCH (4) WHITE LETTERS AT TWENTY-FIVE FOOT (25)
INTERVALS ON THE RED BORDER MARKINGS ALONG BOTH SIDES OF THE FIRE LANE.  WHERE A CURB
IS AVAILABLE, THE STRIPING SHALL BE ON THE VERTICAL FACE OF THE CURB.   AREAS OF ACCESS
ROAD WITHOUT PAINTABLE SURFACE SHALL HAVE FIRE LANE SIGNS INSTALLED.

12. NO EXTERIOR LIGHTS ARE PROPOSED FOR THE BUILDING OR IN THE PARKING AREA PER THIS
PERMIT. ANY FUTURE EXTERIOR LIGHTING WILL REQUIRE APPROVAL FROM THE CITY OF DRIPPING
SPRINGS.

13. NO SITE SIGNAGE IS PROPOSED PER THIS PERMIT. (LOCATION SHOWN FOR INFORMATION ONLY)
ANY FUTURE SIGNAGE WILL REQUIRE APPROVAL BY THE CITY OF DRIPPING SPRINGS.

14. ANY ADDITIONAL JURISDICTIONAL PERMIT REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE OBTAINED BY
OWNER/CONTRACTOR.

234

Item 15.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 1 of 6 

 
 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION MANUAL 
 CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS REVIEW 

 
 
Date:  September 26, 2018  
 
Project:  310 Old Fitzhugh Rd, Dripping Springs, TX  78620 
 
Applicant: Dog “N” Bone LLC c/o Jon Thompson (512) 568-2184 
 
Historic District:  Old Fitzhugh Road Historic District 
 
Base Zoning: CS-HO 
Proposed Use: Restaurant w/ Mobile Food Trailer as Commercial Kitchen 
 
Submittals:   Current Photograph Concept Site Plan  Exterior Elevations  
  Color & Materials Samples N/A- Material Palette to match existing 
  Sign Permit Application (if applicable) N/A 
  Building Permit Application   
  Alternative Design Standards (if applicable) N/A  
 
The following review has been conducted for the City of Dripping Springs to determine compliance and consistency 
with the City of Dripping Springs CODE OF ORDINANCES, Title 2 BUILDING AND DEVELOPMENT 
REGULATIONS, Chapter 24, BUILDING REGULATIONS, Article 24.07: HISTORIC PRESERVATION, Section 
24.07.014: “CRITERIA FOR ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS.” 
 
Project Type & Description:   
 
 Ph. 1: “Adaptive Re-Use & Rehabilitation” Proposed exterior refurbishment and rehabilitation 

of the “Roberts House” (ca. 1923) a Contributing Resource & Medium Preservation Priority 
in the Old Fitzhugh Rd. Historic District, with associated & supporting site improvements. 

   
Review Summary, General Findings:  “Approval in Concept Recommended” 
  
 General Compliance Determination- Compliant Non-Compliant Incomplete  
  

13

Item 2.

235

Item 15.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 2 of 6 

Staff Recommendations / Conditions of Approval:   
 

1. Permits:  Obtain necessary Permits from the City of Dripping Springs, including a Site 
Development Permit and C.U.P for proposed Mobile Food Vendor use. 

2. Scoping: COA covers the proposed Phase I only.  Future Phases require separate COA’s. 
3. Approval in Concept: Specifications, Color & Materials for Building Exterior 

Refurbishment Elements (Native Stone Masonry, Windows, Doors, Trim, etc.) and selection 
of all Pedestrian Amenity Elements (picnic tables, seating, Outdoor Stage, shall be reviewed 
& approved by City Staff prior to issuance of Building Permits. 

 
CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS- Staff Review Summary:   

Historic Resource Background /Survey Information: 

#310 Old Fitzhugh Rd.: “Roberts House” / “Old Dripping Springs Telephone Building” (c.a. 1923) 
Roark-Foster Survey: Site #18 / HHM Survey: Site #61 / Hays County TP #17923  
 
Historic District Contribution Status:  “Contributing.” 
 
Historic Resource “Priority Rating:”   “Medium.” 
  
“310 Old Fitzhugh Road Street- Dog ’N’ Bone Pub:” The proposed development concept is to create a 
restaurant operation on the site focused on the preservation, refurbishment, rehabilitation and adaptive re-
use of the historic structure as a feature piece of the development.  The development is proposed to occur 
in three (3) phases.  The scope of this COA Application and review covers Phase I only: 
 
Phase I- Exterior Building Renovations: Refurbishment of exterior walls (structure, sheathing, 
weatherproofing etc.) and subsequent rehabilitation of exterior materials, (see plans). Native Stone 
Masonry matching existing materials as closely as possible will be used where it is missing (i.e. @ 
existing South Elevation).  Non-historic existing windows and doors are to be removed and replaced with 
new elements of an approved type. The structure’s existing Metal roofs are proposed to be refurbished 
and remain in-place without material alteration.  No changes in building footprint, massing, porch 
configurations (front, rear) are proposed.  Non-historic pipe porch columns are to be replaced with rough-
sawn cedar posts. 
 
Phase I- Site Improvements Renovations: Site Pad for one (1) only Mobile Food Trailer (sited to the 
rear of the site) to serve as the remote Kitchen. Parking and Sidewalks are to be improved. An Open Stage 
with Roof Cover, Trash Receptacle Screen are also included. Clusters of Picnic Tables and Yard Games 
are proposed under the existing mature trees at the center of the site, creating a Outdoor Seating and 
Dining Area, and providing gathering place for the neighborhood and the OFR Historic District. 
 
Phase II envisions the complete interior renovation of the historic house to accommodate interior seating 
and the Bar portion of the Restaurant. Phase III contemplates a commercial building @ rear of the site, to 
house the Commercial Kitchen plus other unspecified uses.  No design concepts have been proposed at 
this time. These future Phases will require separate Application, review and HPC consideration of COA’s. 

14

Item 2.

236

Item 15.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 3 of 6 

The development concept proposes the preservation, rehabilitation and adaptive re-use of the property’s 
historic structure, making it a central feature, focus of the plan & key business proposition.  The 
“Minimal Alteration / Match Existing to Remain” approach is an appropriate, efficient and cost effective 
strategy for the adaptive re-use of this historic resource, given the challenges of its existing physical 
condition. While the submittal is lacking in elaboration of detail, and is missing descriptive information 
on some minor design elements, Staff feels the virtues of this development approach merits consideration 
by the Historic Preservation Commission for the possible approval of a Certificate of Appropriateness.  
 
Approval in Concept is recommended, with Conditions of Approval as outlined above. 
 
“Old Fitzhugh Road Design and Development Standards”   
 
The proposed project is found to be consistent with applicable Standards (review comments below).  
“Approval with Conditions” (as stated above) is recommended. 
 
Character/Vision:  Consistent: “Eclectic Revitalization- new/old; Adaptive Re-Use; Historic 
Preservation” 
 
Design Principles:  Consistent: “Protect Historic Farmstead Scale & Character.”  “Promote Rustic 
Look/Feel of OFR (frontage), with Gathering Spaces / Patios / Decks / Courtyards / Gardens @ Rear of 
Properties.”   
 
Preferred Uses:  Consistent:  Restaurant / Uses preferred / allowed by CS/HO Zoning. CUP required for 
Mobile Food vendor use. 
 
Site Planning & Building Placement:  N/A: Existing Building- no change in Building Placement. 
 
Parking Arrangement: Consistent:  “Onsite Lots @ Rear; (limited) Off-street Parking @ Fronts.”  
 
Building Footprint / Massing / Scale: N/A: Existing Building- no change in Building 
Footprint/Massing. 
 
Street Frontage / Articulation: N/A: Existing Building- no change in Street Frontage. 
 
Porches: N/A: Existing Porches- no change in Porch configuration(s). 
 
Roofs:  N/A: Existing Roofs to remain- no change. 
 
Materials: Consistent: “Maintain Historic (look) Native Stone or Wood on all Walls- 75% of the net 
(Elevation) sf’s.  Wood Porch Structures & Trim.  OK subject to confirmation of Materials Palette & 
Elevations Call-Outs.   
 
Color Palette:  Consistent:  “Full range of hues allowed. Color Palettes to be approved.” Front Door 
Window & Door Trim color of any hue is allowed. 

15

Item 2.

237

Item 15.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 4 of 6 

 
Tree Preservation:  Consistent: All existing trees on site are being preserved. 
 
Landscape Features:  N/A- No affect to existing Landscape Features. 
 
 
CRITERIA FOR CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS  
(SECTION 24.07.014)  
 
(a)  STANDARDS & DESIGN GUIDELINES OBSERVED:  
  Project is guided by applicable Historic Preservation Standards and Design Guidelines. 
 
 See detailed summary above. Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
(b)  MINIMAL ALTERATION:  
 Reasonable efforts made to adapt property requiring minimal alteration of building, 

structure, object site & environment. 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable 
  
(c)  ORIGINAL QUALITIES PRESERVED:  
 Distinguishing original qualities or characteristics not destroyed.  Removal or alteration 

of historic material or distinguishing architectural features avoided. 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
(d)  PERIOD APPROPRIATENESS:  
 Buildings, structures, objects, sites recognized as products of their own time.  Alterations 

without historic basis or creating an earlier appearance discouraged. 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
(e)  CUMULATIVE & ACQUIRED SIGNIFICANCE:  
 Cumulative changes with acquired and contributing significance are recognized and 

respected. 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
 (f)  DISTINCTIVE STYLISTIC FEATURES & CRAFTSMANSHIP:  
 Distinctive stylistic and characteristic features and examples of skilled craftsmanship are 

retained where possible. 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
 
 
 

16

Item 2.

238

Item 15.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 5 of 6 

(g)  DETERIORATED ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES:  
 Deteriorated architectural features repaired rather than replaced.  Necessary replacements 

reflect replaced materials.  Repair or replacement based on historical evidence not 
conjecture or material availability. 

 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable 
 
(h)  NON-DAMAGING SURFACE CLEANING METHODS:  
 Surface Cleaning Methods prescribed are as gentle as possible.  No sandblasting or other 

damaging cleaning methods.  
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
(i)  ARCHEOLOGICAL RESOURCES PRESERVED:  
 Reasonable efforts made to protect and preserve archeological resources affected by, or 

adjacent to project. 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
 
(j)  CONTEMPORARY DESIGN- CONTEXT SENSITIVE & COMPATIBLE:  
 Contemporary alterations & additions do not destroy significant historical, architectural, 

or cultural material and are compatible with the size, scale, color, material and character 
of the property, neighborhood or environment. 

 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable 
  
(k)  RETROVERSION- ESSENTIAL FORM & INTEGRITY UNIMPAIRED: 
 Future removal of new additions & alterations will leave the essential form & integrity of 

building, structure, object or site unimpaired. 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
(l)  PAINT COLORS- HISTORICAL BASIS: 
 Paint colors based on duplications or sustained by historical, physical or pictorial 

evidence, not conjecture. 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable  
 
(m)  HISTORIC DISTRICT CONTEXT- OVERALL COMPATIBILITY: 
 Construction plans are compatible with surrounding buildings and environment vis. 

height, gross volume and proportion. 
 
  Compliant Non-Compliant  Not Applicable 
 
 
APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS (SECTION 24.07.015)  

17

Item 2.

239

Item 15.



   
C i t y    o f    D r i p p i n g    S p r i n g s 

P . O .     B o x    3 8 4 
D r i p p in g    S p r i n g s ,    T e x a s    7 8 6 2 0 

5 1 2 – 8 5 8 – 4 7 2 5 
 

Page 6 of 6 

 
(g) EXPEDITED PROCESS FOR SMALL PROJECTS: ELIGIBILITY = “ Not Eligible” 
  Expedited process for small projects (cumulative costs < $10,000); must be “No” to all: 
   
 Building Footprint Expansion/Reduction? Yes No  
 Façade Alterations facing Public Street or ROW? Yes No  
 Color Scheme Modifications?  Yes No 
 Substantive/Harmful Revisions to Historic District? Yes No 

 
*   *   * 

Please contact (512) 659-5062 if you have any questions regarding this review. 
 

  
By: Keenan E. Smith, AIA  
 

18

Item 2.

240

Item 15.



241

Item 15.



242

Item 15.



243

Item 15.



244

Item 15.



245

Item 15.



246

Item 15.



247

Item 15.



248

Item 15.



249

Item 15.



250

Item 15.



251

Item 15.



252

Item 15.



253

Item 15.



254

Item 15.



255

Item 15.



256

Item 15.



257

Item 15.



258

Item 15.



259

Item 15.



260

Item 15.



261

Item 15.



Planning and Zoning Commission  
Planning Department Staff Report 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Planning and Zoning 

Commission Meeting: 
May 25, 2021 

Project No:  VAR2021-0007 

Project Planner:  Amanda Padilla, Senior Planner 

Item Details 

Project Name: 249 Sportsplex/JWLP Lot 6 

Property Location: 249 Sportsplex Drive, Dripping Springs, TX 78620 

Legal Description: JWLP Family Subdivision, Lot 6  

Applicant: Jon Thompson, J Thompson Professional Consulting 

Property Owner: Intrepid Commercial Properties LLC 

Request: 

Applicant is requesting a special exception to Section 5.6.2 Parking Based on use the 

applicant is proposing a different parking ratio for medical office and is requesting to 

utilize existing parking. 

262

Item 16.



Planning Department Staff Report  VAR2021-0007 
 
Overview  

The applicant is requesting a Special Exception to Chapter 30, Exhibit A Section 5.6.2 Parking based on use and is 

requesting to utilize existing parking. 

Below is the section of the code of ordinances that the applicant is requesting a special exception to: 

5.6.2.    Commercial: 

(36) Medical or dental office: One space per 200 square feet of floor area. Facilities over 20,000 square feet shall 

use the parking standards set forth for hospitals. 

The property has a 13,200 Square foot Building and accounted for Office Space which would require 1 parking space per 

300 Square Feet.  

Parking Requirement Total Building square 

footage 

Parking Spaces 

Required 

Parking 

applicant 

provided 

Parking surplus 

1 parking space/300 square 

feet 

13,200 44 47 +3 

 

The applicant applied for a Tenant Finish Out for a Medical Office which would require one (1) parking space per 200 

square feet. Per section 5.7.6 of the Zoning Ordinance, for buildings which have mixed uses within the same structure (such 

as retail and office), the parking requirement shall be calculated for the most intensive use.  

Parking Requirement Total Building square 

footage 

Parking Spaces 

Required 

Parking 

applicant 

provided 

Parking Deficit 

1 parking space/200 square 

feet 

13,200 66 47 -19 

 

Based on the Medical Office Use the applicant has a parking deficit of 19 parking spaces. The applicant is requesting to use 

the existing parking spaces and is justifying the 47 parking spaces with the parking analysis submitted.   

263

Item 16.



Planning Department Staff Report  VAR2021-0007 
 

 

The applicant is proposing to utilize useable square footage which excludes cabinets, walls, and hallways. If the required 

amount of parking spaces only accounted for useable square footage the applicant would only need to provide 40 parking 

spaces. Staff believes that using useable square footage for calculating parking is not sufficient. When comparing other 

cities and other parking requirements gross square footage is the common way of calculating parking.  

The parking analysis (see attachment) submitted uses modal/shared/other splits such as missed appointments, employee 

travel/sick time, walking drop-offs, carpools, and shared appointments. For example, ULI (Urban Land Institute) standard 

parking requires 4.6 parking spaces per 1000 sf, requiring 61 parking spaces, placing a 20% reduction (due to splits) brings 

the parking calculation to 49 parking spaces.  

According to the ULI parking study “all parking ratios recommended in this book are intended to reflect conditions in 

suburban and smaller city settings with little or no transit, free or inexpensive parking, and minimal employee ride sharing… 

Nearly all the recommended ratios are based on observed accumulations of parked vehicles, and thus the modal split and 

auto occupancy at that ratio are implicit in the number”  Thus, ULI is stating that splits should not be placed on cities that 

are small and have little or no transit. The City has allowed developments such as Belterra Commercial to utilize ULI 

parking standards and ULI is a common tool that cities use for parking regulations.  

Further research was done by staff for surrounding cities medical office parking requirements. See table below: 

City  Parking Requirement 

Georgetown 1 per 250 sf GFA 

Cedar Park 1 per 200 sf GFA 

Boerne 1 per 200 sf GFA 

New Braunfels 1 per 300 sf GFA 

Leander 1 per 200 sf GFA 

Marble Falls 1 per 250 SF GFA 

Kyle HD 1 per 200 SF GFA 

Wimberley 1 per 200 sf of GFA 

264

Item 16.



Planning Department Staff Report  VAR2021-0007 
 
After further study staff has found that the parking requirements for a Medical Office are in line with industry standards and 

surrounding cities.  

Surrounding Properties 

 
The current zoning and existing uses of the adjacent properties to the north, south, east, and west are outlined in the table 

below:  

 

Direction Zoning District Existing Use Comprehensive Plan 
North Commercial Services Medical Office 

The area is not shown 

on the city’s 

comprehensive future 

land use plan.  

East Commercial Services 

Flying Fish 

Academy/Undeveloped 

Land 

South Commercial Services Undeveloped Lot 

West Commercial Services 
Library, Single Family 

homes 

 

Property History 

On April 10, 2018, JWLP Family Subdivision was approved and recorded. The Subdivision plat created 6 commercial lots. 

The applicant then applied for a Site Development Permit in 2019. During the Site Development Permit, the first submittal 

contained Retail use which would require the applicant to provide one (1) parking space per 200 square feet. The applicant 

was told that parking was not sufficient and they would need to add additional parking. The applicant stated that the intended 

use was Office and changed the amount of parking to one (1) parking space per 300 square feet. The applicant was not 

aware that Medical Office was parked at a different Ratio than General Office.  

265

Item 16.



Planning Department Staff Report  VAR2021-0007 
 
The applicant applied for a Tenant Finish out and was told that they needed to provide parking for a medical office, which 

is one (1) parking space per 200 square feet. The Property is currently built out and is not able to provide any more additional 

parking spaces.  

In June 2020, the applicant applied for a special exception to utilize shared parking with a lot across Sportsplex. The 

application was later withdrawn.  

The applicant was granted permission to occupy 9,400 square feet of the space (see attachments for letter). The applicant 

had enough parking spaces to satisfy a 9,400 square foot building.  

Approval Criteria for Special Exceptions (2.22.2-Zoning Ordinance) 

Approval Criteria Staff Comments 
1. there are special circumstances or conditions 

affecting the land involved such that the literal 

enforcement of the provisions of this Chapter would 

deprive the applicant of the reasonable use of the 

land; and 

The building on the property was built in 2019. The 

applicant was aware of the parking requirements and 

adjusted the use to only provide 1 parking space per 300 

square feet of gross floor area. 

2. the special exception is necessary for the 

preservation and enjoyment of a substantial 

property right of the applicant; and By preserving 

the natural features and topography of the land; and 

The special exception is not necessary for the applicant to 

utilize their property. The intention with the approved site 

plan was for an office use. The applicant was asked to 

reevaluate their parking at the time of review.  

3. the granting of the special exception will not be 

detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare, 

or injurious to other property within the area; and 

Scarcity of parking may have an effect on the patrons 

visiting the proposed medical offices. The special 

exception will be detrimental to the public health, safety, 

or welfare. 

4. the granting of the special exception constitutes a 

minimal departure from this Chapter; and 

The applicant is asking to not provide any additional 

parking and base their parking requirements on the parking 

analysis provided.  

 

Staff evaluated the parking analysis and believed that the 

results do not apply to the City of Dripping Springs.  

5. the subject circumstances or conditions giving rise 

to the alleged hardship are not self-imposed, are not 

based solely on economic gain or loss, and do not 

generally affect most properties in the vicinity of 

the property; and 

This special exception would affect properties in the 

vicinity. The lack of parking for medical office is self-

imposed. The applicant was aware of the issue during time 

of review.  

6. Granting the special exception is in harmony with 

the spirit, general purpose, and intent of this 

Chapter so that:  

a.  the public health, safety and welfare may 

be secured; and  

b. that substantial justice may be done. 

The granting of this special exception is not in harmony 

with the spirit, general purpose, and intent of this chapter.  

 

Summary 

The special exception is to allow the applicant to utilize the existing 47 parking spaces for a 13,200 square foot building 

that will be occupied by medical offices. The applicant provided a parking analysis that staff reviewed and disagrees with 

based on the lack of alternative transit options and the idea of only accounting for useable space. Further research of other 

surrounding cities shows that the common parking requirement for medical office is in line with Dripping Springs parking 

requirement of 1 parking space per 200sf.   

266

Item 16.



Planning Department Staff Report  VAR2021-0007 
 
Based on the above findings staff believes that the intent of the code is not being met, that the special exception will cause 

undue harm to the properties within the vicinity and was self-imposed. Staff recommends disapproval of the special 

exception. 

 

Public Notification 

A legal notice advertising the public hearing was placed in the Dripping Springs Century-News, signs were posted on the-

site, notice was placed on the City Website, and all property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site were notified of the 

Special Exception request. 

Meetings Schedule 

May 25, 2020 Planning and Zoning Commission 

June 08, 2020 Board of Adjustments/City Council 

Attachments 

Attachment 1 – Special Exception Application 

Attachment 2 – Parking Analysis 

Attachment 3 – Applicant’s Justification for Special Exception 

Attachment 4 – 249 Sportsplex Letter authorizing 9,400 sf to be utilized 

Attachment 5 – ULI Parking excerpt 

Attachment 6 - Site Plan 

 

Recommended Action Recommend disapproval of the requested special exception  

Alternatives/Options Recommend approval of the special exception with no or alternate conditions.  

Budget/Financial impact N/A 

Public comments None received at this time 

Enforcement Issues  N/A 

Comprehensive Plan Element N/A 

 

267

Item 16.



268

Item 16.



269

Item 16.



270

Item 16.



271

Item 16.



   

  05/10/2021 

May 10, 2021 

 

Chris Nygard 

Owner 

chris@nygardandcompany.com 

 

Sportsplex Office Building 

249 Sportsplex Drive, Drippings Springs, TX 78620 

Parking Analysis – Average Peak Parking Demand 

 

Chris: 

As requested and based on square footages, programmed uses and exam room counts provided by 

Nygard and Company and Herron Design Studio Architecture, we offer the following parking analysis for 

the Sportsplex Office Building located in Drippings Springs, TX. 

We reviewed the site plan and identified 47 available spaces for the Sportsplex Office Building.  See 

attached site plan. 

METHODOLOGY 

We performed parking analysis for the proposed programmed use via various parking methods: 

• Drippings Springs Code of Ordinances – gross square footage 

• Dripping Springs Code of Ordinance - usable (demand generating) square footage 

• Dripping Springs Code of Ordinance with Modal/Mixed Splits – gross square footage 

• Urban Land Institute (ULI) Standard Parking Ratios – gross square footage 

• Parking Industry (IPMI) Best Practices 

• Demand Generator (Exam Rooms)/Employee Methodology 

Our goal in performing these six (6) methods of parking analysis was to develop an average parking peak 

demand for the development. 

The current proposed program is as follows below:   

• Seton Medical – 5,410 Sq-Ft gross, 2,919 Sq-Ft useable  

• Southwest Dermatology – 2,415 Sq-Ft gross, 1,658 Sq-Ft useable  

• Body Balance Physical Therapy – 2,719 Sq-Ft gross, 2,259 Sq-Ft useable 

• Suite D (open) – 1,795 Sq-Ft gross, 1,260 Sq-Ft useable 

Gross square footage references the proposed program wall to wall area, the useable square footage 

references demand generating area such as exam rooms or nursing stations while excluding hallways, 

restrooms, breakrooms, etc. 

Further, to perform our analysis we utilized standard shared use/modal splits for the development.  While 

we recognize Dripping Springs does not have widespread mobility options, there are splits that can be 

recognized for missed appointments, employee travel/sick time, mobility splits (walk, drop-offs, carpools) 

and shared appointments (Seton patron visiting the Dermatologist).  When part of the variables for 

analysis anywhere from a 5%-20% spilt was recognized and parking requirements adjusted (see 

calculations table below). 

 

272

Item 16.



   

  05/10/2021 

 

Time of day splits were not considered since the programmed uses are similar in nature and have similar 

peak parking hours. 

ANALYSIS / RECOMMENDATIONS 

SPORTSPLEX OFFICE BUILDING 
249 Sportsplex Drive, Dripping Springs 78620 

Parking Analysis - Average Parking Demand 

Calculation Method 
GSF / USF / 

Rooms 

Modal / 
Shared / 

Other Split 

Calculated 
Peak Parking 

Demand 

Code 
Required 
Parking 

Dripping Springs Ordinance GSF 0% 66 66 

Dripping Springs Ordinance  USF 0% 40 66 

Dripping Springs Ordinance with 
Modal Splits GSF 10% 60 66 

ULI Standard Parking GSF 20% 49 66 

Parking Industry Best Practices GSF 15% 45 66 

Demand Generator/Employees Exam Rooms 5% 48 66 

 

As reflected in table above City of Dripping Springs parking ordinance requires 66 total parking spaces.  

The remaining parking analysis parking calculations range from 40 – 60 parking spaces with four (4) out 

of the five (5) alternate analysis equating to less than 49 parking spaces (see corresponding calculation 

appendix sheets).  When averaged the total recommended parking space count is 46 spaces. 

During periods of special events, special considerations may be required to meet spike in parking 

demand to avoid both reality and perception of “no parking” on site.  Arrangements with adjacent property 

owners could be engaged to offset any additional peak parking demand. 

Given the current site plan provides 47 parking spaces, it is our opinion that the Sportsplex Office Building 

development will meet the average parking demand during normal operations.  With normal operations 

defined as all exam rooms occupied and typical employee count on site.   

CLARIFICATIONS 

The opinions, analysis and recommendations of this letter memo are based on current site plan 

configurations, programmed uses and current square footages.  Any deviations, alterations, change of 

programmed use or other adjustments nullify the recommendations and opinions of this letter memo.  

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Very truly yours, 

 

Jeremy Rocha, P.E. (TX)  

Senior Project Manager 

273

Item 16.



249 Sportsplex Special Exception 
From Parking Requirements 

Explanation of How This Project Exceeds Code 
 

This project at 249 Sportsplex Park, owned by Intrepid Commercial Properties, 
LLC, presently has one tenant, Ascension Seton Dripping Springs Health Center. 
This center which was originally permitted as a site with professional offices in mind 
used a 1:300 parking ratio to determine their parking needs. However, due to many 
reasons – market demand and the Covid pandemic – the companies looking for 
tenant space has been almost exclusively medical.  

When it comes to “exceeding code requirements”; the point and purpose of a 
special exception is to not have to strictly comply with the requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance with which the applicant / property owner cannot comply. In this 
case, the parking requirements for a building for medical offices, the “most intense 
use” (which is a parking ratio of 1:200 per the City of Dripping Springs Zoning 
Ordinance) cannot be met. However, when considering alternative standards, the 
following standards are proposed to be considered. (These and similar standards 
were used last month in a similar parking variance considered and approved by the 
Board of Adjustments.) 

We also would like to have considered that the owner, Chris Nygard, did propose 
several months ago to purchase additional property across the street to build a 
parking lot to help with his parking shortage and provide additional parking for the 
community during weekends and special events. We were told that this was not 
acceptable or advisable due to the concern of pedestrians crossing the street. Mr. 
Nygard let that property return to the open market. It was and will most likely 
remain an unusable lot due to the amount of floodplain it contains. That would have 
been an example of exceeding code by purchasing additional property to help 
absorb other properties’ parking shortages.  

However, after observing the approval last month of 391 Sportsplex’ parking 
variance for a gymnasium, we believe that a revisitation of this project’s parking was 
warranted. Below are two tables with two scenarios under which are calculated the 
parking requirements for the gross square footage of the building using various 
parking standards from neighboring communities and a similar table using the 
perspective of realistic parking requirements based on useable square footage (a list 
of the unusable areas are listed below the second table based on information 
provided from Kevin Herron, AIA, to Mr. Nygard.  

274

Item 16.



In either case, using other communities’ standards, as was done by Robyn Miga, 
Planning Consultant for the City of Dripping Springs in her staff report for the 
parking variance for 391 Sportsplex, the numbers present a wide array of potential 
considerations. Using what may be deemed as the most prudent standard, the City of 
Austin’s mixed use with medical, which requires a 1:275 ratio, the parking shortage 
based on the gross floor area is 1 space. When calculating parking for the useable 
space scenario with the same parking ratio, the required number of spaces would be 
3 less than the number of spaces provided as evidenced on the approved site plan 
(see Exhibit included of the one page from the site plan with the parking calculations 
and the site plan layout). 

 

Gross Floor 
Area (13,200 
SF) 

Required 
Parking Spaces 

Provided 
Spaces 

Spaces Short Cities using 
standard 

As approved @ 
1:300 

44 47 +3 DS (As 
approved, 
For General 
Office Use) 

@ 1:200 66 47 -19 DS (Most 
Intense Use) 

@ 1:250 53 47 -6 Kyle, 
Georgetown, 
Marble Falls 

@ 1:275 48 47 -1 Austin 
(Mixed use 
w/ Medical) 

@ 1:400 33 47 +14 Buda 
  

 

 

Useable Space 
(12,548 SF)  

Required 
Parking 
Spaces 

Provided 
Spaces 

Spaces Short Cities Using 
Standards 

As approved 
@ 1:300 

42 47 +5 DS (As 
approved, For 

275

Item 16.



General 
Office Use) 

@ 1:200 62 47 -15 DS (Most 
Intense Use) 

@ 1:250 51 47 -4 Kyle, 
Georgetown, 
Marble Falls 

@ 1:275 46 47 +1 Austin (Mixed 
use w/ 
Medical) 

@ 1:400 32 47 +15 Buda 
 

Another perspective to be considered is that with the increasing pedestrian sidewalks 
becoming established in this area, more people could walk to this center as opposed 
to driving and thereby parking. Whether from their places of employment or the 
schools they attend, or from their homes, the need for parking is not always the only 
consideration when planning on how we move people and store their vehicles. It 
begins to provide an opportunity to warrant bicycling, walking, ridesharing, etc. This 
consideration should be given as it was for the 391 Sportsplex variance for parking.  

The economic argument presented in the staff report for 391 Sportsplex can be 
equally applied here which is that the property cannot be fully developed with the 
City’s prohibition of allowing the site to be fully leased unless Mr. Nygard resolves 
his parking shortage pursuant to the City’s Zoning Ordinance requirements. He has 
potential tenants that would fill up the remainder of his building and would provide 
the maximum benefit to the City, the community, and Mr. Nygard in the 
environment that when one succeeds, we all succeed.  

 

276

Item 16.



277

Item 16.



278

Item 16.



279

Item 16.

LPOLLACK
Polygon



280

Item 16.

LPOLLACK
Polygon



281

Item 16.



282

Item 16.



283

Item 16.



284

Item 16.



285

Item 16.



Subdivision Project Name
City Limits / 

ETJ
Location Description Status

Driftwood Phase 3 ETJ 17901 RM 1826 1 lot subdivision Waiting on the County 

SUB2018-0038_Caliterra Ph 4 Sec 11_FP ETJ RR12 & FM 150 Subdivision of 108 Residential lots
Turned in Plat amendment adding 
additional ROW, Comments have 
been issued.

SUB2018-0061 Headwaters at Barton Creek_AP ETJ 2401 E Hwy 290 Edits to metes and bounds error
Waiting on resubmittal/ everyone 
approved as of 6/25/2019

SUB2019-0017 Parten Ranch Amenity Center MP ETJ
NW Corner of Two Creeks Lane 
and Parten Ranch Pkwy

1 Lot for amenity center Waiting on the County

SUB2019-0041 Headwaters Ph. 4 Sec. 6 CP ETJ
Intersection of Headwaters Blvd 
and Hazy Hills Loop

4 Lot subdivision Waiting on the County

SUB2019-0044 Caliterra Ph/2 Sec 7 Block F Lot 9 AP ETJ Peakside Circle amended plat waiting on resubmittal 
SUB2019-0050 Driftwood Golf and Ranch Club Ph. 2 
FP

ETJ Thurman Roberts Way
57 SF lots, 3 Open Space, 4 Golf Course Lots, 8 ROW 
lots 

Gathering Signatures

SUB2019-0062 Big Sky Ranch Phase 2 CP & FP CL Lone Peak Way 188 Single Family, Drainage, and Open Space lots
construction plans are approved, 
final plat is under review 

SUB2018-0055 Quik Trip #4133 Addition Minor Plat CL 16460 Sawyer Ranch Rd
remaining portion of tract A of the Sawyer Springs 
Subdivision P.R. 

waiting on resubmittal 

SUB2020-0020 Polo Business Park East MP etj 13550 US 290 1 lot subdivision to create a legal lot Under Review 
SUB2020-0027 Sawyer Ranch 33 CL unaddressed, R95789 3 lot subdivision near 290 and Sawyer ranch Approved with conditions

SUB2020-0031 Heritage Construction Plans CL
Sportsplex Drive (Heritage 
Development)

Construction Plans for the Heritage development Under Review

SUB2020-0048 611 Butler Ranch Road MP ETJ 611 Butler Ranch Road Subdividing 13.03 acres into 2 lots. Approved with conditions

SUB2021-0002 Roger Hanks Parkway Extension CL Roger Hanks Parkway
3120 LF of Collector Roadway. The infrastructure 
includes all associated streets, grading, and water 
quality improvements.

Under Review

SUB2021-0004 Driftwood phase 3 Minor revision ETJ Thurman Roberts Way Adjusting Road and removing lots Approval with conditions
SUB2021-0006 Treaty Oak MP ETJ Establish a lot Waiting on the County
SUB2021-0007 Headwaters phase 3-5 PP Minor 
revision

ETJ Adjusting lots Approved with conditions

SUB2021-0008 Driftwood Greeter House Road 
Widening

ETJ Thurman Roberts Way Widening the road near the greeter house Gathering Signatures

SUB2021-0009 Glass Business Park CP CL 2650 W Hwy 290 Construction Plans for Glass Business Park Waiting on Resubmittal 

SUB2021-0016 Driftwood Club Core Phase 3 SP and 
CP

ETJ Thurman Roberts Way

Project will be developed in a condominium regime 
with 9 detached residential unites and a parking lot. 
The site will be accessed via driveway that ties to a 
driveway that is a part of Driftwood Club Core Phase 2 
that ties to Thurman Roberts Way, 

Waiting on Resubmittal 

SUB2021-0019 Bunker Ranch Ph 3 Vacation & Final 
Plat 

CL 2751 US 290 Under Review 

SUB2021-0023 Bunker Ranch 3-4 Preliminary Plat 
Minor Revision 

CL 2751 US 290 

A revision to the approved Buunker Ranch Phase 3 and 
4 Preliminary Plat to create a ROW reserve for the 
future connection of the Florio Tract and adjust affect 
lots. 

Approved with conditions

SUB2021-0024 Crooked Oaks Amending Plat ETJ 823 Post Oak Drive Adjusting lot lines Under Review
SUB2021-0025 102 Rose Drive Minor Plat CL 102 Rose Drive 1 lot subdivision to create a legal lot Under Review

SUB2021-0026 Bunker Ranch Phase 2-4 Construction 
Plans Minor Revision 

CL 2751 US 290 
A revision to the approved Buunker Ranch Phase 3 and 
4 Construction Plans to follow the corresponding 
Preliminary Plat Minor Revision 

Under Review

SUB2021-0027 Parten Ranch Phase 4 Construction 
Plans 

ETJ 600 Two Creek Lane 
Phase 4 consists of 73.84 acres with 87 single family 
lots, 1 utility lot, 4 drainage/open space lots and right 
of way. 

Under Review

SUB2021-0028 500 Butler Ranch Replat & Vacation ETJ 500 Butler Ranch Road
partial vacation and final plat of lot 1-a-1 and lot 3 
block a

Under Review

SUB2021-0029 Driftwood Creek Ph 2 Prelim Plat ETJ Thurman Roberts Way
23 lots on 19.30 acres for the Driftwood Ph 2 Prelim 
Plat 

Under Review

SUB2021-0030 Bunker Ranch Ph 4 Final Plat CL 2751 US 290 
Subdivision of phase 4 of Bunker Ranch, 28 lots on 
38.94 acres

Under Review

SUB2021-0031 Parten Ranch Phase 5 Final Plat ETJ
68 residential lots and 4 open space/drainage/water 
quality lots on 46.57 acres of Parten Ranch Phase 5 
Final Plat

Under Review

SUB2021-0032 Daisy Acres Minor Plat ETJ 100 Daisy Lane Establish a lot Under Review
SUB2021-0033 Arrowhead Ranch C-Store Minor Plat CL establish 2 commerical lots Under Review

SUB2020-0022 Big Sky Ranch Prelim Plat Tract 2 CL
35 lots on 12.2 acres of tract 1 of Big Sky Phase 1 
Prelim Plat

Under Review 

SUB2020-0028 CRTX Prelim Plat CL 27110 RR 12 Establish a lot Under Review
SUB2020-0029 CRTX Final Plat CL 27110 RR 12 Establish a lot Under Review

 

286

Item 18.



Site Development Project Name
City Limits / 

ETJ
Location Description Status

SD2019-0006_Dog N Bone CL 310 Old Fitzhugh Rd Food Trailor and Site improvements Waiting on resubmittal
SD2019-0017 Storserv ETJ E Hwy 290 Self Storage facility Approved w conditions
SD2019-0024 Jasons Deli CL 165 Hargraves Dr Restaurant Waiting on resubmittal
SD2019-0025 Merrit Hill Country Amendment CL 28725 RR 12 minor amendment Waiting on resubmittal
SD2019-0036 Hart Lane Homes ETJ 120 Hart Lane 3 SF homes Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0006 Ghost Hill Ranch Phase 2 ETJ
31430 Ranch Road 12, Dripping 
Springs, Texas

Two Commercial Buildings Approved with Conditions

SD2020-0016 100 N Canyonwood Dr etj 100 N Canyonwood Dr 2 office buildings Waiting on resubmittal
SD2020-0017 Home Depot TRC cl 260 E Hwy 290 tool rental center Waiting on resubmittal
SD2020-0024 421 Sportsplex Correction cl 421 Sportsplex adding retaining wall Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0027 Velocity Credit Union
limited 

purpose 
district

Lot 1 Block E of Bush Ranch 
Phase 1 Revised Subdivision

Construction of an assisted living building, parking 
areas, water service line, on-site sewage facility, and 
storm water detention pond. 

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0029 Headwaters Phase II CL Kibo Ridge and Hwy 290 
this project includes the construction of four 3-story 
apartment buildings, associated parking and drives, 
and utilities 

Approved w/ Conditions

SD2020-0030 Howard Ranch Commercial Cl FM 150 and RR12 

one 5. 110-sf general store/fueling station, two 
10,400-sf retail stores, two 6.800-sf retail stores. One 
17.600-sf retail store, and a 10,350-sf live/work 
building to be located on 7.391 acres 

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0031 ATX Drainage and Landscaping ETJ 13400 Nutty Brown Road 
construction of a landscape yard, associated 6.055 
sqft office/warehouse and parking 

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0032 Big Sky Ranch Amenity Center CL Lone Peak Way amenity center for Big Sky Ranch within Phase 2 Waiting on resubmittal
SD2020-0036 Arrowhead Ranch Amenity Center 
Revision

Cl Arrowhead Ranch Blvd
Proposed Site Development for future arrowhead ranch 
amenity Center

Approved w/ conditions

SD2020-0040 Forbes Tract Revision ETJ 14300 FM 1826
proposed revision would include switching from a bar 
ditch conveyance  system to an underground drainage 
system

Approved w conditions

SD2020-0042 31300 RR 12 Vet Clinic ETJ 31300 RR 12 permitting an existing gravel parking lot Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0044 Founder Parking Lot Improvements CL 419 Founders Park Rd
Install an asphalt parking area consisting on 
approximately 48 parking spaces within Founders 
Memorial Park. 

Approved w/ Conditions

SD2020-0045 12 South CL 4500 RR 12 
8,000 Sq ft warehouse w associated parking and 
drainage

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0047 Dripping Springs RV Resort ETJ 3601 W US 290, Dripping Springs, 335 RV lots with associated roadway and drainage. All Waiting on resubmittal

SD2020-0048 Patriots Hall of Dripping Springs ETJ 3400 E US 290
New VFW Builiding with parking infrastructure and 
water quality

Approved w/ Conditions

SD2021-0001 Belterra Active Adult ETJ TBD
Multifamily development with associated parkig and 
utility improvements 

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2021-0002 Driftwood Greeter House  ETJ 214 Thurman Roberts Way

2,100 sq-ft guard house adjacent to entrance gate into 
Driftwood Subdivision, small driveway connecting the 
northbound and southbound sides of Thurman Roberts 
Way, and 3 parking spaces. 

Under Review 

SD2021-0004 AAA Self-Storage Expansion CL 2300 Hwy 290 
Addition of 2 self-storage buildings, 50,000sqft and 
20,400 sqft and connecting pavement

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2021-0005 Dripping Springs WWTP Expansion CL 23127 FM 150 W Expansion of the Wastewater treatment plant Under Review 

SD2021-0006 Driftwood Lift Station & Interium 
Phasing Plan 

ETJ 11100 RM 967
Proposed 76 lf of 8" gravity wwl and lift station wet well 
designed with 5,000 gallon capacity as a storage basin 
for interim pump & haul operations. 

Waiting on resubmittal

SD2021-0008 AHC Development (aka PDD 11) CL 27110 RR 12 
Construction of a new Multi-Familty complex and its 
necessary infrastructure and a public extension of S 
Rob Shelton Blvd 

Under Review 

SD2021-0010 HaysISD Bus Facility Improvements ETJ 155 Beacon Hill Road 
Improvements to existing paved areas and expansion 
to provide additional parking. Includes water quality 
and detention ponds

Under Review 

SD2021-0007 Driftwood Club Core Tranche 1 ETJ Driftwood Club Core 
7 commerical cabin buildings along an existing 
culdesac within the Driftwood Club Core subdivision

Under Review 

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL PROJECTS

2

287

Item 18.


	Top
	Item 1.	PZC: April 2021 Minutes
	04.27.21 PZC Minutes_draft

	Item 2.	SUB2019-0062: Big Sky Phase 2 Final Plat
	SUB2019-0062 Staff Report
	Attachment 1 – Subdivision Application
	Attachment 2 – Big Sky Ranch Phase 2 Final Plat

	Item 3.	SUB2020-0022: Big Sky Tract 2 Preliminary Plat
	SUB2020-0022 P&Z Staff report - May 2021 PNZ
	Attachment 1 – Subdivision Application
	Attachment 2 – Big Sky Ranch at Dripping Springs Tract 2 Preliminary Plat

	Item 4.	SUB2020-0028 and SUB2020-0029 CRTX PP and FP
	STAFF REPORT - CRTX PP-FP- 5.19.2021
	Attachment 1 – Proposed Preliminary Plat
	Attachment 2 – Proposed Final Plat
	Attachment 3 – Staff Comments 5.25.2021

	Item 5.	SUB2021-0019: Bunker Ranch Phase 3 Final Plat and Plat Vacation
	SUB2021-0019 Staff Report May PnZ
	Attachment 1 – Subdivision Application
	Attachment 2 – Plat Vacation Application
	Attachment 3 – Plat Vacation Affidavit
	Attachment 4 – Proposed Final Plat for the Subdivision

	Item 6.	SUB2021-0029: Driftwood Creek Phase 2 Final Plat
	SU2021-0029 Staff Report -5.20.2021
	Attachments 1 – Proposed Preliminary Plat
	Attachments 2 – Staff Comments

	Item 7.	SUB2021-0030: Bunker Ranch Phase 4 Final Plat
	SUB2021-0030 Staff Report 5.20.2021
	Attachment 1 – Proposed Final Plat
	Attachment 2 – Staff Comments

	Item 8.	SUB2021-0031: Parten Ranch Phase 5 Final Plat
	SUB2021-0031 Staff Report
	Attachments 1 – Subdivision Application
	Attachments 2 – Parten Ranch Phase 5 Final Plat

	Item 9.	SUB2021-0020: Overlook at bunker Ranch
	Overlook at Bunker Ranch Postponement Email

	Item 10.	PZC: Resolution Support Mercer St. Sidewalks
	Staff Report P&Z Mercer St
	Resolution of Support TASA Mercer St._P&Z
	TxDOT Grant_Transpo Alternatives Mercer

	Item 11.	PZC: Resolution Support Elementary Sidewalks
	Staff Report P&Z Elementary 
	Resolution_of_Support_Elementary School_P&Z
	TxDOT Grant_Transpo Alternatives Elementary

	Item 12.	SUB2021-0028: 480 and 500 Butler Ranch Replat
	SUB2021-0028 Staff Report
	Attachment 1 – Subdivision Application
	Attachment 2 –Subdivision Replat
	Attachment 3 – Counts Estates Phase 1 recorded plat
	Attachment 4 – Counts Tract recorded plat

	Item 13.	CUP2021-0004: 451 Oak Springs ADU
	CUP2021-0004 Staff Report
	Attachment 1- Conditional Use Permit Application
	Attachment 2- Proposed Site Plan, Elevations, Plans

	Item 14.	CUP2021-0002: Dog N Bone Mobile Food Vendor
	CUP2021-0002 P&Z Staff report
	Attachment 1 - Conditional Use Permit Application
	Attachment 2 – Site Plan
	Attachment 3 – COA Staff Report
	Attachment 4 – Site Photos
	Attachment 5 – Previously approved CUP

	Item 15.	CUP2021-0003 Dog n Bone Bar
	CUP2021-0003 Staff Report
	Attachment 1 – Conditional Use Permit Application
	Attachment 2 – Site Plan
	Attachment 3 – COA Staff Report
	Attachment 4 – Site Photos

	Item 16.	VAR2021-0007: 249 Sportsplex Parking Variance
	VAR2021-0007 P&Z Staff report
	Attachment 1 – Special Exception Application
	Attachment 2 – Parking Analysis
	Attachment 3 – Applicant’s Justification for Special Exception
	Attachment 4 – 249 Sportsplex Letter authorizing 9,400 sf to be utilized
	Attachment 5 – ULI Parking excerpt
	Attachment 6 - Site Plan

	Item 18.	PZC: May Planning Report
	Planning Dept Report 5.20.2021

	Bottom

